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Synopsis.,

The Occupation by the Japanese Army; from about 1 llarch 1942

until 2 Septewber 1945, after the Japancse surrender,

I. PRISONERS OF WAR:

l . I\,}'urd-_&:l: L]

The Japanese en numersus occasions murdered troops who
had surrenderec¢ and had been taken »risoners ol war. These
murders happened, not immediately at the time of capture,
but after a congiderable interval of tiuwe. They were there-
fore NOT emotioral excesses of revenge perpetrated by
common soldiers whose mental balance had been swept away
but deliberate and premeditated acts committed obviously
in accordance with special orders.

By The afridaviﬁ of Mediegl Officer W. MOOY, R K, I ECS
Prosecution Docuwent 5778 describes the murder of about
70 P.0.%W. (group Lieutenant POSTUMA) at the Tiiater position,

West Jave.,

. oy

The Prosecution enters this Document 5778 for identification
and the excerpts therefrom as an exhibit.

b. The investigatinn repurt by Usaptain ILYDIR I.4,,

Prosescution Loouaeut 5777, proves tuat several P,0,W, were

murdered at Kali Djiati, West Javu

The Prosecution enters this Document 5777 for identification
and the excerpts tharurfom as an exhioit,
& The affidavit of Private A, MOES, R.U.T.a., shows that
about 82 P.0.V.'s (group Lieutecnant TATLR) were murdered
at Lembang, st Java; Prosscution Document 5779.
The Prosecution cnters this document 5779 for identification

and the excerpts therefrow a@s an exhibit.
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2. Legal Position of P.0.Ws

ment 5735, is taken the account of the murder of about
20 P.0O.W., being R.A.F. and R.A.A.F. personncl who were
patients in hospital.

Prosecution cnters this Document 5735 for identification
the excerpts as an exhibit.

The report of Sergeant C. VIJLBRIEF, R.N.I.A., Prose-

cution Documcnt 5780, shows that several P.O.W. wcre
murdered at Kertosono, Fast Java.
Prosecution cnters this Document 5780 for identification

the exeerpts as an exhibit.

The
3.

At the time of surrcnder special consideration was given
to ensuring the legal status of P.O0.W.. Major Gederal

H.D.W, SITWElL, G.0.C. British troops in Java, obtained

e Specific assurance that the provisions of the Geneva
Convention 1929 re P,0.W., would be applicd. This assurance
was never implemcnted and the trecatment accorded to P,O.W.
was in complete contradiction to the Convention. At a
later date the Gcnerél was told that the Japanese would
apply the rulecs of thc Convention only in so far as it
should suit them to do so. This is madc¢ clear in his :
affidavit, Proscecution Document 5776. Intcrrogations under
threats, beatings, torture, humiliations, bad food, bad
sanitary conditions were the mcthods applicd at the
Japancse General Headquarters, established at Bandung,
West Java. Brigadier BLACKBURN tcetificd on these matters
to thc samc e¢ffecet on November 29th and December 2nd, 1946,
beforc this Tribunal.
Prosecution enters this Document 5776 as an cxhibit.
Camps.

P.0.W. wcrc concentrated in various camps situatcd all
over Java. Most of thcse camps bocame notorious on account

of the bad trecatment. From the very beginning conditions

/were
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were poor and the Japancec never did anything to amcliorate

them in any way notwithstanding repcated protests and roecucste
On tiie contrary, conditions prew wirsc. The Prosccution does
not iptcend to give ¢videngce aboub each end cvory cemp but
will give a picture of the géncral conditions by introdueing
various docwncnis.

The affidavit of F/0 R.P.

578 regarding conditions at
3 f )

Jaaraar<tcamd at Epyyg;gjﬁ, (Wast Java): bad accoumcdation,
sanitation and food, inadcouate provision for health and
laeck of medical cerc, compulsory labour on military objeets,
gxhausting labour, crucl corporal nunishnent causing un-
consciousncss and physical injury, compulsory labour for
sick people.
Lyccumcanp, a: General coaditions simdlar with the

addition of overcrowding.

Cycle Camp, batavia: Ciwel beutings - unto dcath.
Bandung: Scvere bouabings.
Prosccution enters thig Docuent 5789 as an cxhibitl

The afilidavit of Lb. Golongl C.3. BaiteiieTay

Prosecution Document 5787, showinc conditions in the 2.0,W.

L.

camp at Glodok prison, Batavia; conditions cven worsc than

tho=e at Sourabaya uszeeiflly as regards medicul carc.

Prosccution cntcrs this Doewasent 5787 as an exhibit.

The affidavit of the samé Prosecution

Document 5788,regardineg L.0.G,.camp, about similar

complaints,
Prosceution cvnters this doecum.nt 5788 as en cxhibit.

Tucse affidavits show BRat the sroater part of all

el

offenecs mentioned in scctions 1 throush &, 9 and 10 of

sppendix B of  the Indictiient were commitbted.,
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A circumstance wlich aggravatcd thc bad conditions was
thce consvant and uannccessary rceshufiling of P.O.W.. kost of
them were moved from cnc cemp to another and during the war
ycars tcns of thousands werc scnt away from Java. For
example, of Dutch prisoners alone about 14,000 wcre sent to
thc Burma-Siam railroed, 7.800 to Japan, 1.000 to Acbon,
2.000 to Florcs. This.appecars in Prosecution Documcnt 5737,
Exhibit ...., @alrcady lmwroduced,

As this transport of P.0.W. by sca was ncver communicated
in advancc to the Allies, the ships uscd were exposed to
Alliecd attack. At lecast five ships werc torpedocd, about
2.700 Duteh P.0.W. suffercd shipwrceck of whom 1,900 wcre
drowned, while the survivors werc lcft in a worsc position
than beforc, not only from thc effcets on their physical
condition, but also irom thc continuing erfccts of the loss
of clothing and pcrsonal belongings, as will be shown
hercaiter.

5. Exccutions,

Rocapturcd csecapecs were, in most cascs, cxccuted without
trial, although thc Convention allows only disciplinary
measurcs and not even court-martial punishmcnt in such cases.
As, in tho first months after the capitulation such
exccutions took place in_several places throughout Java, it
is inferred that thcecy were thce result of a spcecial order,

Most of the cxecutions were carricd out by methods of
revolting cruelty - by bayonctting thce vietims thus cnsuring
a most painful dcath after protracted agony. Morcover,
fellow-prisoncre had "to bu presont and wiunpss these
barbarous cxccutions.

Fxecutions of this nature arc deseribed in the following
affidavits.

a. 1st Lieutenant G.J. DISSEVELT, R.N.I.A.: cxccution of
thrce Dutch P.0.W. at L.0.G.camp, Bandung,april 1942,

Prosccution Documcnt 5781.
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P.0.%W. at Lth-9th Battalion Camp, West Javay
Yey 1942 Prosccutiern Heeament 5782,
Prosecution cvnters this Deocumcnt 5762 for identification
the excerpts as an exhibit.

lMcdical Ofiicer _CE, R.N.I.4.: euccution of
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1942; Proscveution Document 5783. This Doctor was sumsionod

inister the coun-ai-grace to onc of thc victims of an

attenpt at cxccution, who was in
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Lgricurbural Sc.ool Camp, Sukabuwmi, Woui

~
)

Java, llay 1942; Prescecution Documciit 578L.

Prosccution cnturs this document 5764 for idcintificotion

O

the cxcuerpte as ap cxhivit,.

T i ey M : B SR
Eogign Bl BRREMOR RN Shois s oxXsention ol throe Dutch

and throo Tndopnesian P.0.%W. 8

31 March 1942; Prosececution Docunicnt

identification

Proseccution e¢nters this docwavnt
the excorpts .as an ¢xhibit,

Schrovl beacher Qo BROTRTINE: exccocubion of three Duteh

P.ONM. ab H.B.8.0cown, Dioejaarta, Contral Java, Moy T0LFE

Prosceution Documcnt 5786,

Presecution enters this Doeumcnt 5786  sor idontification

i N ok p T O M Ll KL S
the ¢ FZCCLPLsS, Bl A CoHTuG .

r. o

Lt€aionol ] swention of throc British F.O0.¥.

from Glodok Caw.z, Bata¥ia, Ayeril- -194L2; Frosceutlon Doecument

5787, already introducti,
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6. Gencral Policy.

As regards the gencral peliey of the treatment of prisoners
of war, the cuccessive conwandcrs of P.O0.W. camps in Java
have given informeation, At the same timc their testimony
shows, not only the harshness of the policy but also an
astonishing cbsence of control over their subordinates, as
appears in the affidavits of Major General SAITO, Prosccution

Decument 5739, and Colonel NaKaATA, Prosecution Document

5738, alrecady mcntioncd, Fibibitls .w.. 804 ...c0s
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The position of ciwvilians has already becn mentioned in
Exhibit o. 1551, the statement of the vitness Major de WEERD,
R.o.I.A,, to which the Prosecution refers.

At Tjenoc, Central cava, the main oil centre of Java, the
invading vananese murdered some Dutch civilians, smong whom
Vr., Horst, +the Assistent Resident (the highest local civil
servant), apparently as a revenge becavse of the destruction
of the oilfields; therefore the same as happened when the
Japanese cntered the oil town of Balikpanan, Borneo, as
stated in the former phase of the trial in Exhibit_ -
The wonen were repeatedly faped, with approval of the
commanaing officer. As appeers from the affidavit of

Mrs. A. IORST-nze MIDDELX!MP: Prosecution Document 5767.

Frosecution enters this document 5767 for identification and
excerpts as an exhibit.

CGivilian Internecs

Internment - )

The arrest of civilians started immediately after the
capitulation; by April 1942 practically all Dutch officials had
been interned except some who occupicd minor positions and &
few "indispensables." Dutch non-officials were arrested soon
afterwards and interned with the excedntion of those Dutch who
had been born in the Fetherlands Incies.

A few months after the surrender of Java the internmexn
of women and children began. Children, born in Java, were also
interned if tre parents were interned. Confinement was in
special areas waich soon became overcrowded. Later on prisons,
penitentiaries, coolie cam.s, farms, convents, native quarters,
etec., werc used.

Boys et the age of thirteen were considered adults and sent
to Hen's Camps; boys at the age of eleven, sometimes as young as
nine, were of ten scparated from their mothers and sent to so-
called Boys' Cemms., Education was forbidden in all internment

areas
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arecas, wonen anxd children werc forced to work at hard labour for

long hours under =~ tropicel sun at menial tasks.

Conditions

In both Men's and Women's Camps conditions werec inhuman,
neerly the same as in P.0.W, Cemps. This appears from a series
of affidavits:

The rcport of J. C. REINDFRS FOLMER zives a general plcture

of Men's Carmps. He was o former bank menager and honorary consul
for the Yetherlsnds in Tokyo. As he was familiar with the
Japancse he acted as camp interpreter; Prosecution Document 5762.
In L.0.G, Camp, Baudoeng, beatings were frecuent, food was in-
sufficient in quantity and bad in quslity} sanitery conditions
were bad and entertainment and divine services were forbidden; no
correspondence, even with relatives, was allowed.

In Baros Camp, Tjimshi, corditione deteriorated &s soon as the
Japanese Army took over the administ;ation of the civilian carps.
The food was poor — about one thousend calories daily — and the
prisoners only managed to keep alive by buying supplementary food
with the proceeds of the_sale of all their valuables. Rats and
dogs were ressrved and cooked for the more serious cases among the
patients in hospital in order to provide them wieh at least some
meat. Medicines were inadequate »nd poorly supplied through, after
the Japensse surrender it weas proved that ample supplies had been
available all the time, o

Red Cross parcels were distributed only twice and then, after the
Japanose had stolen part of the contents and by the method of
issuing, prevented the intornees from obtaining full value from the
gifts, by ordering all tins end contziners to be emptied immediately.
Roprisals and collective punishments were inflicted. Children of
elaven and twelve were senarated from their mothers., Of a sum of
money — 75 guilders for cach one of a group of British subjects -
sent by the Holy See, only about one—third was ever paid.

The complaints made by the Jenancse against the internces were

remarkable; the prisoners' attitude, was bad; they were not h?mble

enough
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enough; they were arrogart and conceited; their etiquette ves

%

wrong or they hed no eticuctte at all; their hearts were not
sincere and their thoughts, as ampeered from their faces, were
insulting to thie Imperial Japenese Army; discbedience wes stomped
on their faces. This attitvde on the nart of the Japanese was
the bacizground of 211 tho corocral punichment inflicted for the
most trivial offences and even for no offences at all.
Hevertheless, conditions were better than thcé wore in other
islands and o Jveparcese Red Cross offici l was said to have
expressed ancer at the relatively favourable conditions in Jave.

The Prosecution eanters this document 5762 for identification and the

excerpts as an oxhibit.

b. According to the affidavit of Police Officer G. IE LA G,
about 1500 deaths occurred in the Tjimahi Cemps, due to
malnutrition, stomach comploints and lack of medicines;

Prosecution Docment 763.

The Prosecution enters this document 5763 as an exhibit,

C. Regarding "omen's Canns, evidence is presented by the
affidavit of idrs. A. M. DROCG-nee HARTGRIULC, Prosecution Document
B765, trahsPQrt of patients was corducted by brutal methods; forced
labour by 2,000 women, 1,200 children under eleven years of =ge,
900 boys between eleven and thirteen, even mothers of small and
gick childron and vomen over fifty were compelled to work; 500
wonien end 425 boys were detoiled for extira heavy work; consequently
tie state of hcalth deteriorated in a morksd degree.

The Prosecution cnters this document 5765 for identification and the

excerots as on exhibit.

d. e affidevit of Miss g, P. RISSELADA, Prosecution Document

t

5766 gives informetion about Banjobiroce Comp, Ambarawa, Centrel

()

Java. TIood - ninety grarmes of rice daily - was poor, mess

punisizments of a very cruel neture were inflicted in a cruel way. .

The Prosecution enters this dosument 5766 as an exhibit.
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The affidavit of }rs. M. P, HAVER7ZAMP, Prosecution Document

5769, refers to conditions in Karang Pana's Cemp, Semarang,
Centrgl Java. In order, as they said, to check an outbreak of
infantile perelysis the Jepanese housed 125 old men with the
women and their grown-up daughters in an overcrowded chapel; -
beatings occurred rcgularly; children older than nine years were
gent away; 2ll tho -cavy work to which an insufficient number
of workers wes a2llotted had to be done by the women; food was
very scanty in amount. 4

The same affidavit describes conditions in the overcrowded
Lampersarie Cemp, Semaranz. This wes loceted in a cleered
native quarter of the town; outdoor work for women was compulsory;

young girls hed %o cerry heavy rice bags for more than five

hundred yerds; collecctive punishments occurred; torture was in-

flieted on one occesion, continuing for seven days.

The Prosecution entcrs this document 5769 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit,

f.

Cases of rape and forced prostitution of women and girls at
Moentilan, Centrel Java® arc rclated bvars. BEELMAN-nee
VAT BALLEGOOYEN in her affidevit; Prosecution Document 5770.
The rape and forced prostitution werc arranged by Kempei officials,

doctors exemined the viectims hefore they were raped.

The Prosecution enters this document 5770 for identification and the

excerpts as an erhibig.

Visual evidence will be prescnted by showing the film

"NIPPON PRESENTS", Prosecution Document 5759, in connection®

with the effidavit of Mejor_ J. SCHIM VAN DFR LCEFF, R.¥W,I.L,,

Prosecution Document 5758, who discloses frcts as to the origin
of this film, and with an affidavit of Brigadier BLACKBURII,
Prosecution Document 5740, who as a witness already gave evidence
regarding the origin and cherascter of this film, before this
Tribunal on December 2, 1946. The Jepencse Propaganda Department
made & film, "AUSTRALIA CALLITG", in which Australians and Dutch

Pow
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P.O.W. as well .as Dutch civilien internees were forced to play
a'part under scvere threats.

The film denicis internees living in almost luxurious surround-
ings and conditions dut it was all falred. The purpose of the
film wes to weaken Australirn morale but the Japanese never
succeeded in getting the picture shown in Austrslia, The film
was scized after the vepenese surrender. Some of those who were
obliged to take part in it have given the true story of the fake
and several cuttings of films mede by Allied cemeramen e few
wecks after the Japanese surrender have been put in to show the
real conditions in P.0.W. and civilian internces'. camws in Java,
in order to show the contrast between the sctusl facts ond the
faked presentation,

This evidence will be presented at a proper time subject to the
Court's pormiséion.‘

EXTERMINATIOL :

The ettitude of the Japenese towards Internationel Law, is
clearly shown in the vlans mede by them for the destruction of
P,0.W. and civilian interneecs in the event of en approach by
Allied forces., In such an event, pre-arranged disturbences
would take place as 2 pretext for wholesale murder. Proof of
these murder-plans will be presented at a later stege in
connection with similar plans drawn up in other areas.

Von—-interned population

Romusha:

Forced labour to further the war aims of the coanquercrs
was one of the benefits of the Greater Tast asia Co—prosperity
Sphere, established by thc Jopanese. This labour consisted of
digeging trenches, constructing air-raid shelters and other
nilitary works, making roads and reilweys, working in oilfields,
coalmines, etec. Javanese youths in proriicular were conscripted
for such work. It was called %oluntary labour, but was, in
fact, compulsory. The conserintion of Romusha was carried out

by
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by & series of round-ups through the medium of the villege-chiefs,
The labourers were held in custody and were treated in the same vay
as P.O.W, and even worse.
The Romusha wsre sent 21l over South-east Asia: Sumatra, Borneo,
Celebes, Ambon, and even as far as Malaye, Burme, Siem and the
Pailippines.
The sea~voyages ware usurlly made in small, open coasting vessels
end often lasted for several wecke. Food and drink were never
adequate and there were frequent deaths during these trips.
The work demended under drutal end severc discipline, beatings and
other eruel corporzl punishments was virtual hard labour. Food wes
totally inadcquate with the result thet beri-beri, pellagra,
tropicel ulcers were rife. General surrounéings, housiag and
sanitary conditions were filthy and unhealthy leading to dysentery,
malaria and scabies., Medical treatment and hospitalization were
either non-existent or so poor as to offer no chonce of arresting
the course of an illncss or preveating the spread of contagious
diseases. No care was taken of the dead end this constituted &
callous infringcment on the "edai" - the religious customs of the
natives.
These factes sppear abund~ntly in a series of affidavits of victins
who survived and will be introduced presently.
In all, some 270,040 natives were sent awey. Only 70,000 have ever
been recovered since the war ended. The Prosccution refers to
pp. 37 and 38 of exhibit 1351,

The rough estimate of the Judze Advocate General at Singepore, is

that of tho Romushs erployed on the constraction of the Burma-Siam
Railway, about 80,0C0, of whom a large number were Javanese, died.
Prosecution Document 5739.
The Prosecution enters this document 57C9 as an exhibit.
A.T.I.S. report, Australian Division S.E.A.C., Prosecution

Document 5710, containing Japenesc Rseports on Javanese lebourers at

the Brunei 0il Refinery in Borneo, and enother on the reeruiting of

labourers at Djoc Jelkarte, gives the numbers of deceased, sick and
deserters
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deserters. From these reports a ~lear impression of conditions may
be obtained.

The Prosecution enters this document 5710 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit,

The Prosecution desires to emphasize the terrible conditions
vhich the nativespopulation of Java, docilc end fatalistic and less
resistant then Westerners, were forced to endure.

The following deponents are all Javanese:

(a) Doelohmers, ex~Scrgeant R.1.I.A., was ordered to leeve his home
and s2long with 170C others was sent to Djurong Camp near iSingepore.
Conditions there were oppalling. 3Bad and insufficient food ceused
beri-beri, Of the 17C0 who went there -ith Doelshmaro only 600
survived at the end of the war., The remainder had died or run away,
Prosecution Document 570C.

The Prosecution enters this document 5700 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit.

(b) Kasa Bin Sontami, was ordered to work for the Japanese and sent

to_Puleu Sekidjang, neer Singanore; beatings, especially of those

who reported sick, werc e common nccurrence., ' bvea torture was
inflicted. During one year's etay in this cemp 500 out of a total
of 7560 died. Prosecution Document 570C1.

The Prosecution enters this document 5701  for identification and the

—_—

excerpts as an exhibit,

(¢) Senrawi, was elso at Puleu Sekidjeng. Between 200 and 300

died out of his group of 500, Ceses of severe torture, unto death,
occurred., Prosecution Document 5702.
The Prosecution enters this document 5702 for identification and the
excerpts as an exhibit,

(d) _Porman Bin Djotaroens, was also ordered t»o work for the Japanese

and sent to Pulau Sckidjong. 17 died out of his own group of 3C and

in a year 140 coolies out of 490 died. The usuel conditions existed,
nemely, bad food, bed medical facilities and beatings., FProsecution

Document 5706. /
The
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The Prosccution enters this dccument 5706 for identification and the
excerpts as an sxhibit.

e. SELAVAT BIL. JCENOES witnessed the torture af a coolie at Pulsu

Dekidjang, The coolie was wrapped in a mat which was then set on fire.
After this the victim suffered further ill-treatment. This tcrturs was
inflicted by a Jepamnese dsctor., The victim died, Prosccution Dycument
5712,
The Precsecution enters this document 5712 for identification and the
cxcerots as an exhibit,

f. ACENAD BIN XKETASCEDA was detailed to vork st Kamponz Baroce, Singapor:

Here only 1.C00 among 2,000 cooliss were physically able to work,
3 & Doy 4

N

4 or 6 died every day. Nevertheless heavy work under harsh discipline

was mnforced At Palau Bokoembo, mear Singapere the coolicu were

N

pruvkntnd from taking shelter during an Allied air raid. As a ruault

many were killed. Prosecution Document 57“3.
’

i ~ 3 r

The Prosecution entcrs this documont 7 ort3 for 1dunt11 uatlon and the

excerpts as an exaibit,

Zi GOLDEL gives a dnscrlktlon of hls vaerlknces vhlch tne Prosecutlon
. + SR >
dssires to read boca\su it prrv1des an aV(Iag? picture, Prosceution

Document 57C4.
The Prosecution enters this document 57(4 for identificetion and the
excerpts as an exhibit.

h. BCECONG alias TAWAHIR d(SCleLS among othcr cases of 111~trcatmxn+

4

ai E:;gg_ggggr near Slﬁgaporn, how a ceslie was buried alive after severc
cornoral pun*snmcnt roso cution Document 57u5

The Prosecutlon unt‘rs this documont 0705 for 1den,1f*catlon and the

i

fxcerpts as an evilblt

£ RFBO a9 fcrced to wo*k at Tandqong ﬁlnang, near Llngaocre He douicts
a very s»rlous casc oi torturo rusultlng in dkath In'9 months 4€0 out
of 75C4@oolies»diod. Prosecution Document 5737,

The Prosecution enters this doéument 5707 for identification and the

exosrpts as aﬁ exhibit,
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jo 7 PAEIR testifies to the torturing of a Chinese coolie, at Pulau Batang,

necar Singapore. The coolie was beaten until one of his thighbones was
broken., He reoceived no redical treatment; his fellow—coolies were for-
bidden to help him; he was buried with only his head stove the ground;
later he was thrown into the sca while possibly still alive, Prosecution
Document 5711.
The Prosecution enters *his document 5711 for identification and the excerpts
as an exhibit,

k. DACHLAN, then a youth of 18 was sent to Macassar, Celebes, 4 coolies
out of the total of 400 on board, died during the trip, Prosecution
Document 5723,

The Prosecution enters this document 5723 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit,

15 AMAT NWAWI, then 55 years of age, was sent as the leader of 100
fellow-villagers, part of a draft of 1500 coolies, to Moena, Ceclebes.

500 died in a year., Of his ovn group only 60 survived., Prosecution
Document 5724
The Prosecution enters this document 5724 for identification and the ercerpts
as an exhibit.

m. GOENOENG was sent to Balilkpapan, where conditions among the 1500
coolier were the same as everywhere else in Romusha camps. Prosecution
Document 5728,

The Prosecution enters this document 5728 for identification and the
excerpts as an exhibit,

T PAIMAY was sent to Singapore. During the voyage, which lasted a week,
30 persons died and other 16 died on the wharf, ¥n the period of two and
& half years procceding the Japanese capitulation at least a thousand died.
The corpses werc not buried immediately but were carried by friends and
acquaintances outside the camp into an open field, vhere, wrapped in mats
they were laid in the open air for a fow days from where lorries sarried
them away. Prosecution Document 5714,

The Prosceution epters thic ducuwent 5714 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit,
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o.

ABDUL MAZID made a forced trip through the Archipelego and was ordere
to work under miserable conditions at Singapore, Halmaheira (Molucca's),

Macassar and Singkang (Celcbes): Prosecution document 57286,

The FProsecution enters this document 5726 for identificetion and the

excerpts as an exhibit.

D

NADALI wes even sent to Manila as well as to Singapore and Menado

(Celebes). Frosecution document 5722.

The Prosecution enters this document 5722 for identifiecation and the

excerpts as an exhibit.

q.

The

KOPER, then 17 years of age, was ordered for coolie-labour and
eventually sent to Tjimpon, Siam, where approximately 30 % of the total
number of Romusha died. Prosecution Doecument 5708,

Prosecution cnters this document 5708 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit.

The

The Prosccution desires to provide visual evidence by introducing

four photographs taken at Seletar Cemp, near Singapore, by Army Film

and FPhoto Section, S.E.A.C.: in connection with the letter of the said
Section du.‘19 September 1945, Prosecution Document 5715.
Prosccution enters this document 5715 as an exhibit.,
Eempeitai.

The Japenese measures of terrorization have already been mentioned
by Major DE WEERD, Exhibit 1351, passim.

¥o discrimination was made as to race or seﬁ. Thousands becéme victims
of the Military Police, A general survey of the results was given by the
Head of the War Crimes Section of 7.E.F.I,S. (i etherlands Forces
Intelligence Service) at 3atavia; Prosecution Document 5731, showing
that 439 persons were sentenced to death and erecuted by Court Martial,
Javas however, this number does not include many death-sentences pro-
nounced by local Kempeitai, and death-sentences azainst 58 persons from
Kesilir Camp, 1175 persons were vunished by Court Martial, Java, seatence:

varying between one year and lifelong imprisonment, It further aopears
[that
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tvhat 3C4 persons diea in jail before being sentenced as a result of
Yorture and bad conditions,

Inhuman treatment.of the utmost dbrutality was applied systematically
and me%hodisallyr, all over Java, not only at Kempeitai Headquarters dbus
also in prison and even during trials in the courtroom., Evidence of
appalling torture and ill-treatment is contained in the following series
of affidavite and statements:

a. ' Dootor H.E, BOISSEVAIL, Mayor of Semarang, describes in his sworn
3 £y

statement the ill-trcatment by Sewmsranz end Batavia Kempeitai; not only
the tortures and the bad accommodation at the Kempeiquarters, but also the
way in vhich a Court Martial trial was conducted. Prosecution Document 574
The Prosecution enters this document 5745 for identification and the
eicerpts as an exhibit.

e Dental student W.F. WIJTING, in his statement reletes his experiences
’ 2

at Batavia Kempeitai, ironically located in the Court of Justice, and
also gives a description of a trial, Prosecution Document 5745,
The Prosecution enters this document 5745 for identification and the
excerpts as an exhibit,

Cs Major A, ZIMMERMAN, R,Y,I.A., reports of the methods of Kempei-torture
at Buitenzorz, showing a certain specialization and a highly developed
grade of skill on the part of the torturers. There vere specialists in
hanging, in kidney~beatinz, in the watertest, and torture by electricity.
This report contains a survey of the ill-treatment of 22 of his fellow-
prisoners. Prosecuticn Document 5748,

The Prcsecution enters this document 5748 for identification and the
excerpts as an exhibit.

d. The Chinese LIE 3ENG GICK also gives a description of Fempei-treatment

at Buitenzorg, and reports about his fellow victims. Prosecution Document
5747,
The Prosecution enters this document 5747 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit.




DOCUMENT 5681 PO
e, Professor, Doctor Engineer E. DE VRIES testifies that he was tortured

first at Zuitenzors, He estimates his first interrogation as probably

several beatings and the watertest., Others were treated in a very bad
way: Captain TEREI?CK was tortured 47 timesy 14 times he was beaten into
unconsciousness, The Reverend JENS died the day after having been tor-
tured, The Indonesian doctor KAYADOE was killed while under torture -
due to lack of skill of the torturer. At Semarang Professor DE VRIES
suffered the watertest 22 times during a period of 2 months, and his
interrogation amounted to 500 hours in tot¢. Prosecution Document 5750,

The Prosccutior enters this document 5780 fer identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit,

fe Jr, R. FLACHS, a Swiss engineer, gives a detailed report on Kempeitai

at Bandung, showing especially the prison conditions, Prosecution Documen

8751,

The Prosecution enters this document 5751 for identifieation and the
excerpts as an exhibit.

T Frs. H.B. ZFGRIEL, in her affidavit gives a desoription of the methode

of Sourabava Kempeitai, Prosecution Document 5754, showing that the

torturers made no discrimination according to sex.
The Prosecution enters this document 5754 for identificatien and the
excerpts as an exhibit,

The Kempeital at Batavia in particular showed the most inhumen
treatment., They selected their victims by prefereénce from among the
wives of the highest officials and leading businessmen, Examples of the
ill-trecatment and torture appear from the following affidavits:

h. Mrs, 4.D. VAV MOOK, wife of the present Lieutenant Governor-General

of the Ietherlands Indies who had played an active part in the fruitless
so-called economic negotiations between the Netherlands and Jepan in
194M-1941, Prosecution Document 5741,

The Prosecution enters this document 5741 for identification and the
excerpts as an exhibit,




* DOCUMENT 5681 page 19.

, B Mre. S.M.J. IDENBURG, wife of the Chief of Cabinet of the Governor

General before the war; Prosecution Document 5742.
The Prosecution enters this document 5742 for identification and the
excerpts as an exhibit.

3; F.H, LOUPATTY and S. PATTINAMA give a description of their own

sufferings and also of the nauseating torture and ill-treatment of Mrs,
VAN WAVEREY, wife of the associate director of the Java Bank, the
official circulation bank. This is probably the most inhuman case;

Mres. VAY WAVEREW died after unremitting torture under the most miserable
conditions,

3
The Prosecution enterw the affidavit of LOUPATTY, 5743 for identification anc

the excerpts as an exhibit.

The Prosecution enters the affidavit of PATTINAMA, 5744 for identification ar

the excerpts as an exhibit.
k. A gpecial case is that of the execution of about 19 civilians at

Sourabaya, more than a week after the Japancse surrender, with the

knowledge of Major General YAMAMOTO, the Gunseikan (Governor General) of
Java at that time, as appears from his affidavit, Prosecution Document

5733; in connection with the affidavit of Doctor CH, 0. VAN TER PLAS,

Representative of the Netherlands Indies Government, Prosecution Document
5734.

The Prosecution enters the document 5733 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit.

The Prosecution enters the document 5734 for identification and the

excerpts as an exhibit.

Major KATSUMURA, operations officer of the Jave Kempeitai Headquarter:
Batavia, gives a survey of Kempei activity, admitting execution without
trial in the so-called "Ki" (or "Koo")-case, in which 239 persons were
executed in strict secrecy; Prosecution Document 5756, Javint 3106/13
In order to settle the case as soon as possible, this case was dealt
with on the spot. The investigation officer decided whether to inflict

[the
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the death sentence, and his decision was epproved by the higher officials
on the authority of the Cormmonder-in-Chief after examination by the
staff-officer for Xempei affairs at Army Headquarters,
The Prosecution eaters this document 5756 for identification and the
excerpts as an exhibit,
3. EBrisons.

Apart from the treatment at Kempeitai Eeadquarters and local Kempeitai
units the normal prisons were nlacce of terror and misery as well, The
prison conditions were almost bevond deccription and may easily be
understood frcm the sumary given by the Head of War Crimes Section of
- eE.F.I.S., Prosecution Documcnt 5732. This summary deals with only
38 out of the 1C4 prisons in Java and Madura, according to the lists
provided by the Jananase authorities. However, although not all deaths
vhieh occurred during the occupation have been recorded, these lists
mention that in the 38 prisons 1717 persons died; only in 154 cases was
the cause of death stated,

The average death-rate in the Netherlands Indies prisons in 1940 was
1,8 %.

The Tjipinans-prison, near Batavia, not included in the above 38, had

a death-rate of 4 ¢ in the pericd May lst 1943 till May lst 1944, but of
51 % in the period May lst 1944 till May lst 1945, i.e. 2257 deaths in
an avergge prison-population of 4400, The deterioration of conditions
in this prison is clear from the fact that the monthly death-rate
increased in the last ;ear from roughly 1 % to 10 %.

The Prosecution enters this document 5722 as an exhibit,

The already introduced affidavit of Professor DE VRIES, Prosecution

Document 575C, exhivit ____, conteins at the end some particulars about

Tjipinans prison: out of 4.000 inmates 500 were confined in the so-called

"death ward", of whom only a Chlnesc and the deponent himself survived;
malnutrition and diarrhoea for which no medicines were supplied, were the

main causes of death,




F

|

.‘{DOCUMENT 5681 page 21.

The Prosecution herevith completes the synopsis regarding the Japanese
conventional war crimes and their crimes against humanity committed in
Java against the native population and the Allied citizens and service

personnel in this island,
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CERTHESTUOCRTE

The Undersigned CHARLES JONGENEEL, first Lieutenant
R.N.I.A, Head of the War Crimes Section of NETHERLANDS FORCES
INTELLIGENCE SERVICE (NEFIS) being first duly sworn on oath
deposes ard states that the arrexed Dutch origiral (with English
translation) of the report, entitled:

"Official Record, made up by Ch, A. SCHU'TRMAN, Police
Gfficlal at the cdisposal of the Attorney Gereral NEI,
dated 1st March 1946, cortaining a Sworn Statement of
Dr, Willem MOOIJ concerning the mass murders near
Kalidjati", '
has beern taker from the official records of the NEFIS,.
SIGNATURE:
(I1leeible)
BATAVIA, Jvne 7th, 1946
Svbscribed and sworn to before me K,A, de WYERD, first
Lieuterart R.M,I.A, Higher 0fficial attached to the Office
of the Attorrey Gereral N.E,.I,

s/ K, A, deWeerd

PRO JUSTITIA

Governrent Office for the
Investigation of War Crimes

OFFICIAL RECORD

ristiaan Adolph SCHIMURVAN,-.---
Police official at the disposal of the Attorney Gen-ral with the
High Court of Justice, Batavia, upon receipt of ar order to that
effeect, have made an inqiiry ard on Friday, March 1, 1946, I
have interrogated:

-«-1, Willew MOOYJ---

Dutch nationality, born June 19, i901 at WINSCHOTEN (Holland),
occvrpation: medical officer, living at the Military Hosnital,
Batavia, who, after having taken the oath according to his
religious corvictions, to tell the *rrth and nothing but the
truth, declared:----




S

1 -ulna plants in

)JJ\\:'U. NG, 5778 Page 2

Arovnd March 2©, 1942, as _a prisorer of war of the Jap-
anese, I was in the M.U.L.0, - schcol-bvildirg, corner Suvmatra-
straat/Javastraat, BANDOENG, Several mediczl officers had Leen
sheltered there. It was “rniwn to us that thkere rmost be vn-
buried bodies alor.g the rza2ds of action., Frrther it had comre
to gur ears, via & soldier 2r ©he militapry kospitsl, that a
mass execrtion had taken 7l ace neer the turnpize on the road
t¢ the Tan~kcehan Pralice.. == : :

We, ofticers, urged Colcrel VAN MAVEN to po and look for
these bodiesj; after invch trouble Colonel VAN MANEN obtained
at last, after three weeks, pernission from the Jananese au-
thorities to send a grovp cf medical officers ard subordinates
with salvaee tools. This grovn consisted cf sore 30 rer under
the leadersrip of doctor EYS'EK,--

Op March 20k 1942, ~he medical officers, doctor WOLTHUIS
and T arrived at a quzbchna plantation, cftvatecd at 300 meters
from the »nrincinzl road ~rcm Lembang to boecaﬂgu Going téwards

f Soebang left from the road and about 1 K.M. Dast the bifvrcation

"turn-pike", There I saw in :

sold ers, in a far sta é"oP decomposition. On a cioser view
I otreed—that—these todies were in grovps of 3 or eople;s
these erorns were bornd to ether with puttees—ard-»opes, saw
that on rany cornscs Thé Hands were bound »n the back, also
with puttees, ard that from nearly all bodies fingsrs had been

cut off.---

irgs were fornd on the bodles. Between the groips
and the bodies themselves—I-eaw-several opened izod tins. Then
in collaboration with doctor WOLTH'IS, eacn with a crew »f
svbordinates we started on the ldertification of *he bodies.
Many bodies still had identity plates, whica we collected, as
well as the reraining personal oroperties, 1like a few pocket-
books, paybooks, etc,---

€ 20 . %0 030000 P20 "

During my internment I met two soldiers, curvivors of
the detachment of Lieut, POSTUMA, In 1942, I co not rerember
the exact datey I spoke in the 15th Battelirn, 2andoeng, with
a soldier, which as I remember vagrely was cailed DE JONG, of
Dutch nationality, about 30 years of age, orofessional soldzer.
This nerson told me that he had belongeé to the detachnment of
POSTUMA and that, after 2 battle, he anc¢ the detachrent had
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~ been made onrisorner at the TJTA™IR., Thev had been brought
together in a grovy of 70 mper ari ot vnder guard,--- In
the beginning thers was no evidence of evil intentions on the
part of the Japanese. They had euen received cigarettes from .
the Japarese, After a 'ew hours they hai noticed that the
framp of mind arone the guards became nervouvs, Machine guns
were Installed vy thepiards and the soldiers tied topether in
grovps Cwith” pUttees,  This binding had been don~ racher hard-
haraedlv. All had rpal‘,;i"that,the .end._had come, One of the
B6I01ETs praved tor all. Then thev had been led to an cpen
field and had been rachinegvnned, The soldler in guestlon fold
me fyurther,” trat e had'reoeiqu a few shots in his legs, After
all_grou“s had been machine-gunned and Were I1YVIHp o the field;
Japanese solliers. cac with thelr bayonets along fhe field ard
went between the vicgims. 1y informant declared that he had
pretended to be dead zrd w en the Japanese had gone he had suc-
ceeded in disengaging himself from his grovp and, after difficult
wanderings had reached the rain road. Fror there he was taken
to Bandoeng in a passing Japanesc truck, where he was accommodated
in the hosnital., Afier his recovery he had been intersned in
the camp"'s Lands Onvoedings Gesticht!" at Bandoeng.,---From there
he was transferred in 1¢43 as a former soldier to the 15th
Battalion, Bardoeng; where he is now I don‘t know, In the 10th
Battalion, Patavia, T met in 1944, but I dc nct remember the
correct date, a seconi soldi-~r survivine from the above men-
tioned de*tachment, This sclidisr, age also about 30, was a
Eurasian, He told re tne followingi—--

I was eorderl to Lieut PCoTIA, (*r detachment was taken
prisoner at Tjiate~, after a hazd pattle, ever a hand to hand
fight, I remember for “nstance fhaet a fvropean soldier made

e riblp havoc arong Lﬂe Jananesp w1 S

gl

. wkel AT1 repreuned it'very huch
After being awnr>“eﬂied I saw tha that Evropean soidier was
thoroughly ill t.reated,---

Lievt. POSTUMA had given uvs the order not to tell who was
the comrardirg officer- of ovr detuchment, becavse he feared
that the Japanese would Lntorrcvaue him c0ﬂcern1ng fhu position
of the Dvteh trocus. D [ 1t
soldiers in an onen fjeid an

i er‘wo"wefe Tléd'tog ther in

grovns of 3 or 5 with puttses and rooe qu;fxn%Q we were
AR AT WA SRR

’maHVTHEEﬁﬁFWEfBW e T ETEREEER T Was. tieo ras the™p

f—wwnw

" e OD LU wneu we were machlncadnntq Fﬁe ll@ut€Pc‘
“received a sVot in ths back cf his henon He did mot dle &
'%HEE“E%&”?§%“& me noﬁ R R R, e ittle later the
"ITEﬁ’E?E?T qLeq, L Was nowwlauaily wotnded i Vsch, succeeded

A TR . e p—— i

T
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in disenseging nyself and to reach the rain road. Then I landed
in the Brndoeng hospitels. ———What his nare is and where he is ncw, I
dont know.

L I I A R R S

After clearly resding out snd persisting, he undersigns his
statenent together with ne, the recorder,

The Recorder: 3 The Witness
(Sizned) SCEUURMAN (Signed) W.MOOLJ

Aecorcins to which I heve nade up, sicned snd concluded this '
official record rccuriing to ry oath of office on the lst March 1946,

s The recorder:

(Sicned:) SCEUURMAN
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CERIIFICALTE

The vadersizned. CEARLES JONGENEEL, first Lisuntcnant B .N.T.4. h2od |
of The "ar Crimes Taection of NETEERLANDS IOFCES IWTELLIGENCE SERVEEHE |
NEFIS)Y being first duly sworn on o th deposes and sttes that the j
annexed origin~l Tuteh cocument (with Enzlish translation), drawn |

up by Christiasn ‘dolph Tehuurman, Tanctionary at the disposil of

the ‘Attorney General ot the High Court of Jvstice ot Batavia on

the 5th dav of Anril 1946, containing a sworn statement of Albers

""aes, soldisr, horn "arch 15, 1905 at Homnbersz, Gsrmany,

officinl records of the NEFIS,
Sign>ture: Ch. Jonzeneel /s/

(S

£

AL)

BATAYTL,. June 13th 1946,

Subscribsd and sworn to before me K,A. de VEERD, first Lisutenant .
B.N.T.A., Higher Officizl =2ttached to the Office of the ‘ttormcy
Genersl N.E.T. '

Tagrd

/s/ Ba de da
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we were shot =t from = mrchincgun standing some 1C meters
nearly onﬂ053t3. T £t . 1 wos shot in my peluis, fellidownm
~nd noticzd that the two fellow-victims tied to me fell over
S § tnwn: thay were doad- 2t once, I heeame unconseious.
This'was only for a2 short €time, for wien T recgainsed consecious-
ness L stil! heard the weehinczvn firing. I bheard that
severzl neople enlled (inidellays  ®Hoye pity and Kill ‘mefs

and henrd tham proying, sroeamin: and callin: for help. fhen
the f*ring wos stopned some 25 or 30 Jnnanese soldicrs made

2 rush for vs —ith fixed Bagen:ts. T oretended to be dead§
buf T looked for o whilc'at the cctivities of the J=panese
soldiors ond saw that they mmde 2 charzing movement in $he
dirgection of ths soldi:rs IVin: on the ground still groaning
ané seraaming The serzaming 274 groaninz of the victims
grcw 1lass ;nd ﬁftér a momant T did not hear the wietims zny
1ongar. T henrd sorm:body nZ bchind me »néd lost consciocus
negs, I do not knov how len romcined UﬁOOhCCWOUS, but I
ﬁst1M't4 it to b2 ~hout 3 horrs. T heard nothinz ana there-
faors crlled looldly ®Hove Thay cone?Y iLfter esllin:g Ghrce
times -somebdne ¢al” 2@ bueks - "¥es, thoy are zoms",. T theh URe
bovnd my ¥rists. ‘'hen my hangs were loose ané T sat up, ¥
noticzd that rmy clothing w~s wet with blood on my brzsast,
Unon investigzetion T foumd thoet I had 2 blezdinz wound on the
right side. and on3 on the left side of myv breast. T ore-
sumed then that I i d been transfixcd with 2 boyonet by a
Jonansss. - L wantec to stand ©£p bet found -faat tliS was
impossihle and I discoverad thrt T had fwo bullct-wounds in
my rizht groin! T eravlcd onm honds and knzes to the man who
had answered .. This aoasared to be JONKEERS, w=ll-knowh €6
wme, also of ovr ssection, e Found th:t he had beeh bhit by
bullets in his 7:53s. T vntied his wrists.. T s2w some 80
soldiers, helonzin: to the 2ns and 3rd scctions, lyinz on the
zrornd tw =@ Loz ‘tl T in grovps of thrse. I 539 th:t from
some of them thes syes hnd bzen put out, the h:nd hnd baen cut
off, the abdomen »ricksd open, &tec.  After having untisd
Jonksrs wa both erawled into the ouTLb)°rV T hrd severe
aains, but the blecding stovpsd. UTnEil 7 “rch 7y 1042,

wrovnd 14.0C o'clock, we remaimed in the shrubbsry then we
stombled off together. e Tfalberasd round the ficle for
three davs, “nﬁvﬂf+cr many priv-tions, we =rrived at the biz
eonmnrics blon i p from Sosbang to Lemhang 1

T covld not wall “1" mora and 1nid down in 2 hut 75 msters
from ti>2 rond. JONKERS ~1lso h rdly could walk 2ay more and
114d do'm next to me. Ve had ond vwe received no feof, whike
w2z granched oor thirst with rainmister. AfEar zbout & d*’.ys
JONYEFS stvmbled away and wanted to zet heln. T then ¥e-
mrined another six days in that hut without food, until T was
fatched aw=ay by 3 Japansse with a trvek, and brought to

Isola at Dembanz. From there thay took wme to the "Christelijk
Lyceum” (hizh school buildinz), where I w2s handaged up for .
the first time. 9n Merch 2% T s t2kon to the Itﬂ_it‘m“l
Hospitzl 26 Brndosns. The actinz practitionsy, Dreos v
OTT'RPKIREY, took photogranhs of me, according o which it came
out that »nrobobly 'y chist h>d been completely transfixed by

a bayonel, vithovk tovcn~1; any vital parts 3nd that the

neck of my rizht thizh-boue hacd been struck by 2 bullet. as

y resvlt of the hullot-wound I have now ~1lready hzen operated
three timcs on the bonge mentioned, this leg is some cenbi-
metars short:r than ths ogther one z2nd I ~m limpinz. - kater

on I reecived 2 ,,tt=r from JONKEIS in which he told me that
~ftsr he hnd 12ft me he had 1anded in Borromcus hosnital 2nd
that he hed F:oortJd {mnedistolyvher: I was and in what
condition., Thore JONKEERS 1s now, I do not kmow I co not
know which éivision of the Jinonese and uvndar which cormmander
stt~ckad vs thsrs, nor do I know who is responsible for this

mass murder.

'L "in
T

J
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[Lieut. T ABER was Company comrander. However, he wns with
the first szction and hWas ratre~ted a2t the last moments With
that scetion, He dozs not know anvthing about the miss
marder and thorsfore will not bs 3ble to mke an essential

fter reading out the above clenrly witness persists in his
st-terent, and si:sns thls report with me.

g3 L. TOES The Recorder:

(siznad:) SCHEUUR AN

s this ¢officinl record on my oxth of office, 8
Batavia, April 5, 1046,

R |

(sizned: ) SCHAER LN,

4
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CERTIFICATE

The undersigned CHARLES JONGENEFL, First Lieutenant
RoeN:.:IeAey head of the War Crimes Section of NETHERLANDS
FORCES INTELLIGENCE SERVICE (NEFIS) being first duly sworn
on oath deposes and states that the annexed report is a
full, true, complete and accurate copy of the original
document entitled:

"Eeport, drawn up by Capt. LEYDER R.N.I.A. d.d,
Changi, 1lith September, 1945, No. CM/190/R, con=
cerning the KALIDJATI-MASS~MURDER",

which document is a part of the official records of the
NEFIS.

SIGNATURE: /s/ Ch. Jongeneel

SEAL

BATAVIA 10 June 1946,

Subscribed and sworn to before me K.A. de WEERD, first
ieutenant RuN.I.A., Higher Official attached to the
Office of the Attorney General N.E.I.

SIGNATURE: /s/ K. A. de WEERD

e
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A“'— é L) OM,"190/R L]
REPORT

{bn th April 1942 interned as a P.0:.W. in the former
H.K,V, Was transported to KALIDJATI s commandant of a
detachment of 25 men.

From the then Col, of Mil, Air Force "KENCEN",
recelved the foilowing order: Report to the Japanes
Commandant of the sirbase KALIDJATI, trace, identify and

bury Netherlands and Allied soldiers killed at KALIDJATI,

I

To my detachment belonged the two medical surgeons of
the Mil, Air Force YLAY MOEXK FC" and "SYBESMA", After
reporting to the Japanese Commandant at KALIDJATI and
handing over my "safe ccnduct" written in Japanese, a
vapanese N.C.0., was appointed to conircl our actions. I
was allowed to Givide the detachment in three, each part
under the command of an officer (the two Medical Surgeons
and myself). Later on we had to form one group again.

Respectively we searched the main road with adjacent
banks along the norih and east side of the airfield (the
last as far as the entrance gete near the W.0.!s quarters)
and the Blast pens for our planes, north of the main road
opposite hangaer D¢ We were not aiiowed to search other
terrains. ©Several corpses were found, where possible
identified and buried on the spcte.

On none of the bodies were any identity discs found,
on a few a pass~port or some other papers.

Bodies of Dutch soldiers identified by us were:

a. Scldier (militie) “"SMEETS", ildentified by a
ring with inscription.

be Lt. (pilot) VBECKMAN", identified by Dutch
pass-port, ofificer's distinctives and spscial
distinction marks on his upper front teeth.

Ce Sub=Lt, "CAVIEY emcmmmamom. Do e ————— .

In the dispersal area we found in a garbage pit 3
corpses (not identilled) %tied togethsr, viz. the bones of
their forearms were tied together with one rope.

PARTICULARS: All the corpses found near the main road,

— v

lay in the drains covered by a layer of about 4" earth,
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They had not been properly buried, only more or less cleared
away s :

4s this had happened about 5 weszks before, corpees were
in a bad state of decompcsition, so that transport to an
improvised burizl ground would be impnossible under the
circumstances. The corpses in the dispersal area were

not buried at 211 and showed traces of damaging by pigs. | 71|

As a result the clothing was torn and parts cf the bodies| |
spreac in such a way that it was impossible to confirm
our iwmpression that they had besn shot.

Reasons for that impressioa:

lst, Tkhe wcpes

2nd, Attitude and mimics of the Japanese W.0, who could
cnly speak Japanese, but very decidedly pointed out
to us that we had to find 6 corpsesy)

After returning to BANDOENG a report was written by
me (I think in triplicate) snd handed over to Col, YKENGEN".
One of the copies was intented for the Red Cross repre-
centative at BANDCENG.

My detachment was the third that searched ths battle
fields with such an order. By personal (oral) communication
I was informed that® the Ma&dical Surgeons, lste. Cl, "HMOOY"
and "SIMONS" belcnged t> the detachments who found about
80 corpses at TJIATER-PASS. At ths place where they found
them a captured infantrery section is said to have been
machine gunned to death by th2 Jzpanese. I was snown a
list of names, as presented to the Red Cross Representation
at BANDCENG.

CHANGI, 11th September 1945

SAREL

(w.s. Capt. "LEYDER",)
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EN THE MATTER of War Crimes

and

: IN THS M.IT4R of the killing of
RiF ~nd RiF psrsonnal ~t SOEB.NG,
viest Jawa, on or zbout 11 or 12

March 1942, by the Jip~nese.

United N-tions ihr Crimes Commission
SN Y o PR S S I ST e S e
A A )
I, Pieter Gerhard Do VRIES, at present of King #dward Hotel, Pisr Street,
N/ PERTH, being duly suorn, mﬁka oxth and say as follows:!
1. Prior to the outbreak of war with Japan I was i-nager of the rice-mills
of the PALNOAK.H wnd_TJI SN L.MDS COLEANY of J.V., hersinafter called
"the Company", This Coumpiny was a subsidiary comp-ny of thu _n&lo—Dutcn
PLAREATIONs 6f Javi LEds, 7nd 75 SUoh Amiger I was stitionsd it FiG.Dai-
B.HOE, west Javi.-
In way 1940 I joinad the Duteh Voluntary Training Corps of Java. Rater
this Corps became merged in the Dutch Home Guard and I became a Sgt-ifajor
in it in January 1942. I was at SOEB.NG, North of B.lDOUNG, wast Java,
when the Japoness firse lended in WJave
Just shortly b‘fO”u the fall of oln” pore, o party of about 200 Ri.F
'nd RF Ground Stoff srrived in 4est Jdave f;on Singaporc ~nd this party was
billeted in quarters‘on the gsttes of my Company 2t SOEB.NG and nearby
places and members of this party helped to defend the military ~ir-port at
Ki¥IDd..TI: . number of these R.iF ~nd R¥ personncl wers placed in the
Private Hospital of ths Company 2t SCEB.NG ~s sick -nd wounded from attacks
i on the ~erodrome by the J2panssa, =t KIIDJLTI. Som:s were =lready suffering
i from mailarin when they. arrived from Singapore. I mysclf saw thesc persons
{ in the hospit~l on or 2bout 28 February 1942. There were approximataly
about 25 m.uF and RF patients in the hospital.

! 2. On the 1 March 1942 the first Jap-niese who l-ndad in Java landed
IRRATN, = fish harbour in vsst Java “bout 15 milss Fast of F.IM.NOIK M.
' They went vin P ILNOSK.N and P3G.DAi-B..ROE to SOEB.NG and arrived at my~- ° »
i Company's Head Uifice 1t SCEB.NG about 0730 hrs on 1 ilwrch 1942.:. I was-.mot.
present At S04B.NG when the J~ponese arrived »s it was part of the task of
the HOWd GU.ID to which I was attached to attack the supply lines of the g R
J pnise after they had possod through and I wns cngaged on this work.when =~ '~
| the Japrnese nrrived ot SCAB.NG, I leoft SOIB .G with my unit ~bout cpe hour. —i
before the Jdopancse arrived: On the 7 larch 1942 the Duteh army surréndersd:

| and the Hore Gu~rd was disbanded, . AL A
é. 3 Un the 23 .pril 1942 I ucnt - boek to 0B NG to start the rice-mills '; e
; g2in for the benefit of the ecivilian population. THC Feprosontitive VO OEImy B

! | Campany s Dircetors —skodreto @6 this =nd th. J pinese ordered it. Buforv

% the Jipmcss Trrived —tSUZB NG =1l The durope.ns ~nd some of the RuF -nd 3

t BE.F were evacuated tut there was no time to e¢vocuntc the pationts who wera oo

t in the private hospit:l of thes company. They were loft 1n the charge dtia

Dutch nurse, Sister J.NSdN, and n Indonesi-n Doctor, whose n'me I do not

| know, but h¢, however, fled before the J-panese arrived. The nurse remnined.

i When I returncd to SCAB.NG on the 23 .pril 1942 there were no il.'F or

; a'F personnel -t the hospit-~l. I wns told by numzarous Indonasi=ns that on

t or about 11 cr 12 ihrch 1942 some Japn3sc s0I1diSFs ontered tho Rospitaland

f Sistor JFTSEN - femrine—timt-her—prttentsWors bout to be ~tt-cked, took up

| 2 rewolver TO deland Lhili. .0 Eﬂu “personncl werc thon Lnken from the hos—

| pit-l and uyo-ritnesses told me tl-t the total, including the R.F nd R¥F

personnel, the nurse, the chemist's assistant ~nd his wife, ~nd 2 other
Buropens, wis “pOTOXIMTESYY 25,  yo-witnassis told mo Tht This awiber,

plus some women ~nd chIIGFam, Wore token on LL o;rI/ Horch 1942, to an air=

ETEH“‘BVItfr~In thorosbergardon =t oUnL.T and whan 2t the ir-raid sholtes

thay were 211 killaod by shooting or bayonueting by the Japanese soldiers who

h~d removed thum from the hospita 1.

———-—-—-—-—-—-—-—---l"
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4. In or about the month of M~y 1942, when th: Japancese gu~rd was tempo-
rarily =bsent, I ex~minced an akr-raid shelter unﬁul,l.tldu_ﬁnQun a5 bhe o
'Sacred Trzc! in front of the Technieal Department in SOZB.G. I went down
the air-ro 1d shelter ~nd thare found the skulls ~nd bones of seven human’
bodics. attemptsd to dis-intor the ran1{ns but could not do this ow1ng

'to the ruturn of the J poncss Guard,
— On onc of the rem~ins I found an identity disc besaring the words &

"ihite - R.iF", There were initials in front of thoe word “white" but I
cannot remember what they wers, Ona of tha skalstons was<thot of ~ woman.
I could tell this from the long h=ir on the skull »nd ths druss around the
skeleton,!

5. I do not know the name of the Jpnase Unit of which the Jopanesc soldiars
who entered the hospital were members, I have heard the nane of the J-p=nasa
who comm~nded these men but 1 h~ve forgotten it. The Japanese concerned,
howvv*r, were maembers of the first body of Jroponese troops to 1l/nd -t JRmeJN
n dest Java on ths 1 dinrch 1942, They were the first Jap-oness to land in
J’V‘ The min body of Japznese left SOMBLNG and fought thoir way to
B:NDONG between the 1 =nd 7 linrch 1942, They left one battalion or unit in
SOZB NG, This unit was still there on the 11 or 12 Jinrch 1942. It would
have been members of this Unit who were responsible for the death of the
RaoF and K.F personnel referred to, The Japansse Generzl in Command of these
troops would be the same General who accepted thé surrsnder of the Dutch
Forces 2t the K.LIDJ.LTI .dr Port on 7 swirrch 1942 from the Dutch Governor-
Generol and Commmndor-in-Chicf.

6. I nover saw 2g:in any of the R..F or R.F pasrsonncl alive whom I had scen
in the Company's hospit=1l =t 50.dB-IG on or 2bout the 28 Fsbru-ry 1942.

—

NS

S#WORN by the s~id Pieter Gerhard )
Da VRIZS =t Porth, in the State )
of ‘lastern fustralin this 7th ) /s/ P. G. de Vrics
day of Junc 1946. g

)

Before me  (n-me illegible)

i Commissioncer of the Supreme Court of
Western .ustralin for t-king uffidavits,

it
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The undersigned CHARLES JONGENEEL, First Lieutenant R.N.I.A., head
of the War Crimes Section of NITHERLANDS FCRCES INTELLIGENCE SERVICE
(IEFIS) being first duly sworn on oath deposes and states that the
annexed report is a full, true, complete and accurate copy of the
original document entitled:

"Report of the Sgt. of Marine "CRUELIS VIJLERIER®,
call No. 344/, concerning the imurder of 7 Naval PsW
in the vieinity of KZRTOSONC on the 5th March, 1942%,

No. Oi/L455/H,

wiich docunent is a part of the Official records of the NEFIS.

GINATURE:

03]
=

Charles Jongeneel

(Seal)

BATAVIA, 7th June, 1946,

Subscribed and sworn to before me K. 4. de WEERD, first Lieutenant
RelleTleiey Higher Official attached to the Cffice of the Attorney -
General NeleIe

/8/ Ee ie de WEERD
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(REPORT of the Sgt. of liarine "COAN.LLIS VIJIBRIAFY, call, No. 3444,

concerning the murder of 7 Waval F.I.'s in tha vicinity of KAKTUSONO
on the 5th liarch 1942,

‘hen the war with J2»an broke out, I was Aquartercd in the liayal Barracks
1Goebeng" at oCURBaJ.. In the night of 4th tc 5th of March 1942 I left
for DJOLBANG with a section of about 24 erlnns) under the command of
Sgt. kajs Mo VUS!, 'iL order to join tne Havy Battalion under the command
of It., Gol. of the Inrines, "RCEICES:NT, e ~irived at DJOMBALNG at aboub
0430 hrs. and weres dltwmlyd to oux Ccapzny untder the command of 2nd. Lte
of the warincs, "en LaTOGY, After 2 few hours® rust wa stirted by car
in the direction of *TuRTUSONG. In the vicirnity of this place we wore com-—
pelled to leave our cars and dispersed 1o séek shelter in the nsighbouring
villnges, Violent dechine-gun and gortir fire coused @ confugion, but after
some time a mumber- of us were re-asstibled; ».,0. Sgt. Maj. D& VOS®, Sgts
Midshipman "DUHLI <aCCBs), the Cpi. ifdshipman "oCHOANZATTZR" and myself,

ﬁ\ letor¢thvr 12 men, LOEJthvr we tried to return to DJOLBANG, but at 1300

4

-

hrs. vie were éncircled by Jopanese md crptured. The Marine lst. Ci.
"RaTTANBURG! hud o bayonet wound in kis bock, but ncvertheless he was able
to walk with us. :idth our hands tied on our backs we were placed in 2 rice
ficld under the gutrd of 2 Japrnese. who sceized this opportuaity to rob us
111 our posscsasions. At about 1800 hrs. we were taken to the inner-
court of o rice factory in the neighbourhood where we had to pass the nishby
still handcuffed,
On the 6th of warch 2t daybreak we woere taken to the mnin rond where we had
to clos¢ ronks. g wore oprderaed to dook straight -hend. Then many of our
fellows were led away by Jap-nesa ~red with bﬂyonVJsAlnd rifles or swords,
to a spot some distance ink about 11 yards. I.could not seg but
iy hbww _1hjt,hxpp;nqd. The v1ct1ns were killed by bayonetting

v a fow shots were

g

21233;——The‘&'~"nus_,c~mu h*Pk c¢hqn’d thvlr bluOd-St“ln‘O Wepons. :.g_,

threw the dirty rags in our i“c‘s. LS
“nd‘mgg;lf_g;;h,Lq~_on&=-su+nlvQ“s» Sgt. inj. "D& VUS" had escaiped.| I
tnlnh th~t in this fshion the Jpanese murdered the following persons:

the sariner 2Znd Ci. SRATTANBULG" ™ =

the kariner 3rd. cl. "V.bk LAgU. 4l

the Eilitin chouffour "DAIJIN.

I do not know the nan:s of the guilty Japanese nor am I likely to recognigze
then if confronted, except one¢, who crme back more the once to fetch some—
one of our group,  Jhen the three of us wers laft, a Jnpanese appeéared,
apparently the londer, whareafter we were taken to o railway bridge in the
1czn1t" of £dRTUSUNO where 2 J2pnnese Officers were present; a 1st It, and
presumnoly an interpreter,
Hore we were interropated. ifidshipran "DHUKWAI J.COBS" wns first, he was
violently beaten with +hp shezth of 2 sword beeause {25 ho told us aftar—
W rds)hv W~s unible 1O iV sufficiont informtion. I wns the scecond to be
interrogated. Thrvitvnlni ne with thrashing ~nd denth they asked me several
guestions concerning Or‘vr vf Battle ete, I could not give any inform=tion
either, Finally "SCHOZNZ.TT Ig" was interrog-ted in the same fashion.

dhen the interrogation had ccae to an end, we were tied together by our .
arms, so tightly tht the blood eirculation was seoriously impeded. Then
we were thrown on o tnnk riding with = transport in the direction of
SOUR:B.Yie /¢ were beaten and kicked whenever we asswied 2 position the
Jdpanese did not approvae of.

This occurred in the forenoon of the 6th lMarch 1942. In the ovening they
stopped and after a short delay the trip was continued. This went on fer
two days, during which time we had neither food nor drink, Then suddenly
we were led to a closed ear, still tised togother, and tzken to the large
bridge nenr LHCDJOK&RTO, There we had to ~light and e¢ach of us was tied
separately to a vertie=l rail ‘serving °s a barricadc on the road. Onaaess
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wire draym up os hish =2s possible 218 we wara pub under gu-rd of 2 J-poness
soldier, who Kickud id bueat us whea he saar ‘that we becam: tired, This
happened durdng the nizht of the FEh and &th of «nrch 1942. Lt day-brsak
we wepe untied ~nd thrown into a shed soma distancs aw~y. Therc our hends
wore unticd and for the first tima sines our copture we were given some rice
Lo srbe we could hawdély use owr hands 5s ctr hands and rns wers almost
miralyszed.  Shortly ~ftorwards, we wers trensported by car to SIDC.HIJIO

whore we #:ore tokon t6 o building (I t.dnk the formor Governmont's Offica)
situnbod 3w = l7rse sowrrd. Therd wo-oaasscd the night of the &th Go Ehe
9th of iimrch 2nd wure givon sone £006.

at oIDV.LHDIO we wore interre: ted agdn by = lst Li. nssisted by an intar-
vreber, &y dntorro.-bion - ns Retizdly A ftorturs, Throestening pe with
ienth they intoerrog:ted ne for two hours, but I wes unnble to givs informa—
tivn about strungth of .rmy -nd Favy Forees, nor could I mention ths namss
of ths Comianders ©f thuse Foress.) The following morning 2 Japmnusy in-
foried us of the cagdtulnticn, aC wurs transiorted to SUUR.B.LYA and im-
srisoned in tho Showgrounds.

; wialilha, 13th October 1945,
{ Bl Suvek. of inrincs,
Sigrias MG Wy JIBRTAFY,

\

For Trus eony

ha Sserutry of €04
i Thol San. Officer.o ;i
Saenads  MHoJWG, Wl
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IN THE MATTER OF JAPANESE WAR CRIVES
IN JAVA

British National Office Charge No:

United Nations War Crimes Commission Reference:

AFFIDAVIT

I, Major-General HERVEY DEGGE WILNOT SITWELL, MC, of Maze
Cottage, Oakleigh, Bedford, meke oath and say as follows:-

1. In 1942 I was General-Officer-Commanding, British Troops in Java.

I surrendered British troops in Java to Lt. Gen. Maruyama, Commanding
Second Guards Division, Imperial Japanese Anny. The formal surrender
'was negotiated through an interpreter M. Kohri(?), who was the Japanese
Consul at Surabeya. With me was Air Viece Marshal 3altby, who surrendered
the Royal Air Force on the Island.

2. Then the terms were originally handed to Air Vice Marshal Maltby and
myself..thgz;;ggg_g{_%ggonditional surrender, and that sll troops would
obey absolutely any orders of the Japanese troops.f' 1,and 1 Think Alx
Vice Marshal Maltby also, asked VMaruyama through hi's interoreter whether
that would mean that we would have the benefit of the Geneva Convention.
The General said that we should certainly have the benefit of the Geneva
Convention, and accordingly a statement to this effect was included in the
surrender terms. The surrender terms were signed by Air Vice Marshal
Maltby, Brigadier Blackburn (Commanding Australian troops), Colonel Searle
(Cormanding U.S. troops), and myself (Commanding British troops in Java).
There were present at the signing of the surrender on the Japanese side
Colonel Oki, Chief of Staff to General Maruyama, Iajor Saitu, Senior
Intelligence Officer, the General's ADC, Lt. Tachibana, and the interpreter.
Air Vice Marshal Maltby suggested that the word "lawful® should be inserted
before the word "orders", but the Japanese refused to insert this word,
arguing that no orders given by the Japanese would be illegal, and further
that we were completely covered against illegal orders by the nromicse that
the conditions of the Geneva Convention would be fulfilled. The

surrender was finslly effected on 12th March, 1942.

3. On or about 20th March, 1942, I was sent for and interrogated by
Saitu. He asked me a number of guestions which I refused to enswer, the
upshot of whick was that Saitu said I must answer and that I was only a
prison: r. He then threatened me and said that it would cost me my life

if I i1 not answer. I said that under the Geneva Convention he could not
meke u e of threats. His e swer to this was that Japan only stuck tc the
Geneva Convention when it suiced her the same as Britein did. I got ancry
at this and turned my back o:. Saitu, whereupon he gave an order to the
guard and I was taken outside. I was eventually taken to a cell where
was handed over to about 5 dirty Japanese who were in uniform, although

Ll 2
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do not know of what formation. They proceeded to beat me up wi.h their
hands and boots, kicking me in the ribs frequently and about the h. ad.

They endeavoured to remove my badges of rank which I was wearing, au’ I was
eventually knocked unconscious. I still have the effects of this beauing
in a bump on the top of my head. I was kept in this cell for 10 days with
my hands handcuff{ed behind my back, and for L, days with my hands handcuffed
in front of me, with no food for some days except for 2 balls of rice
‘given to me on the first day, and without any water for 2 days. I was only
released from the handcuffs for feeding and to carry out natural functions.
During the time I was released from the handcuffs there was a guard standing
over me. The guards were changed every 24 hours.

4. At the end of 14 days I was taken from the cell to another building
where I was agein questioned, mostly on matters of a personal and non-
military nature, all of which questions I answered. During the time I was
in the second building I was kept under conditions which though not
physically uncomfortable, were mentally extremely so far as there were some
25 Dutch and Indonesian prisoners, some of whom were  taken out during the
day and beaten up and returned in a fainting condition covered with blood,
|obviously as a result of being beaten up. Some were ill-treated in the
room and one never knew when one's own turn was coming. This ill-treatment
‘occurred inh the R.C. School at Bandong. The other 3 Senior British Of ficers
who were present were Brigadier S.R. Pearson, Air Commodore Staton, RAF, and
(//j Group Captain Bishop, RAF. The person who interrogated me at this school
I would describe as about 5'7%/8" in height, obviously pure Japanese. He
spoke English well. He did not wear any badges of rank, but wore some sort
of uniform. His mode of attack was that the British were excellemnt, but
they had been let down by the Dutch and the Amerlcnns. So far as I know

'
M N

the Japanese build up of the reign of terror in_Bandong°

Ly After /i days in the school I was taken to Soekamisken jail. We stayed
in Soeksmisken jail until 18th April, 1942. I have no complaints with
regard to this place beyond shortage of food.

6. I give the following deseriptions of the persons nemed in this affidavit:
Maruyama Tall; spoke English very well; slight build; rather fair

for a Japanese; fair hair; he knew Java very well and told
Air Vice Marshal Maltby at an interview that he had lived
in Gerraret (?) in the island for 2} years before the war.

Saity Very dark; wc re spectacles; very Japenese in appearance:
; rather a projzcting jaw; had a most villainous face.

Oki Very dark; did not wear spectacles; very Japanese in
appearance; rather fat face with projecting jaw:
villainous looking.
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KEohri A Svise; tall; very sallow; very thin in the face; wore
pinc:-nez (I think); lived in Surabaya before the war.

SWORN by the said Major-General )
HERVEY DEGGE WILMCT SITWELL, MC, )
at 6 Spring Gardens in the City )
of Westminster, this 10th day of )
December, 1945, )

Before me

(sgd) R.C. Halse

Colonel
Mil.Dept., Legal Staff.
Of fice of the JAG,
LONDON,

I certify that this is a true copy of the originsl affidavit.

/s/ Rathereedan Captain

Legal Staff,
Of fice of the Judge Advocate General.
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AINTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR THE FAR EAST
No. 1 _
UNITEL STATES OF AMERICA AND ORS
ins
ARIYI. Sadao AND OFS

I, Roy Palmer BULCOCX, of Amity
Point, Queensland and formerly
10¢313 F/0 R P Bulcock, R.A.F.
153 M.U., now discharged, being
duly csworn, make oath and state
as follows: -

1. I was 109313 Flying Officer Roy Palmer Bulcock, Ro.A.F.
153 M.U. . when I was captured by the Japanese Forces in Java
on 8th March, 1942.

2. On 9th May, 1942 we moved to Jaar larket Camp at Sourabaya
where we were accommodated in grass huts with mud floors. Rain
came through the roof at all times. Sanitation consisted of
holes in the ground which constantly overflowed and there would

be about six inches of excreta to walk through before getting

to these hcles.

Bia The food at this camp was quite inadequate and the
health of the prisoners began to deteriorate. Dysentry was
very bad and in addition there were many cases of beri beri
and general vitaminosis. flifjgggﬁg_ggyo us no medical

supplies whatever,

b The.work consisted mai aft
gun~pQa2gL_£:5lln_.ln_aan-a&&é-tzenahes, preparing aerodromes9

naking petrol dumps gnd store.dumps, cleanlqg up buildings

nd oi reflnerles and _moving larce pipes. It was very

heavy work and alwout impossible for "men in a weakened condition.
We were beaten whenever we would not 1lift the weight. Torking
parties had to be made up to the required guota and sick men
were forced to worko

e On 5th September 1942 we moved to LYCEUM Camp where
2,400 men were crowded into a camp designed for 600 students.
The work was similar to that in the previous camp, sanitation
showed no improvement, and a dysentry outbreak caused 15 deaths
in a short period. Corporal punishment was inflicted fre-
guently for conduct such as whistling in the bathroom.

6o On Sth January 1943 we moved to JAAR MARKT Camp and the

Japanese ruards attacked us and bashed us more frequently than
-
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ever, Bamboo poles and hardwood blocks were used to beat

the prisoners. The Japanese were experts in not breaking
bones. They caused the buttocks of the victims to swell.

The prisoners were made to kneel down ané they were then beaten
on the soles of the feet or on the small of the back. At

this time the practice of making prisoners bash one another
was started. If they did not hit each other severely enough,
the offenders were beaten into unconsciousness by as many as
six guards.

e In March 1943 we were forced to load boubs, petrol and
light armoured vehicles on to ships marked with the Red Cross.

g. On 20th May 1943 we moved to CYCLE Camp, BATAVIA. At
this camp I saw SONE, the Japanese Camp Commandant, bash a
Dutch of ficer about half a dozen times on the face with a coil
of heavy wire. The officer's face and eyes were injured. On
another cccasion a Dutchman named KRAJENLINCH was not quick
enough in saluting a Jananese guard. The guard stood the
Dutchman to attention and hit him with full force on the point
of the chin. The victim was knocked unconscious and fell on
the concrete floor. &s a result of this, the Dutechman suffered
concussion and died.

9. In November 194/ we moved to BANDCENG, ‘“hile at this
camp seven Australians were beaten on the head by the Japanese
guards with iron bars for failing to salute the guard room.

I swezar that the contents of this my affidavit are to
the best of my knowledge and belief true in every particular.

cigned and Sworn by the ) %
withinnamed deponent at ) s T ¥
Point Loockout this twenty )

fifth day of September. . %

1946,

BZﬁbre me ) o /[ QsE: Roberts
A Justice of the Peace. )
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TTER OF' JAPAIRSE AR CRINES AND
CIER OF Giy IIL-TREATMEALT OF 2 ;/ / /
‘nqu‘mnS JF WAR AT CI: GLODOK Y &
£ 1948

£z lJall

I Red T

I, Lieutenani Colonel Cyril Wallace MAISEY of the Hoyal Army Mecdicel
Corps, with home addéress at School Louse, loocbridge, Suffolk, =zke oath
anc say as folloirs:

% I wes teken orisoner by itke Jevanese on Marck 8, 1942, in Jeve end I
arrived et the prisoner ¢f war cemo known s boie Glocok on the 10 April
1942. I stayed in this ceamp until May 28.

o During uy stey in thi

v

S
cemap. I wouvld Cescrive the goneral conditioms in this camp as very bac; .
it wes very“avercrowiec., scnitery arrenmgements were guite inaCequate, ané
the foot wes Ted ané inscequete. L1he mein food consisted of rice, end this
rice was in a very bed comntihion; it was Tull of meggsets snl weevils. There
wasg a8t TLis vim SHTY €T LO0C TICE EVETIEUIE TUT The Javencse authorities
woulé. not suooly us with it.

cemp I was the senior medicel officer uof the
¢

3. The medicel arrangements were ciﬁggzg_i_gi_?ltncu =k there were plenty
of melicines eveilehle in the camp tke capencse refused to sllow the coctors
%0 meke use of them. For exemple they only supolied ue with twenty asvirin
tzblets whick they said were tc last us for a week sltlough there were ower
= thousend catients suffering from very EIEh Tever. ALss trev Terusst 1o
Suosly WE Wt —alarTEl StaiN t6 enrble Us torclacnoss meleris, =lthoush
this serum coull Feve veen odleined from the cheuists sh+ps within fifty
yeris of the cemp. 4Ls # result of the lack of medical supplies tue
prisoners sufferec considerstly 2nd ware reduced to ¢ veskexnel condition.

4. The hygenic contitions in this cemp were socelling. The Jepesnese
authorities hed issuel en order that no refuse wes to te teken out of the
cemp. As a result there wes 2 lorge cuentity of fo.c refuse, verticulary

= —

T et

pouliy-sice, vhick tle orisoners coulc not e=t end this resuliec In 8
lerge n%,-er of fliss, I pcintec out o the Jeosnese thet this wouldl

restlt in an out—breek of cysentery. After stout trree weeks of repested
recucsts by myself and Group Ceptein Noble, tle oeosnese ellowed this refuse
to De teken eut of the cemp, but by this time the Camege Lel Teen lone, znd
there was arn out-bresk of dysentery, which, efter I left the cemp ceceme
very severe.

5 S.netime about the last week in Awrll or tkhe first fortnight in Mgy
tkree Royel Air Force prisoners of wer msce en sttempt to esceve. I uncer-
stenc thet their jlar weeg to steel an weropipne fror an serocrome rear

the cemp where they were working. I uncerstond thot these prisoners were
ceught By the Jdevenese end executed. The Jepenese authoritiesg tocléd Group
Czotein Noble the senior british officer, thet they hed been skot for e
izore serious offsnce then trying to escepe. They CGid not specify what

this offence wes.

Bis During the first week in Mey e young Jo;zl &ir Force prisuner had
acute intestinel ovstruction wkich necessitated en immediete coerstions
The Jeoenese refused ts grent eny fecilities eitker for hiz to be moved

to hosopital or for instruments to e vrovided so tket ke could te cperated
on in the cemp. A4s e result this prlsvner ¢ied. This wes & typicel
examole of the attitude of the Jeosznese tovards the sick orisoners end

their refusel to troviie fecilities whick wvere reslily aveilebls.

,4i In my ovinion the Jepenese who were resovonsible for the ill-trestment
{ e s - : via -
(ané t=d conCitions of priscners of wer in thie cenp were the Commencant
8 :
T ——




0y
m
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of the ceixp, the sowcvllcc c.oe ki % ith penese who were in comuend of
Bafteviz. I Gornot know i Jayenese. 1 cescribe
the Japesnese coctor as I ge 2tout 3 iereht S AR rery el

tumiilb: DisckEsir: very

SWORN by the s2id CYRIL )
a2t 6 Soripg Gercens im the City of LESTMINSTER)
this 2n¢ cay of JaunUARY 1946. ) (Signed) C.W.MaISHEY

ormepe ey

BEEORE Mk (Signec) R.G. ée L. WORMEIL,
lejor, Legel %tﬂff

“;-At"r" Depar

ACvacete Gencrel's Office

-

of tke originel affidevit.
/ e Ty igi s e e n s
[8/ Hethereecan Ceptein
Leogel Steff;
Office uf the Judge Advocets Genersl.
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MD/JAG/FS/IC /113

[‘:_ THE MATTER OF JAPANESE WAR CRIMES AND

IN THE MATIER OF THE ILI-TREATMENT OF

PRISONERS OF WAR AT L.0.G. LANDSOP CAMP

BENDOENG, JAVA

AFFIDAVIT
I, Lieutenant Colonel Cyril Wallace MAISEY of thée Royal Army Medieal

Corps, with home address at School House, Woodbridge, Suffolk, make oath
and say as follows:-

1. I was taken prisoner by the Japanese on March 8, 1942 and after being
in various camps and hospitals in Java, I was finally transferred in May
1945 to L.0.G. Landsop camp, Bandoeng, Java. The general conditions in
this camp were very bad mostly owing to over crowding. This camp was
originally a boys' reformatory designed fc house 250 boys; after I had
been in the camp about a week there were over four thousand prisoners
confined in this camp. Naturally the sanitary arrangements were totally
inadequate and the water supply also inadequate.

2. The food was inadequate and less and less was supplied as time went

on. Although the supply cf food was more difficult for the Japanese at

this time there was food available as was proved by what we could buy through
the canteen; when we were allowed to do so. We were not allowed often to
buy food through the canteen as the Japanese authorities were continually
closing the canteen for long periods as a collective punishment.

3. The medical supplies were very inadequate and it is clear that there
were supplies svailable. In particular the Japanese refused to supply

PP

insulin for the diabetic patients. ifter the capitulation of Japan large

| supplics of medical stores, including insulin, were brought into the camp.

In addition the Japanese only supplied us with a small gquantity of the Red
Cross medieal supplies which had arrived in the ecountry. Large supplies
of Bed Cross stores were brought into the camp after the capitulation,
these had been stored outside the camp. The hospital accomodation was
guite inadequate and there were hospitals outside not far from the camp
which could have been made available easily.

, u The prisoners in this camp were frequently beaten up by the Japanese
guards, and received such punishments as being made to kneel down g ¥
night outside 7ear1”g,oriy*a pairmdf"“ﬁérfs “although fﬁf“condltlons were
‘wery cold, The Japanese mainly responsible for this ill-treatment was

Corporal Kasiama. I also believe that this corporal mede large illegal
profits out of the canteen. On one occasion when the Japanese had called
for the pames of prisoners who had expert knowledge of marine engines the
British prisoners refused to supply any names. &s a result all the
prisoners were paraded and all officers of the rank of Major and above were

paraded before Sergeant Major Mori Sasau, who proceeded to hit them with
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his fist, myself includel and Wing Commander Alexander the senior British
officer. Many of the ofi'icers were knocked unconscious; I myself lost a '
back tooth and Wing Commander ilexander had his jaw broken., 4lthough he
did not take part in the beating I am of the opinion that Corporal Kasiema
was largely to blame for this beating up owing to the false report that

he made to Sergeant Major Mori. I remained in this camp until the capitu-
lation of Japan on the 15th August 1945. On the 19th of sugust 1945

that is after the capitulation of Japan, the Japanese produced large sums
of money whiah they eteted had come from the Red Cross. I have no doubt
that they had been in possession of this money for a considerable time,
but they had never supplied any to the prisoners although I and cther
officers had made repeated reguests for this money which we had reason

to believe was in the hands of the Japanese. We were in great need of
this money for medical supplies and extra food.

SWORN by the said CYRIL WALLACE MAISEY )
at 6 Spring Gardens in the City of WESTMINSTER )
this 2nd day of JANUARY 1946, )

)

BEFORE ME
(Signed) R.G. de L. Wormell,
Major, Legal Staff,
Military Department,
Judge 4dvocate General's Office.

(Signed) C.W, MAISEY

I certify that this is a true copy of the original affidavit.

/s/ Rathcreedan Captain
Legal Staff,
Cffice of the Judge Advocate General. |

—_—
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T*¢ uUndersigned (V.EKLES JONGINEEL, first lieutensnt
ReNolelo Yead of tre Vier Crines Seetion of NETFLIL.NDS
FOECLS INTELLIGILECL SLIVICL (NLFIS) being first duly sworn
on oetr deposes £nd stotes tret the snnexed /ffidevit,
entitlcds

Sworn stetcment of G, J. DISSEVILT, drted June 7tr 1946,
concerning execution of esceped prisoncrs of wer,

Pes been teken from tre officisl receords of t*e NEFIS.

SIGNLTUERE:s /s/ Crerles Jongeneel

Si.L

Betevie, June 7tr 1946

YEIE, L. de Yicer

Subseribed end sworn to before-me, K, /. de WEEED, first
lednten~nt E.N.I1.A. Figher Officis]l sttzetred to tre Office
of tre attorney-Generzl, N.E.I.
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Lffidevit

STATLLENT OFs g: J . DIGEEIREIN. offieicd for Fest isis
sistic Lffzirs: Bl i, TON.I.L. (EN. 15505

living 2t Betavisa,

Duly sworn stetes: I o 33 yeexs of #ge, of Duteb
nttlonﬂllty ~nd born 2t ARNFEM, ¥OLLIND
(FOLLLND) . My permenent rone is
BLTAVIA where I 2m living ¢t presente.

On 4April 19tk 1942 (if I »r not nisteken) I
wes trensferred fron t-e "Lronésopvoedingsgesticht" et
Bi-NLDOERG, wrexr¢ I Y=d been interned = few d=ys before,  te
tre int&rnﬂé;f&E\go Depot Bettn. Tre Jrprnesc guerd detrch-
ment, @K<1b1f i)/of t*is ecrn1p wes under commend of Cept.
'Qu\u}, ‘f% cted to Fim were 2.0, lst. Li, "SLETEY end
B ™ ir'“‘BE”.

DuteY Cerp Commendsnt wes Col. "TOOEOP" znd Cepl,
Inf, "i.. PLAULISSINY wes “is edjutsznt. Interpreters for
lierison with tre J-penese Crmp Commend were, EFeso. 1lst. Lt.
Infe Yia¥. de FEERE", "G, J. JONGEJLNB™ enc mysell, efter
my trensfer from the L.O.G. Col. "IOCEOP™ wes trensferred
dn the nigrt of tre 21/229md of Lpril #nd in Yis fanction
of Cerp Cormondent Ye wes succeeded by Lt. Col, "POULUSY.

In tre nmorning ef trec 22nd of ~ipril 1942, whren
I stood in front of tre rouse wrere I wes lodged, (2 8tr
cle rousc =zt tre end of SOCIETEITSTELLT, oppnosite thre
nlllt”IV Club), I sew # group of J=penecsc SOldlLIS, pﬁsc1ng
along, "CCOIp?Dl(Q by o mumber of Jepenese officers, lesding
th ree DutcY privetes wrose Yands were tied togethrer on
treir becks., I Yod scen tresc 3 persons before ot the
#ilitery Club, t»cn occupiecd by tre Jeprnesc guerd detach-
ment, 2nd I knew t*at s2id persons were czught during an
gattempt to escepe fror tve ezmp. If I ar not mistaken
reguests were narde by tre Dutcer Cemp Correznd for thre
releese of trese escepecs trrougr tre interpreter Lt.
Hde FEER,™ but without successs

I received orders to join tre group 2nd I =2t onee
esked W,0. "MATANLBL", wro wes onc of tve zccompenying Jeps,
miet all tFis ncent, Fe informed me tret thesc people had
been ceugrt during-an-cndcevour to ;sgPUg, wrereby one of
trer wes found to be in possession of & revolwver (cr. rad
msed @ revelver, I am not sure wick) snd tret trey were
to be punistred now.

Upon eur srrivel =t tre srounc in front of &fre
gn£~lpLLni Alll_”LLcPtoo 1" ¢ 7 23 t*rce Doter miIif???_iZE@
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togetrer on treir becks. 4As berind trem tre lodgings of
numerous P.V.'s were loceted, I got saque Yope trat my feer
of execution wes unfounded, beceuse eppe r:ntlv 1o srootlng
could be donc ¥ere. : e

~nt oppros in"tcly 10 yerds distent fron tre victims
fecing t'c¢ vietims, tre Dute* Unit Cornmendents Fec to line
up., ?,oo;LIA_Cnlg_"POULUS”, Cept. "o PLULISSEN",; Li. Cols.
WFLRLIINKY, "FILLEY, "KIRZFL", Syew LLTEN:Y, Med, Off, 1lst.
Cl. "L.i PE®, lirj. WS.NTOSO" end Crpt. "YOFE PO SIOB",

0~pt. nEUTAKLTEUM deldivered 2 specch to trese
cfficers, wrict he ordercd me to trenslete; ttris speeckh
enountcd to t*c following: trese trree militery rad
compiitted = serious trensgression, by 2ttcrpting TOo escrpe,
Tor which thcy *rd to fTONC Yo, — TFe Dte™ officers prosent
WETC Teld rcsponsible roI tris trensgression, beeruse owEng
to lexity trey Yed not been 2ble to prevent Tre c3CPDEs

Tre¢ victims were tren blindfolded end by orders
of "EKLVAEKLTSU" 6 Joprnesc soldiers fell out =nd toek up
treir positions: two In ITONT O €zc™ v1cf1n, TITIC In
?(ﬁa VltF‘?ixca bﬂvonbta

is I understood frem YKLVAKLTSU"'s words end frem
tre preperstions pedc t*et gn Lxccution would toke ploce
pfter 211, I went up to Copt, "EKLWKETEU" ond asked Pinm
wrethor 1t would be permitted to tfkc down tre lrst wishres
of trc¢ 3 militery. ifter Ye bed gilven ris consent I went
up to trem #nd took dovn in # note-book treir nemes end
tre nemes of treir neerest rclﬁtvas.

ifterwerds I prssed tresc dot2 on to Lt. Col.
BPOULESY,. Trcir nrres werc: WETLRRREW, ®UFRINSY end
MEKLAESSINS" (possibly not spelled in the rig?t wey)e. Tre
firet two were of t e K.N.I.L., tre third wes £ nilitie
seilor. VYKLESCSENS" asked ttc fevour of dying unblindfoldcd.
Tris request, prssed on to "K.'LKLTSU" by mc, wos grentcd
by T”:Lm “nd f" b"nd“fe WEE TEREN Olte @ T

T?ercon "LJ ’nllSU" '"ve tPe order to cemmence

' =nd the Jops stertcd jumping to ~nd fro to teke up tre

required position. "KLESSLNS" excleimed, "Long livc tre
Queen', =nd the¢ Jrops commenced bﬂvonctln\ treir i

wrich went on for sore tinec, Qpe DULCP officcr (Drog,lal PEY)
could-not—hear Lre. sleugrter, ond collﬂpscd muc* to the
emgg;&g%ziof some J° pTnese offlccrs~ LEvex sevc Tame o
~t}_L¢VAC 11:’15,_, CUV&,:LLL\ e wu&uma weL e 1”"1’1&11’1” llmﬁllf-«—m

t¥c brrbed wirc., "RIESSINE™ RIobrbLY Gicc cuickly but

enc of tre two soldiers drew up *is tortured body covered

witF bleeding wounds, rnd scid: "I oL AOT yct deed, I 2

e ———————

A A et A R A TR et — = g
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still 21ive." Pecrcon the slsughter recommenced until the
JPD wes sotisficd. We were ordered to return TO Ctre.
berrecks #nd on lerving the grounase I sew o Jepenese officer
go up to Bre 3rd viectim (not MELESSENS", nor tre men wro

Yad stood up during Yis szony) end s*cot rim trroug: tre
Perd wittr Yis revolver. Ewvidently this pen Yed not yet
dieds = S A e

In t»c oftcrnoon thc corpscs were loosened from
t»e berbed wire fence, under supcrvision of tre sbove mentionec
Tt. "JONGEJLNS" 2nd W.0. "MiT HEBEM™ znd token to tre burial
grounds.

Edgncturcs /s/ Gs J. Disseyent

Sworn before me: YK.li, dc BHIERD", 1st Lt. E.N.I..., senior
official atteerecd to the iLttorney Generel,
NeEoIs

Signeture: J/s/ K. L. de Weerd

Ttis 7itr dex of Junc 1946,
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CERTIFICLTE

The undersigned CELRIES JONGENEEL, first Lieutenant R.N.I.4., head of

the Wer Crimes Section of NETHERILNDS FORCES INTELLIGENCE SERVICE (NEFIS)
being first duly sworn on ocath deposes and stetes that tie annexed tw7o
report are full, true, complete and accuratc copy of the original document
entitled:

"], Report Dcornbos P, Mzjor art., Tjimahi October 22nd
1945, C4/153/E.
2. Sumnery of xamineticn of s.H.J. IEURS, Oii/156/B,

both concerning executions in 6th Depct Bett. -
POT-Camp Tjimshi.

7hieh documents ere part of the officicl records of the NEFIS,
SICNATURE

BLTLVIA, June Tth 19L6.

/s/ Ch Jongeneel (SE4LL)

Subseribed and sworn to before me K.i. de Weerd, first licutenant R.N.T:iks,
Higher officinl ettached to the office of -Ahc ittorney-General N.E,I.

/s/ K. &. de Weerd
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OM 153/E 807

MReport DOORNBOS - Executions Camp VI Batt., TIIMAHI - short report about
executions of 2 PCis as mentioned in camporder of 20 Oct. 1945.

1. Undersigned was Camp commender during the period of 16 4pril

1942 until the 22 October 1942 of the 4th POW camp 6th Depot Batt. at TIIMAHI.

25 During this period two executions took place in this camp, the

cannonier Artillery van BRA&M.

Si- Above mentioned persons left the camp at night a fer times to
pay a v&it to thcir families in their residence BATCEDIADILR.

2 They were warned several times by their comrades to be careful
because the Jap occupation did not stick to the Geneva Conventicns
concerning death executions with respcet to "escaped PCWs*

[On May 5th according to my memory at about 9 O'clock Jap. time,
a Jap corporal arrived-on-the big midfield, used es sportfield, and held
above his head a cloth attached to two bamboos on which was written down
with black letters: "these people will be shot® (Malay "Nanti ini oTang
dlpasang?) on this proclamation as well on verbal orders the POils _assembled

on the sportsfield 3500 or 1000 in all myself as well as all the officers. -

ShorIl1;ﬁJ3muLih;s_EEEﬂ¥XhL4u#Lqua;lﬁhum&*__re led into the camp tied te-
cach other and hands bebird the »ack.

They looked very beaten up which was apparent from the bloody
stripes and wounds visible all over their bodies. They were in a sort
of trance and it appeared that they did not have the faintest notion
what was going to happen. Later on it ‘appeared that they were compelled
to be present at the executions in the 4th battalion from which they just
eame back.. after that the two condemned persons were put against the
walls of the still existing dug-outs and I was ordered to 7af€E’ﬁ§:’éxe-
cution from close-by., «ll my protésts which absence of an enterpreter
were done by sign to stop the cxecution were in vain.

The Jap Lt. TATLNALBE in charge of the execution told me by
the word "mei-ree® (c¢rder), which Jap word I knew, that he was obliged
to carry out the arder. Lt. TATANABE was very pale and nervous and had
never done this before, as it appearcd later on. The firing squad at his

e ¢
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order stepped forward and fell in front of the two condemned person at about
. 8 metres. Whon they heard the riflcs being loaded they realized
“hat was going tc happen. On the order "aim" PETOM very clearly:

"long live thc Queen ! dewn with those yellow monsters ! "
4t the order "fire" both victims fell down ond after mEd 7

examination both proved to be dead.} The same day the funeral took

place at which a short funersl-

The Jap.authorities allowed us

were leid on_the grevcs, while

SUZUKT ordercd me to azcampany
flowers with him phach he laid

scrvice wes held by the camp inhabit

to order wreaths cutside the caup which
the next morning the Jep 2nd Lt.

him $o0 the cemctery: he found some
down after having saluted for each

of the graves. &after heving saluted once again hc left the cemetery
with me, It may bec noted that FETOOM and van BRAWLM were caught in -
BATOEDIT4DTLR and sent to TIIMLHI as prisoners.

" Bandoeng; October 22nd 1945

' w.s. P DCORNBOS, Major &rtilery.
ex-coumander of the 4th POV camp at
TJ INAHT. -

!

}
{
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C m RE L PO RS

The undersigned CHARLES JONGENZEL, Captain RNIA, Head of
War Crimes Section of NETHERLANDS FORCES I“T;LLIUL NCE
SERVICA (FIFIS), being first duly swern on ocath deposes

and states that the annexed statement is a full, true,
complete and accurate ccpy of the original Dutch document
entitled:

Statement by Dr. F.H. TERHEEGE, officer IInd class Royal
Netherlands Ind.Army ledical Corps, ccncerning the shocting
of six men, }enadonese and Ambonese, in the 4th and 9th
Uutﬁélwcn barracks, on Hay 5(5), 1942, at TJII'AHI, No.01/

which original dcocument is a part of the official records

of the NEFI

UJ

signature:

/s/ Ch. Jongeneel
Batavia, August 29th, 1946.

Subs Crlbtd and sworn to before me X.4. DE WiERD, LL.D.,

lIlajor Artillery RNIA, Senior Official attached to the
Qffice of the Attorney-General N.E.I.

signature:
/s/ X. A. DeWeerd

SEAL
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Concerning the shooting of 6 men, Menadonese and Ambonese,

in the 4th and 9th Battalion, on May 5, 1942, at TJIi’AHI.

This took place as a consequence of attempts to escape,
when the men were caught, led through various camps with-
wooden boards around thelr neck, aftrr hav1ng passed a night
tied up near the Jap office. DTN

There were also two FEurcpeans who were executed the
same day 1n the 6th Battallcn 0T leav1qg the camp during
the nights.

During the execution of the six native soldiers I and
many officers with me, were in cur barracks, where we
distinctly heard the shooting. Afterwards I went outside
and to the place cf execution. On my way I met an extremely
nervous man, calling for a doctor. I made nmyself known as
such, whereupon he told that the Jap. had asked for a doctor,
because one cf the victims could not be killed. He had
already had mzsny shots (I think I3). I wenft there and found
twe bedies, aone dead and the other dying. The Jap.(a subaltérn
officer), with a silvery set cf upper teeth, gave two more
shots in my presence from a Dufch service revolver, both
through the head. This non-commissioned officer apparently was
embarrassed with the whole Thing and in nervous condition.
After having fired—the two shots he went away. I ccantinued
to observe the condemned and he continued to groan. As I
knew that the man could expect immediate burial, or at least
could gssume tHIs WIth practical certaintr, _I called back _
the Japanese and indicated the place of the héart, Which had
not yet Peen transfixed by a shot, whereupon he aimed a Iast
shot 2t 1t, which was sufficlient. The very carcless and
indiffercnt manner in which the Jap.non-commissioned officer
aimed at the head of the almost lifelcss men, made a
dlstlnctly nauseating impression on me. JIt looked as if he
was popping at a beg of flourl instead of af a human being
in hlb last sTF B

As I heard, the two Eurcpeans who, during the execution,
in our camp cf the six men, were put in the frcnt row, not
blindfolded, amongst the spectatcrs, were shot that same day
in the 6th Battalloﬁ, in spite of the petition for mercy
from their wives, I I remember well cne had six children,
the other 2. The face of one of the two men was swollen as

a resulf of blows rocc1Vcd For the six others also an
cfficial petition Tor mercy had been prescnted, which was not

! granted.

signed Dr. F.H. Terheege,
Medical Officer IInd Class Royal Army lledical
cerpss —

In my barrack-room, situated immediately nextdocr to the square

: where the executicn tock place, were, as far as I remember

the feollowing doctors:

J. A. Slot, Medical Officer IInd Class R.N.I.A.,
doctor at Semarang;

Groot Wesseldijk, liedical Off.IInd Cl. RNIA,
doctor in Bataviaj

H.van Docrnum, ifedical Off.IInd Cl., surgecn, assistant
to Professor Redingius;

J.Bryan, Medical 0ff. Ist Cl., doctor N.K.P.M.;

s de Jong, lMedical Off.Ist Cl., Palembang.
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1
REPCRT CX INTERRCCGATICN
i
| Is called and has erntered, the witness who on quastioning
{ states himself to be:
! NikE: Dr. VCNEK, Franciscus, laris. DBorn at

Scmarang, 27th Oetober 1904 (41 years
of agel.

RANK: ¥ed, Officer Ist Cl.

ARFY Nre = = = = =

ARIYY UNIT: Royal Army ledical! Corps.
Civilian Occupcticn: = = = - -
ADDRESS: Danmanroad 512, SIVCAPCRE

Witness was informad of the subjzet of the intzrrogation.
Witness next tcok the osth ace. to his Religion to tell the
truth 2nd rnothing but the truth and answerod the cuestions
% put to him s follows: :

i Can you give inforrztion conczrning m=ltr2atments suffered
by yourself anrnd by othars of which you have bcen an gye-
witncss?

In May 1942, I beliove it was the 10th, all the
officers of the Apricultural school 2t SOEKLBCERKI
had to 1lins up, <in order, as had boen announced be-

} furc hard, to Witness tht execution of two military

; men, whose nemes I do not know. Two Indoncsian boys
in incomplate JllLt%ry dress (no putees) znd I bﬁ-

lieve barsheaded, thelr hands ticd behirnd theil

backs, were lcd in front of the troop >utgld;ﬂthv\
bharbed-wiring, They werce accompanied by some Japangse
soldiors whom I did not know. The Japarese C, O,,
Lt. NOETJAlih resd out the v.rdict in Japanase aftcr

: which the interprotor Mr. DIJKSTRA translated it.

; The deeree rcad that the two military men would be

' oxecuted for their attempting to escape. Noxt, one

i Qf thom had to knoeol dodn+, vas nhlindfolded “nd had

to bow his hoad, : aftor which he was bshcadad by & ;

“Japancse officer, unkrown to e, WD Wsed the sword

i of the Japuncse C. O, for_ﬁuls pUTpOSsC, N"zi*_thg

5 other vietim was tied betwoern two poles, wns blind-

l

SRS EIEE U SERS N S

folded and I holieve . gag was put in hls mout after
which he was stabbed by some five: Japanoss so0ldiors,
! cach In turn, with 2 wuyon-+ at thc haight of his bgﬂjﬁt.
| The victim slovly collzpsod ond finslly had some salvo's—
| from a Japancse Tiring scu:d. One of Qq;_gggjprgrggggr-
! ~tainad that he was dead.
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(Dr, VAN HASSELT and/or D+, XCOTH)
Both corpses were put in coffins at the spot.

I would like to rcmark that the second victim only collapszad
at the end of th: first series of bayonect stabs. It is suite
possible that he was not dead yet at the end of the bayonet-
LQ ing. I witnessed th2 above at a distance of about 0 metres.
)4 Eventually the corpsas werz put on hearses with wreaths and
o they werc buried, Tho Japonese Li, NOETJLMA spparently very
C : much enjoyod tho exe cution he cnu“” “he made mvch more show of
Tﬁ% fhe staging of the exescution than was n: “°°s oy Lor the
‘Hinkry proces LT*, I dc nct know who must be hald re sponolhlb
<3>4 or the execution: perhaps the leeal C, C, During the period
PN 1 - 9th May 1042 the "landsturn® ond the Hore Guzrd at
SOEA&BUQKI which at first had becn scnt home, were im=-
prisoncd by the capancse. They ¢nterzd in groups of 20 to
about 80 men, Sore of thom had already besen hald up in
ancther part of SOFK: 'ﬂth €. g, by the Japanzsse guard in
the town, From their stor s I could hezar that they has been
very badly treated and had been 1lcft without food or drink
Tor—some—time, “hen they arrived in our caup, they were
11nrd up in two single Tilasin front of ths m2in building
The officers had to wa teh thoir arrival, standing under tnw
v~r°*ﬁ' of the =in buildirg. As soon as they were lined up
they were informed by Lt, N F;JLZA (translr*ud by the inter-
preter DIJhuTRﬂ) tu.t they were hed soldiors bacause they
had prctendzd fto be OLV1L1~ns. This is uttorly untruc a: us‘*—‘
e Home Guards told 1o a-erwards. Js a punishmeont, afte
this statoment, which was untruc, they were bouten bV thb

l-

Jepancse guard and if necessary these wer: 'SSIST”d bv Wﬁn of

the main guard, with sticks, bzlts - N buc ,, ri L5
kickcd against their shins and somz Ja arasc cd Juj tsu to

throw them on tho ground which was covered 1th graval, for
half an hcur (which was chock:d by NOTIJuiA with 2 wateh in
his hand, ©Sometimes Lt. NORIJAEL personally dzalt them some
bIcws with the flat of his sword, [After the beating party,
the victims werc peckod torathaT in a swall bamboo-atap booth
(atap-palttod p: lm=l-avas) whore they werce so overcrowded that
one part had to stand vp when the other part wanted tc sit
dcwn. Irom about 12 till 24 hours, they were loft without
water and from 24 - 48 hcars without food. The doctors in the
camp including i S:lf —ar2 givzn a short time to help the
wornded (every men had blezding wounds on his herd and in his

- faee). lherbm*er\ som: froetur:d arms, soveral bruiscs and
damaged joints.\ 2

i i
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LRIPTCATICN By Witness

I, the undersigned, Dr. F. M. VONK, abovz-mentioned, hcracby
declare that, having boen lead in, I was maestioned by the
intorrogator after hoving taken the oath., Interrogator
informoed that the oath would be binding aftzsr which heving
had tho statzoment re-read and after having been roeminded of
my oath, I signaed the statement as to be true and exact,
accordingly.

SING.PORE, larch 1lst, 1946
The Witness, afore-mentionod,
was signed,
P. W. VONK

Of which statemont the intcrrogator SPIER, W.Th., Supcr-
intondent of Police, Head of the Neth., War Crimes Invasti-
gat}on Team at SINGAPORE, drew up this report on March 1st,
1940 .

The interrogzator,
was signed, .
W. Th, SPIER ’1
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CERT IR TLCATE

The undersigned CHARLES JONGENEEL, First Lieutenant R.N.I.A.,

:d of the War Crimes Section of NETEERLANDS FCRCES INTELLI-
B ( /ICE (NIZFIS) boing first duly sworn on oath deposes
nd states that the annexed Duteh document (with English
transl-tion) cntitled:

"Affidevit, sigrod report on interrogation of

Dr., F. L. VOI'K, dated kay 1st 1946 re cxecution
of two Indon:si-n military men at Sozkzbozmi (re-
sponsible parson Lizutenant NUIJAV.) and reo mal-
trootments of military men at Soekaboemi during
the reriod May 10th - May 9th 1942 by Japancse
soldicrs.”

Has bean taken from tha official racords of the NEFIS.

SIGNATURE /s/ Che Jcageneel
Batavia, Junoe 1946

SEAL

Subscribed and sworn to before me, K. 4. DE WEERD, First
Liceutenant, R.N.I.A., Higher Official attachad to the Office
of the Attorncy - General N. E, I,

fsf K. i, DE VWEERD

SEZAL
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CERTIFICATE 2,9/
T A /, 7///,{?;

The undersigned CH.NLTS JCUIGENIEL, first lieutenant Rellel.iie, head of the ar
Crime Section of NZTHIRLANDS FCRCES INTI_LIGINCE SERVICE (WZEFIS) being first
duly sworn on ocath deooses and states that the annexed report is a Duteh
document (with Znglish translation), entitled

Official Record drawn up by HeJo HIlL, Superintendent of Tolice, on
the 25ta day of Feb. 19.6, containing a sworn statement of F.J. RIEIIR,

employee of Ge+EeBeEuOe (Hectrical Torks), born in Batavia on Feb. 12th,
1920.

Which document is a part of the official records of the NZFIS,
Signature:

(5ZAL)

BUTAVIA June 7th 1946

Subseribed and sworn to before me Kehe de WEZIRD, first lieutenant R.llelels,
Higher Official to the Office of the Attorney-General . 1.

/s/ Ko A« de Teerd
334L)
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RO JUSTITIA

Covernment Office for the
Tracing of Ter crimese.
OFFICI.L RECCRD.
Today, !banday February 25, 1946, in the 10th Battalion Infantry,
Batavia, appeared before me, Hendrik Jan HAVA, Supeorintendent of
iolice, the person known to me c,alled.
Eranedgers Juskinug RETTER
born Fehruary 12, 1920 in Bau.:vla,
occup 2iion: employes of GeEeB:E O« (Electrical Torks), nov an ensign of
the reserve,
Address: 10th Batialion Infantry, Batavia,
Who, efter having been duly sworn according to his religious convictions
to tell the ftruth and nothing but the truth, upon interrogation stated
the following: ---

Cn l'arch 31, 1942. I was transported, together with the
other +0.s to DJ.TI NNGGOR, to barracls on a rubber estate, where w
were accormodated, Every morninz the Japanese male a roll call and nearly
every morning a few )ersons were missing. At the end of April an order’
came off, thet those who escaped from a camp and were arrested, would
be executed immedictely,

On May Ly, 1942, the rumour cireulated in the camp that six
preople had been arrssted who had been escaping, and thet at present they
Vere incarcerated in A Japanese zguErd TouUsSe. They 'ere three Eurasians
and three Javanese. One of the Europeans was. called SMIT. I can not
remember the names of the others.

In the evening of I'ay L, 19L s we heard that the exscution
would take place the next morning. e still considered this to be a joke.
e did not Temlise the gravity. \Ta"t morning at sbout 9 or 10 o'clock
I heard that somcbody vas looking for a Catholic capable of administer-
ing the last sagramcnto instead of a priest who was not there. At a
certain moment I saw Tive pi‘l.;one s being donducted out of the guard
house. Their hands were tied on their back and they were mutually

cennected by a rope, 4 little outside Lhe camp they were put with their
backs towards a sort of trench (aboub 1 metver deep)which had been

dug the day before. Then 1 wenit avay because I did not want to see
what was going to happen. Hardly had I errived in my barracks when I
heerd strident screams of one of thenrisoners, who called "ampoen"
("pardon"). Ieter I heard “hat tais had been SiIT, from the people Who
had assisted at everything ft-ul the beginning. ZPrompted by em irre-
pressibls urge I ran cutside and saw the executed men. Although T was
at 50 meter's distance fivom the french, I Saw cledr.LJ :10*'7 the Japs, arm

with rifles and bayoneis, took fighting pose, moving the 1;_0:3’5 of their
'Fa}_’_nct at the height of the heart, apparently in cEd‘éﬁo aim. Then a
raw shout of command and the beyonets transfixed thae bodiss of the five
pw*s lined up in front cf the irench, vho, by the force of the
thrusd, fell backwards into the pits Iln froat of every prisoner there
Was a Japanese soldier Then I turned avay, for I could not stand the
loud groans of one of the execuited, ran back to my barrack-room and
heard eleven rifleshots. 411 of the above I saw n~rsonallv

I heard that lMajor V&li BATZL, then camp commander, had done
his utmost to obtain clemency from the J'apane.ae com*n«.n:ter, in which he
had only succeeded for one Javanese, because the latter had indeed es-
caped from the camp, but remained in the immediate neigixbourhood for 3
or 4 days and reported of his own accord.

The Japanese commander, a first lieutenant, whose name I don't
remember, behaved decently in this matter. I alsc heard that he offered
apologies to Major Vill BA'EL, but that he had to submit to orders from

the higher authorities at BAJDOITG-‘ Further I heard from Some fellow-
barrack-metes that the Japanese Wmﬁclpated in this execution
had indicated by gestures tba#"ﬁ"’fo e the execution tHEY“Wad-been obliged
to draw sorts, bec yse~fione of them was prepared to participate on his
free will.-——
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Now I remember another name of one of the Euroneans executed,
nemely ILILR Do LA ZRTIOINIERE, Three Europeans and iwo.Jjavanese were
executed, --- - B
Slp I must add that I _hesrd from an eyewitness that immediately
after diS¢Marmiag, the =ots the pit was closed without calling a doctor

to establish death'Mlity existed that some of them
had not yet died when they were buried. Wes of the

Japanesse who participated in the execution.--- e,
it
: AR Y AAT R " ™

e e B AL A sne b i
- - . - 2 X T A - U Y (R
After reading out the above the vitness persists in his statement "
and signs the same together with me.

G

The witness: The recorder?
2 Fth‘{.Ez:R 83 HoJaF :‘T‘(L

and I have made out the present official record of same according to
my oath of office, at Batavia, February 25, 19L6.

The fecorder (interrogator),

T T Tt
s 3 hcd o LlialNdie
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CERTP ¥ I LCATE

The undersigned ,ﬁﬂRLAO JONGENEEL, first Lieutenant R.N.I.A., head
the War Crimes Section of NWTHUIIAW“@ FORCES TNTELLIGENCE
PVTCV (NEFTIS) being first duly sworn on oath dencses and states

that the annexed Duteh dccument (with English trans slation) en-
titled:
" Summary of Examinstion drawn up by H.J. HANA

Superintendent of Police N.E.I., on the 12th

ard 15th day of January, 1946, containing a

sworn statement of Ccrnelis BB ERTJES, Teacher,

born at bo~xt (imllanﬂ) on Decermber 13th 1902

No. 0OM/1552/R

has been taken from the official records of the NEFIS.

STGNATUEE:
/s/ Ch. Jongeneel
(SEAL)

BATAVIA, June 7th 1946.

Subseribed and sworn to before me K.A. de WEERD, first Lieutenant
R.N.I.A, Higher Official attached to the Office of the Attorney -
Generzl N.E.T.

/s/ K. A. de UEERD

.

-~ P
4 ”. r 4
(P
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CIFFICIAL RECORD o

On Saturday 12 and Tuesday 15 January 1946, there appeared in the
barrecks of the 10th Iuluntrv Battalion befores myself, Hendrik
Jan FANA, Superinterndent of Police, a person, who, on enguiry,
declares Limselif to be:

Cornelis BROERTJES,
born eon 13 December 1902 at Soest (TN. nolland), occupaticn:
teacher at the sscondary school at Jogjakarta, at present Pte.
in tke Forme-Guard, living &t the barracks of the 10th Battalion
at Batavia Centrun; who after having been sworn bsfore me in
accordance with his relizious convictions to tell the truth
and nothing vut the truth answered the cuestions put to him
as stated hercunder.

In the beginning of 1942 I was a prisonsr of war ab
Jogjakarta and was in the H.B.School building. This was fenced
off with barbed wire. However, prisoners of war often climbed
over the wire end got out. This occurred, as it w,re, with the
acquiescence oI sone Japanese guards. At any rate I know that
some of them said to prisoners of war in ilalay, "Go home; but
take care to return on time¥, Consecuently, one or two days
before Whit lToncday 1942 Kramer or Cramer, who was cmployed by th
Court of Chancery at Jogje, lieyer and L¢a:: ciimbed over the wir
to visit their families. In all fairness I must mention in tals
connection that in view of a recent change in the Japanese com-
mand, the Nebtherlands camp direction strongly edvised against
leaving the camp. At the second roll-call helé that evening 1f
was discovered that three men werc missing., It appcared that durit
their "escapc® they had been arrcsted by the Indonesian police and
taken to the puard. During the second roil-call the escaped per-
sons were brought into the room whcre they used to slecp, and as
I have heard were badly thrashed in view of their roomaates,
Thereafter they stood the whole night through ncar the guard
within circles drawn on the ground. We thouzht that the matter
was now closel; but the following day Capt. Goecdhardt announced
that the thrce escaped men were Lo be shot, In spiteof all our
officers did £0 mAVE Tais ordcr cancelled, tie exscution had to
be carried out on orders from the Bandoeng headguarters.

The execution tooX place asg follows: On the afternocon of
26 llay 1942 the whole comp had to fall in on the footpall ficld
When everyone was in line, the three victims were driven in on a
truck. Their comrades had elready dug a long pit. The threec men
were placed in front of it. Then the sentence was read in Japanesc
and lMalay. The three men were blindfolded. Meyer, who understood
that this was the end, got out his purse and wanted to hard it
to one of the JaoaubSb soldicrs for llS_Llix~ The purse was ilune

e

D o

out of his hands and he fot some slaps in his facs, Thereafter
the thrce men were _Lagp;@g;quwthempgt_by threce Japancse soldier:
who were standing in front of them. One of the men who was anpar-
ently not dead, cravlcu out of the pit and was stabbed back 1,&9
it with a baycnet. Then the .Tave was filled up and some Japencse
officers put wreaths on it and gave the militery salute. Latcr on

tLg JapancSn OIIlerS told ou* o¢¢1cgrs thau @y~cutlons by b¢vo-

warnyd that 11 thvrb wwas aaotl escg@” not on ly the escapers
but alsoc tcn artitrarily chosen prison;rs of war would be execcutec
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I can furthcr statc that the food situation at Jogja was

very bad, made worse by thc fact that w
to do very heavy work on the eirficld ab
during the months of June and July 1942
insufficient,

020894 GCReeewees0oUBe S0

After his statumcat has bocen read
he adhcorcs to it and signs 1% togcther

The witncss:
/s/ C.Broertjcs.

and T have madc, sicned snd concluded &l
in pursuancc of my cath of office at Ba

e ' were therc compelled
Magocwua .Lepcecially
.LO\JJ. eSO G R e es AzlJ

over Lo the witncss,

with mysels

The' rccorders

/s/ BE.J. Hansa.

his official rceord
tavia or 15 January 1946.

The recordors
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Official Record of Interrogation of Witness.

The witness 1s called and enters who, on enquiry, states to be:

Name: ALTDA HORST, nete Middelkamp. B f

Residen or address: Kromenie, Weverstraat 73. %TT note: HOLLAND),

The witncss iu informed of the subjcct upon which she is to
be interrogatcd, and hereupon takes the oath in accordance with
her religious conv1ct;ons that she will tell the whole truth and
nothing but the truth, and answers the guestions put to her as
follows:

Do Can you give any information about acts of violence committed
against yoursell or others, which you have witnessed?

In the night of 28 February or 1 March 1642 the Japanese
landed near Reabang, 35 kms. distant from Blora, where we were
living and where my husband was Assistant Resident. (Tr.note:
highest local Dutch civil servant).

At that moment the oil fields at Tjepu (Tr,note: main oilfield

in Java) were on firc, we could smell this at Blora; all the
roads leading to TJppu had been blown up.

On Thursday, 5 March 1942, late in the afternoon evacuees
returncd, who had done a great deal of roaming about, had spent
two nights in the woods, had beecn attacked by murderous bandits,
and who had ultimately been brought back to Blora by the Japan=-

€SE.

They werc taken to the Kabupaten (Tr,.note: official residence
of the native Regent). According to what various ladies told me,
when the cvicuees reached the Regent's estate, there were five
coffins standing there. Mrs. Bernasco and lrs. de Graaf told me
this,

Amongst the male evacuces, there were van Bakerghem, Inspector
of Govt. Pawnshop, the teacher Salzmann, and his father-in-law
(name unknown); amongst the ladies were Mrs. Bernasco with four
children and tlclr nurse; Nr° de Graaf with three children;
the von Mengden children; the Vogelsang lsang children; my son .
Lucas Horst; Mrs. van Baﬂ,*ohbm with two chlldrgn Mrs. Ceuninck
van Capelle with three children, including a girl of about
thirtcen vears of age
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As early as that very evening, about an hour after their
arrival, the whole group, excent for van Bakerghem who had
to remain behind in the Kebupaten, came to our local bazaar.

In the Kabupaten cach of the evacuecs was first asked his or

her name and where he or she had bscn born. Van Bakcrghenm was
the only one{of the men)who had becn born in Holland. The Regent
of Blora was telling tiac Inspector of Police Vogslsang what
happened afterwards, that the Japanese had said that since van
Bakerghc: was a thoroughbred Dutchmen, he had to die. Van
Bakerghem fell on his kiaees and pleaded for mercy, whercupon

his head was cut off, About a fortnight later Vogclsang, who had
meanwhile returned to Blora, told me all this snd said that

the Regent had also becn present at the execution.

In the market that day we still knew nothing; but we felt
that th.re was something menacing afoet. On that Thursday,

5 Liarch 1942 we remeined in & large room all together, The
Japancsc thnen appeared mad and wild.

That nigiht the fathor-in-law and mother-in-law of Salzmann,
who werc of Aibonese origin, werc lteken away from us and fear-
fully maltrcated. Their two daughters toe, of sbout fifteen and
sixteen had to go with them and were maltreated,

The fathcr and mother returncd the same night, fearfully
upset, the girls only returned on Friday morning, and had been
raped by the Japanese.

© 0 8 00 8 0 Q8000 e

I remaincd with my son Lucas. We were locked in a godown fer
a guarter of an howur, and were then g8llowed to return Lo our
own house.,

When we came out, through & trellis I saw standing in the
room of another godown: my husband, Dr, Dietzel, Mebus, and
Kruyse., I was driven past with o bayonct.

Lucas and I went to our house which was packed with Japanese.
After about half an hour the same thrcee Japanese cppeared who
Rad Gaken ovr mon bto the ™inn™, I askcd onc of the Japz, wWho
was waving about Dr. Dietzel's sitethoscope, where my husband
was. The answer was: "Dead, [ killed him"™ and ne made & gesture
that wes unmistaliable, When I saw the Jap waving the stethoscope
I immedistely had the feeling: "now the doctor is no longer
a¥ive"™., Thc Jap said that he had killed all four,

That Fridey T went to the others in the emergency hospital.
imere things were in a terrible state of hysteria. In ordere
not to make mattcrs worse, I made no mention about what had
happencd thore., Later this was told by tuac Regent.

I have not yet mcntioned that on Saturday afternoon 7 Mareh
1942, the Japancsc soldiers (odd scldiers) had appeared in
the cumiergency hospital wherc the women and children were seated
together, The Tadies were here raped by the Japanese, in which —
conncction it should be mentioncd that this happencd wherc the
childrcn were pnot present. These ladies were myself, Lirs.
Bernasco, Mrs, Mebus, Mrs. Dietzel, Mrs, de Graaf, Mrs. van
Bakerghem, Mrs. Vorbeek, Mrs. Warells.
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camc _at nizht, but by way of exception also during the day, It

e vaS & mass, contlnnnuo mereiless rape. The first affernoon that
= 218 happencd, as uCPt1mnud, three cnlisted men camg, and every-
Lul_m tooi ”cc unéor threat. ‘Kff??wfﬁigwhappcned, we managed

Ecll the CdLﬂuDv doctor Licm. Hc went to the Commandant,
vhcrbuwon that aiftcincon, Mrs, Dictzcl, myself and o ¢ or two
others hud to appear before the Cowmandant, The Commandant said
thct we would be given an opportunity to point out the Japs who
had misconductced themsclves, and that they would oc shot dead
beliorc our voery cycS.

However, nothing nappencd and after an hour we werc sent back
to thc ewmcrgency hospital.

That cvening, at 8 o'cloeck, we werc transferred to a classroom
in a school ncur by. According to what we werc told, this was
don¢ for our own sarcty, sinece tho Japs would not come there.

Betwecn ton and twelve eo'closk . icht, when we were gll
aslec), = WLHOlE WSS Of dopancse soldiers cntered with the

uovgmontionod commandant at the hcad, The cormandant sat on
\/é;_ avlec IT‘UUT‘EIEEEPOOm and then watched how each of the women

\[ G This occcurr:d from 7 to 17 Mareh 1942; generally the Japs

was draﬁgvd away, oue by one, to be 'apyd. He himsell did not
join in this. O\ 0
f AN
0 : X r\w__{ 4 ?‘,JQ.

e e Beev s s s ‘F” ‘

On 23 lareh 1942, the Regent scat the assistant wedono
(Tr.note: Indonesian district official) to us to tell us what

3,

had happoned to our menfolk,.
®® 0 A el e

26 March 1942 I went with Mrs. Dietzel to the grave of the
four ook in the cemeliry af Blora. Where Mr, van Bakershem was
buricd I do not know,

WMo o s e 0o v

I cannot cxplain why the men were murdczod Only ny husband
hed anu}iL; to do with thc destruction of Tjepu. The four
others hod had nothing to do with it, and the destruction_squad
ﬂﬁd left. Perhaps they wanted to cool their rage in the blooad

Netherlanders.

¢ % 00 098 e B e

/s/ A, Horst-Middelkamp.
/s/ J.G. Benders,
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VERIFICATION BY TET WITNESS

I, the undcrsigncd Alide Horst-Middclkamp atvove montioned,

hereby declarc that I was led in and hecard on oath by the
interrogator, who infermed me that the oath taken by me was
binding upon me, and having heard my above sworn statecment read
and shown to me, havc sizned it as being correct.

10 October 1946,

The witness above named:

/s/ A, Horst-Middelkanmp.

Whercby this official rpcord has been signed by the interrogator
Joscph, Godfried Benders, Captain, Spec ial Services, and Honorary
Police Officer, app OL'tpﬂ uy Ministerial deed dated 26 June 1946,
at Krommenie, WEVJPSbTQJu TR

The interrogaotor

/s/ 3.G. Benders.

Certificd a true copy:

/8/ T.G.Benders. Seal of the Attorney Genera.
(Capt. J.G.Bonders) Govt. Office for the Investiga-
tion of War Crimcs.
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Doc. No. 5762

The undersignsd CiI RLTS JCUGEN EL, First Lieutenant RellcIein,
head of the "ar Crimes Section of N _.Ti L.J1DS FORCES INTELLIGENCE
SIAVICE (NEFIS) weing first duly sworn on ooth leposes and states
that the annexed revorts are full, itrue, complete and accurate
copies of the original documents entitled:

19 Report on L.C.?. camp Bandoeng from October 19/2 until
October 1%43;

2) Report on eamp No. K Wiimehi (Baros) from October 19L3
until dug.-Sep. 1345 sigued J.C. Reinders, Yolmer, Camp
No. 3624, civilien Initernee, Interpreter, dated Tjimahi,
Barcs, October 4th 1945.

)

which documsnts are a part of the official rezords of the NEFIS:

B.TiVIi, June 7th, 1946.

STAL

Subscribed and sworn to before me K.h. de ~SIZRD, Tirs
ReNoTI.is Higher official attached to the office of th
General T.7.7T.

t Lieutenant
> Lttorney-

/s/ XK. A. de Teerd

fage 1
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|_ In the attached R&CAT3 I try to steteh conditions
prevailing in the Bandoeng L-C.G. Culd and the
TILIAET CAL Mo. §
during 3% years of internment.
Having been interprete~, and having kept daily
notes of the principal ha-peninzs and conversations,
those rerorts reprasent the absolute truth.
It is not the first time that I was in contact with

Japanese, having lived ia Japan off and on from 1928

£3i1) 1941, for about 9 years.

Tjimahi, Baros, October 4th 1945.

sng. J. C. Reinders FOLIMIR

Camp No. 3634}, Civilian Internece.

\
>
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. Fron QOctober 1942 until October 1943 T was interned in the

LeC.Ge" camp Pandoeng, where from time to time, when Japs
visited the cemp I acted as interpreter.’
The L.0.3. cam> wes under Indonesian command {commander
3ATH R4, sub-comender KOOITRA), who received ell inetructions SAUHIRA
from the Japanese Civilica anthorities and the Japaness {CGIT?A
Military Police. The Za.joszng Citr Iolice acted as guards.
Although this camp had long been liguidated the following facts
Tould be notes.
In this camp condit’'ons were bad, and the authorities BT e
should investigate this matter es at thot time other RBandoeng
camps were much better. To requests for improvement the Japs
paid no attention a2t all.
jThe Indonesian Commandsr and Sub-comander were scoundrals;
they toolz over the Jap way of beating and kicking internees.
¢ epdured much Lunger in this corp ~orsover the litile
food we got was resulsive at times. For months we had had
smelling rice.
irobably corruption vas ore of the raasons =g in t-ose
days praper food wns easily ava’lable., OFf the internses who
died in 1943/LL a large percentags came Pwom the L.C.G, camp as
their undernourishment started so much saviisr.
Sanitary conditions were scmetimes aspalling when the
water supply wae purposely cut off.
Proper medicel aid was made impossible, owing to lack of
medical supplies and the refusal to zilow more doctors to visit
the camp,
Lectures, music, lessons and even a choir were prohibited.
After a few months even divine services were zlso forbidden.
Money sent by rel-tions and friends was withheld from
internees,
Books sent to the camp were confiscnted, and all rsading
matter in the comp was prohibited (a library was Lowever
connivingly allormﬂ)
Visits by rslations were no more allowed after October 1942
Corresnondence was never allowed.
11 pajser, nencils and pens had tc be handed in.
Internees w.o got sentenced and went to jail togethsr with
rdinary criminals had better treatment than civilian internees
whe had dons nothing ani stared in the camp.
ind yet, althcouvzh conditions were as above, compared to the
time after the Imparial Japanese Army tcok over the eivilian
camps, a certain frsedom still existed, and V. .ere was still no
reign by terror.
In Octoher 1943 I went with a part of the LOG-internees to
the TILAAT Camp We. 52]
Further details of this Bandoeng LOG-Camp should be
obtained elsevhere.
The Jap Civilian officials who supervised the Bandoeng Camps
in 1942/1943 belonz:2 to the followin~: depertments:
Priangan Shu Zoisatsu Bu (XKotoka Bagian Tawanan): XKUBOTA KUBCTA
Friangan Shu Cho offices ANEHA ANZHA
SUGANULIA SUGANUMA
SUGAYA SUCAYA
(Kotoka Cho) YOSHETDA
Dai Ichi Koisatsu Shos: (Police) » YOSHIDA YATAOTO
; Y.JIAMOTO ROG4. L
KOGAA SHIRAK/A
SHIRAKA (A  TLXKAHASHI
TLXAHLSHI  XKUSAKA
KTUS AKX/

;.us‘...'t

I thinic thet some of then had left for their home-country, or
are now in other cities on Java,
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REPORT ON CAME NO. & TIIMAFI (BAROS)

From October 1943 t411 February 194L this camp was still
uncder the same €ivilian Authorities as tn.e Bandoeng Camps.

The Camp-Commander was an Indonesian ealled SCTKCIO, who
behaved fairly decently and actually helped us a lot to make
life beareble.

4\ l__The food-condition, although better than in the Bandoeng
i LOG-Camp, remained very poor.

! In T’ebruary 194l a party of Civilian Japanese visited the
camp, and askzsd questions about the conditions in the camp.

In Japanese I brought forward all our wishes and all
suzgestions for improvement by our Camp-lsaders. They appeared
to listen attentively, even took notes, hovever as usual the
result was NIL.

Feigning to be interested is an old Japanese custom:

On larch 1st 1944 the "Imperial Japenese Army" took over
the Civilian Camps and from thet date I vas the official
interpreter of this camnp, and as I have kept daily notes on the
things that ha pened "at the gate” I will endeavour to sketch
conditions in tiis cam> from the very beginning till the end
%, of the war.]

The Jap Camn authorities at Tjimahi with whom we had to
do in Camp No. 5 were the following:

Bunken Sho Co: Cemtain SEIGI TAZLGI Jall

(from April 4 till July 17th '4h )Japanese
temporary Lt. KiSAHMRAL) )

Sergeant llajor for General Affairs: SCAIL

Interpreter: S. HATA (civilian with unknovm Army rank)

some Jaranese and

Tnder their command they had a number of Korcans, mostly
secoundrels, and a number of Heiho's (Indonesian guard-soldiers)

Baros Camp Commander: from March lst 194 - lMay 20 19L45:
T, ARAKT (Jananosc) (Civilian)
from May 20th 1945 - the end:
Sergeant 40KI (Jgpanese)

(after the ecapitulation, on September
23rd 1945 it was suddenly thought
advisahle to put a 2nd Lt. named
UISTII in charge of the camp)

Baros Sub Commanders: ZFrom A: rll 8th 194Li-October 20th
19k KiZUYAIA (Korean)
From October 21st 19 4-May 20th 19L5:
KYOH:RA (KORZAN) HIGASHIBARA
From May 20th 1945-August 1945
thhﬂ‘.\\I\orean)
From August 19k 5-September 1945:
KWLI0TO (Korsan) who misbehaved
himself in Camp No. 6

Amongst the Korszan Heiho-Guard commanders who misconducted
themselves in Camp No. 5, those underneath are outstanding:
TAKEIOTO
SHIRAY ALIA
SHIKAWA

A\ Tntil May 1944 police-men were used tc guard the camp..!One

Page 4

S0ZKONO

STIGT TAKAGT

KASAHARA
EGAMI

ARAKT

AOKTI

UISUMI

KAZUY.DA
HIGASHIBARA

KYOH.

Lt Py

KUNII0TO

TALALTO
SHIRAYAMA
ISHTXATA

g of the main shortcomings of the Japanese system was the fact that

the superiors never bothered much about the camp situation.
The Colonel -<iidiI (from Bandoeng), the Captain TAKAGI
or others, until the capitulation of Japan, practically never
. exchanged = word with the Dutch Camp lanagement, or were in-
clined to listen to them.
The camps were left in charge of unéducated brutes
', like /RAKI, who on their turnm left the camp for whole days

ANAIT
TAKAGI
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in charge of some Kor-an soldier-guard, to a rogue like
TAKZMOTO., TAKTIOTO

The Jap in cherge of this camp, 4R&KIL, certainly was not
educated.] Many times I had to explain to him the simplest affairs.
He had never heard of the Salvation /rmy, and when the former
position of an internce had to. be explained many times things
were beyond his comprehasion.

Once when a medical protest had besen filed about the food sit-
uvation he said to six doctors and to the Camp lManagement:

"You are not prisoners of war. You are only civilians.

Prisoners of war asre any country's valuable assets, however

you civilian prisoners are nothing. You are just like

paper cuttings spread and lost by ths wind. If you people

éie, it can not be helped,; and it is only natural.

You are always asking oo much,"

The sub-commandsr LZUYAL ¥new more, and yet on August 8th 194k,
when a lot of registrations were ordered, he asked me whal Free 1" 'sons
were, and whether Fres 'ason was the name of their countiry.

The above cuotations will sufficiently illustrate their intelligence.

The Camp Commander and the Sub-Commanders always were hint-
ing at the former positicns of internees. To people engaged in clean-
inz the tcilets or transporting dirt they would still sgys "You still
give yourselves airs, you people are still arrozant and conceited"
and all of you must forget your former social positions.”

ALbout the Sergeant 'ajor GAT can be said thet he generally ZGAMT
behaved correctly, that he energetically and seversly joined in
the beatings when big offences had taken place; and that for-
tunately all his sub-ordinates, amongst whom there were so many
scoundrels, vere scared of him:

The interpreter HATL, always was unreliable; he would listen HATA
to complaints, pretending to ssmpathize amd to understand, but one
never got any results from him. (As to getting no results this

-y 00

goes practicelly for everv Jap. when pno force can be apolizd, )
Finally one thing should be said about Captain TAKLCI, the TIKAGI
Tjimani "Durkensho-Cho". After the cgpitulation he is cune

cf the few Japs who at least for a few weeks earnestly helped
us end cooperated fully. Many even then, only pretended to do so.
Lfrom the very first day the Army took over on March 1lst
1944 we requested:
l. contact with families.
2. better food.
3. medical supnplies.
L. rejayment of money rut "on deposit" by Indonesian
Civilian Camp Commanders in the Bandoeng Camps:}

The Sergcant Major for general affairs, IGAMI promised IGANT
that he would do his best arranging these matters and the
results were as follows:
l. On Auzust 2hth 194k we could write our first post-cards
(in Malay) after twe years imprisomment. ‘e were not
alloved to ask for money.
These post-cards were handed us by Lraki and Kazuyama
with bad grace. And now after 2 years we were forced to
write them in great hurry, overnight! This marks their
character!

The first Red Cross mail received during the war from
ebroad cwme on September 12t~ 1944. (llost of the Red
Cross mail from abroad came after the Cagltulatlon)

i {5- -he food situotion gradually improved a little, but IF

=, HaD LD TC TUIST OoN HAT TED LAY SU.PLIEZD DISASTER
O”LD IILVE FOLLOVED.
Only through bribes and corruption our canteen managed
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to zet additional foodstuffs., Through the sale of
valuables, gold teeth ete. large amouants of much

.~ needed articles could be bought unofficially.,y In this

wgr only the Jap Cemp Commander Araki allowed addit-

ional food. Tor workers Cept. Takagi alloved scme TAKAGT
black-market rice, to be bought by them. The Korsan
sub-commender Kazuyame, although he was arrogant aund

a big nuisance, actually did wvery much tc procure

more food. Not only for this camp, but also for Camp

4. Fis successor Higashibara also helped very much. HIGASHIBARA
Fortunately our camp had a large vegzetable garden,

which very ably and intensively cecultivated &also was

a great help.

4 separate detailed report on the fosd situation is

weitten by our "Mess-sergeant®, [I should state here,

however, that to seve our serious patients rats and

dogs tere prepared for tie hospital.

lledical supplies as received from the Jap always remained
very insufficient.
Ir' wE HiD NOT S2CEIVED RiD CROSS SU&. LIRS Up IF Y@ HAD NOT
EE! ABLT TO BUY ADDILID‘dg MEZDICINTGS LITH CUR O°M iONZY, MANY
IORS OF Uz "OTLD I VZ DIED. The lMedical Staff of the Camp and
the Camp lanagement anplied for medicines many times. From time
to time we were allowed to buy medicines and such supplies were a
God-send. The Bandoeng dispensacy "Meruika" did splendid work
in cobtaining the medicines reguired. Later on, from Nﬂmch lst
1,45, we were no more allowed to buy medlclnes notwithstending
the fact that the Camp Regulation No. 33 permits sabh purche sps.
After the Cepitulation the Medical Staff received meny cases of
Bed Cross Medizal supplies, kept at the Tjimahi Head Office of
the Japanese.]
Our medical staff will certainly supply further detailed reports
about these medical matters and about sanitary conditions in the camp.
/%lso disinfectants were always very insufficient, even the supply of saap

After a long investigetion the old deposits amounting tc about
Fl, 5000.- were actually paid out on June 6th 194k,

On lay 30th we received the first medical supplies from

the Japarese lledical Administration. Later cn such supplies
were repeated monthly, but in very small quantities and
insufficient. Araki said on April 17th 1945: "You have

to be thankful for anything you get at all."

It should be remembered that throughout the 3% years the
Jap Army Sexrvice Corps always stuck to the limit of 25
cents per head for civilian internees, notwithstanding

the faect that prices during 1944 and 1945 were ten times
higher than in 1942, On ZApril Z6th 1944 the Jap officially
dared to ask for a detailed "ideal food| supply", but based
on the above old limit of 25 cents.

During August/September and October 1944 they even kept
supplies low as the Jap said we had a debt of 20,000
guilders, which first had to be refunded.

I sha 1 now start a chronological account of the main events, and
I think thet in this way I shall succeed in giving a picture of
the conditions under which we had to live.

larch 3rd 1944 : Japanese Army officials seated at 3 tables, counted

all internees, Who marched by. This was the begin-
ninz of the Jap Army reign of terror.

Mareh 11th : The Army directed 5} internees ‘vclunteers) to two

farms in the neighbourhood. The produce of these farms
was promised to he entirely for the benefit of the
camps; later on much went to the Japs and/or Heiho's.
This camp had to supply daily about 200 workers ior
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Tarech 13th 194k

March 25rd 1944

Mareh 27th W)

°
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the Lewigadja farm; in the beginning we had much
difficulty in recruiting these workers as the

Koresan guards did much beating. Vhen in the

morning vhere was one man short of the required
nunher or we were a few minutes late, camp-offi-
cials were kicked, beaten and threatenzd with further
coryoral punishments if it happened again. They

also thzeatened to close the canteen.

The Jap Commander Araki never interfered, on ARLKT
the contrary fully endorsed such threats. Later

on the CGuari-commenders Takemoto and Shirayama TAKI'0TO
often alsc joined the beating parbty. Thsy would SHIRAY AML

say: "Bealirgs &t Lewigedja only teke place when there
is reasscn for it.and warkers should not be afraid to go."
As many of the workers had no shoes, many got foot-
wounds when working and wvhen we asked for disinfec-

tants to be supplied the reply wass “'ie have none,

better - use salt.® Laler on with our own monsy we

bought woecd for making clogs. The two Zowcans

at the Lewlg:zc ja farm, Kyokawa and Ckugawa, be- KYOKAUA
longsd to the first “to get wise® as already in OKUGATA

Auzust 1944 theilr ettitude complizstely changed.

In 1945 when we did no more suppiy the daiiy work-
ers, ther sent us much vegetables, however, partly
this was done after a "commercial treaty” had been
made with our canieen reople.

From the Ceuirsl Adminisiration Tjimshi, a Jap called
Hirsyama mede his first appearance. He was an ar- [IRAVAI'A

rogant blighter, who ordzred with much threatening,
an investigation of all technicians in the camp.

Alsc on future occesicns he applied the terrorising
way to get things done by the office Staff and
practically nsver used a polite word, excep®t when

he was in trouble himself. He was nicknamsd "Slep-
ping Peter", and until his transfer to somne other
place remained a perfect pest.

All investigetions and reports had to be done in a
ridiculously short time, and beatings followed wken

a small typing error was found later on.

On March 27th new information-slips were given to be
made up by the internees themselves in capital letters.
“hen it was found by him, that some forms were weitten
by barrack-commanders to help interness, five of them
were very severely beaten with a big banboo-pole,

and kicked against the shin. One sector-commander
was so severely beaten that he became unconscious,
and was in the camp-hospital for days.

By order of the Jananese Military Tolice all remain-
ing blank paper, in whatever form, was to be handed
in. This again was a serious handicap for the inter-
nees.

The Jap Camp Commander Araki, ordered a registrat-
ion of all watches in the camp., This vas the beginn-
ing of much trouble. Internses who did nct register
were threatened. Registration wes repeated several
times as new people came into the camp. Sale of
watches to "outsiders" was forbidden on June 11lth
1944 . The registration list was sometimes borrowed
by the Korean guards, and many watch-irale incidents
followed. Txtortirn at low prices occuried regulerly.
Protests from our side to Araki had no results:
Rogues don't split on each other! Araki would say
that the prices we expected were unfair, and that we
had to sell! People who refussd selling were beaten
by iral:di. 4lso quite often the Japs would quarrel
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between themselves over a watch, which alwals
resulted in difficulties for internees.

Extortion was also a common practice of Takemoto.
Ishigawe allowed his frisnd (name unknown) to

call the -amp-leeder @2t 10 p.m. and order Command-
er of the Heiho guard to proausze a Mido- watch

for him in 15 minutes, under penalty of a heavy beat-
ing with a cilub which was held ready!

Naturaliy the Camp Commander refused and in this
case, Wnen the name of the Sergesant Major Zgami

was mentioned, they gave up the effort,

At the time when Araki had native mistresses he
also ordered a registration of sarongs on June 1lth
1%Ll , which he exborted at chesp prices.

March 28th 1944 : Ve requested Araxi that fothers and sons in different
Tjimahi & Bandosng canps be put together. TLis was
Fyromised" as soon as the central administration was ready.
This request was repeated any number of times, how-
ever, the administration epparently never got fiaished,
except after_the gapitulation of Japan, when these
transfers were arrenged by us in no time, now with
full officiasl cocperation by the Jap! (Unofficially

L ms

at Tjimahi only some exczhange of boys couii be

o arranged in December 1944).

March 29, 194l4: 4t the evening rcll-call two internees were ~iss ing.
This was promptly repcried and the Camp-CUommander
Araki and a Sergeant investigated the case and
seemed to behave properly about it. _
The fugitives were caught by the police the samne day.

Mareh 30, 19.L: The next day, however, Barrack and Sector Commanders
concerned were called and terribly beaten with
bamboo poles. First by Hirayana himself, and then
by Indonesian poliecemen, ordercd by Hirayama to give
50 blows to sach person. 4 few of these pclicemen
executed this order with much gusto; oihers did
their best to help us.
Some of the victims were carrizd back into the camp
unconscicus.e The two fugitives also goi sevar
punishments plus 2 weeks solitary confinsnent.
On this occasion a Japanese gurartermaster-sergeant
(name unknown) placed 30 nightwatchmen in two rows
orposite esach other and then crdered them to bib
each other in the face for 15 minutes, If the slapp-
ing was not hard enough he ook action himseif.
The Jap Camp Commander Araiki enjoyed the above Shows
irmensely. He also remarked: "If internces get too
much food, they only escapeo"

l'areh 30, 194h: Three boys "had laughed"i All thrse were beaten
by Araki, the Camp Commander, who then assembled
all sector camanders and told them that internses
should neber laugh when a Jap passed.

Dur: jg the months of Marech and April 194, practically every
day we asked for improvement of food. 4Any number of times we asked
for urgently needed:

kitchen equipment (drums, buckets, etc.)

baskets for rice; covers for baskets against the flies.

brooms and trushes for ecleaning.

bamboo for meking beds for the siclt and the old, as at

that time we all slept on tiae floor; meny even without

a mattress.

blanke tsor gunny bags,

Howevey, these were never supplied. Only later on, after much plead-
ing we were allowed to buy them with our own money.
Bowing to any Jap, Zorzan or Heiho was much more imcortant to the
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camp-commander than these requszsts.

According to article 22 of the canp regulations visits by relations
could be granited, owever, never not even in cases of serious
illness, was any such visit allowed.

Then relations czlled to take a boy out for the funeral of his
mother, it wes refused. Repcrts of deaths of relations always
came very late or nsver.

Talking about the Caup Regnlations, it should be mentioned here,
that although on pazer the internees had a Committee for self-
Government, in reality such Self-Govermacnt was a complete farce.
The Japs interferzd with practically sverything.

Aoril 9th 19kh: Severzl internees came to ths camp commander

fraki to show their daily nortions and to complain about hunger.

He first lent a willing ear, and drcmised to do his best.

On April 9th he called about 30 hungry and dissatisfied internees

to his house, put guestions and selected four. Then he wanted

these four to do spying for him in the camp! All refused. This little
ineidcnt shows typica’ Jap mentality!

A Xorean called Tade, a tvpics” "new order® rute, hating all IADA
foreigners, was in charge of materials. He ordered a collection
of iron serap in the camp. 'Then not enough vas produced, he gave
the camp leader a terrible beating with a large banboo pole, and
sla ped the Sector Commanders in the face.
This collecton of scrap-iron was repeated three times. Tven small pieces
of iron used as utensils had to be delivered from the barracks., The
Japs threatened with corvoral punisiments if iron scrap was found.
“ith much diffievliy we managed to s ve some of the iron dustbins;
meny were takxen away however, and the dirt had to be collected and
transported in old baslets. New ones were not available.
This Korean "ada, known to a2ll internees as "Thrashing John" or
"Gaspipe Rufus® misbehaved himself badly in all Tjimahi camps.
On April 7th 194L at 11 a.m. he ordered a drzwing to be nade for
a new kitehen, with a statement of 211 reqgrired building raterial,
all necessary kitcioa-utehsils, etc. The drawing and the statement
had to be ready at 6 pcmci If later on ons mistake would be found
“he would murdsr all concernsed, includingz the interpreter".
On April 8th 1944 he ordered that the architects who made the
kitchen drawing were not to leave the camp, as eny time the nev
construction right begin. This new kitchen, however, always remained
one of the many plans for improvement.
Practically always vhen this ruffian visited the camp or the office
he chose a few victims and gave them a beating, or kicked them.
He is &also one of the many who talked to us this way:

"You people have no eour.ry auymore; this ceamp is your countryl"

"You all must thank the Imperial Japanese Avmy for anything
‘ that you reccivel. A
To-dey the Captuin Takegi gave a written order that no property
should be taken avay by guards., This vas &ll very well in theory,
however, this repo~t will teli how things worked in practice.

April 12%h 194 : EKezuyrama was sppointed sub-cormander on April 8th.
To-day he assembled all Sector Commanders and 3arrack Commanders
and said:
"Nobody should try any conspiracy or work out individual
Schemes. All orders must be strictly obeyed. You are the
eldest brothers of the internees. You s ould make it
clear to all, that outside the cam>s they can not make
a living. The Japenese Imperial Army looks after you now.
If one of vou all is an offender, I will punish 2800
interneesi™

April 19th 194L: Payment of 15 cents per day for workers was announced
to-day. In the beginning this was a g=z-t “elp, but later on practi-
cally nothing ecould b= bought anymcre for such a small sum.
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April cOth 19/h: ‘/e " >re allowed to start a rabbit farm. The Jap,
however, did not allow any to be eaten without his permission, which
he very seldom gave. (Rabhits .owever will multiply guickly =nd
fully cooperated with our own ideas on this subject!) Cniy after

the capitulation the Jap "kindly allowed® rabbits to be killed.,

On May 4th 10 young _igs were received by us. ‘/e could not keep them
alive as the kitchen waste was not cufficisent.

Air-Raid Precaution:
he Camp had no markings of any kind to show that this was a civilian intern-
ment camp. On A ril 19tn 1944 light control was started and air-raid
regul ations were mads.
Durlnc air-raid elcrm all interness had to go into the barracks. éxcept
some -<eRuFs groups, The digging of air-raid shelters was

refused, except for the two barracks with 200 old men, who on June
8th were somewhai separated fiom the rest of the camp.

May 8th 19iLk: On Mar 8th 1944 all harracks had to be provided by

the internees with biskets with sani and buckets with water. These
baskets and buckets som:times became a nizhtmere, as any Jap guard
locking for tro:ble, and findinz a strow in a sand basket or finding
a bucket not gquit: full, would go into a rage and start beating and/or
kicking.

May 17th 194k: On llay 17ta :rﬂer w2s given not to smoke outside after
8 peme Later on in June 1744 it —ms forbidden to smoke when strolling
about, also durinz th- day.
ALs a precaution ageinst fire all ash-irays had to be 1/3 filled with
water. Any offences gzainst sueil rules were punishzd by heavy beatings,
Specially by Takemcto =2nd Shireyama.
Many times we wers ordered to :ive the camp a special cleaning,
as some high placed Jas official would eall and inspael the comp
Sometimes three weeks beforshand the Jap Commander and the zuard
were nervous, bullied us to the limit so that whken such "illustrious"
Jap came the interness would bow correctly and he wouvld get a favour-
able impression of the discipline cf the camp. Such visits by Jap
officials from Batavia or Bandoerz (Colonel Anami), always lasted
only a few minutes. The; inspscted the guards and their guarters,
just looked into the camp and left. Recuests mede by our camp-lecder
or others to talk with them were always rafuseds
I'ay 13th 19/t On May 13th ve asled for special markings to be given
to the deaf and the blind in che camp, to prevent them being
beaten. These marks were never gziven in this camp. The Jap said that
their friends should warn them in time if they had to bow, Naturally
it happened that deaf men were beatea. One of them shoved me a letter
given him by a Japansse when he was still fres. The letter (in
translation) rcad as follows:

"This Dutchman shovld not be beaten as he can not hear

what is said to hin",
I mention this beczuse it agein marks the Jap mentality.

Mavy 16th 19i)i: On l'2y 16th inguiries were made into persons of
British Indian Netionality. This was at the time when the Jep
propa-anda launched their "March on New Delhid campaign. Kazuyrama
and several others at that time said to me:
" e ar2 now marching on Calcutta and New Delhi; the whole
of Fritish India will bseome under our ccntrol. Then we
shall conquer Siberia, and finelly we shall setitle with
Germany. This war, may be a 100 yvears war. If the U.S.A,
and Britain do not give in, we or sven our children shall
continus this war till our final vietorr. Thie fact that
this war may last 100 years im the reason thet our and your
food distributicn system is so strictly limited."
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May 25th 194kh: Two internees were taken away to the Tjimahi Head Office,
as correspondence with their families had been discovered. Naturally
they underwent a severe punishment. At the Tjimaki Head Office in
such cases they were usually %terribly flogged, thrashed and kicked,
when tied to the two trees in front of the Ceptain's officel
The champion executioners of such maltreatments were VADA and WADA
ISHIGAVA, but practically everybody would join. Also in the evening ISHIGATA
when they were drunk, the guards would come into the cell and beat the
prisoners!
The food rations during the period of punishment was: once a day boiled
rice, salt and water.
It was discovered during the next few weeks, that hundreds of others
were alse involved! including many of the policemen who guerded the
camp. (4s a matter of fact secretly regular mail with fixed closing
hours had existed!
About 30 offenders were crowded into a small bare prison-room for
some weeks. The camp as a whole was punished by:

the closing of the camp-shop for 2 weeks

no musical performences for 2 Sundays.
If it happened again the camp-shop would be closed forever and workers
would receive no more payment of 15 cents a day.

May 28th 194lLi: Vle were ordered to wear our new Army Administration num-
bers. The order wes all right, but during the past years a great many

internees were beaten severely for the small offence of one moment
forgetting to wear a nuiber or not to wear it properly.

Vay _29th 19)/i: In the camp the foot-paths were tiled, which during

the rainy season, when the camp was very muddy, was a great help to keep
the rooms clean. Most of these tiles however, were taken out to be used
elsewhere, after which on rainy days the muddy foot-paths and the mud

in the rooms were a perfect misery.

From May 29th the Police Guard of the camp was changed and every day
about 25 Heiho's under a Korean Cormander mounted the guard. The real
misery for the camp started from this day as practically all these Korean
guard Commanders were uncivilized brutes, who from day to day terrorized
the camp. The Champion was Takemoto, who called himself proudly TAKT/OTO
"the tiger of Tjimahi"! He was a beast, a sadist, who und ubtedly
is our war-criminal No. le. ZEven msny of the Hei-ho's under his com-
mand would gladly murder him. As mesntionzd before, he also extorted
valuables under threats and was guilty of practically every misbehavior
and cruelty. He even forced initerness to produce medicines like
Cibasol or Prontosil, which he or his friends needed for curing their
venereel diseagses, or which they sold in town fo Chinese at prevail-
ing high prices (One Cibasol tablet sold in town for F 1.100 - or more).
The names of othar guards who badly mishandled internees I repeat
here, they are: Shirayesma and Ishigawa. SHIRAYAITA
ISHIGAVA
Already on May 30th, the whole camp was threatened with heavy pun-
ishment if the bowin~ was not correct, and if the commands were not
louwdly given. 7ie told the Jap that We Were civilians of all ages, that
the yelling of commands was entirely strange to us and asked for certain
leniency, however, frcn May 1944 till the day they left, most of the
Korean guards caused enormous trouble for every small offence: often
internees were kicked and beaten without them knowing what it was all
about, until I could give the explanation. Ve also had to bow to the
Hei-ho's, as they were part of the "Imperial Japanese Forces". The
Koreans said: "You have to forget all thouzhts of the past".
The Camp Conmander Araki, alwavs seemed to enjoy the punishments. He
never interfered and mostly "joined the fun". Beatings were done by
bamboo poles, heavy sticks, iron rods, leather belts, chains, a specially
prepared leather whip, and a bull's pizzle. The latier two we first
dipped in water, to ensure more pain (the whip used I have taken from the
Jap's office and is sent herewith as proof).
By Araki, Kazuyema, Higashibara, xiyo cawa and the Korean guards we were
daily scolded in very crude words. Te were always called to be "arrogant
and impudent".
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"Our souls were rotting".

"Our inner self was definitely bad and we were a low down lying lot."
These noble Japs said to us: "ie Japanese hate lying and we shall beat
every one of you who tells a lis." A Korean rogue called Nomura, from
the Tjimindi farm, said: "I've travelled much from China and the
Fhilippines to Malay, but you people here on Java are the dirtiest
scoundrels of the world." This fellow Nomura is also guilty of many  NOMURA
corporal punishmenis for offences. "hen some internces at the
Tjimindi-farm had dared to cheat him he was raving med fcr weeks.

Later on when new woriers were selected he told them that he would

treat them with the Bushido spirit.

Any incidents had inilucnce on the general camp-situation. Araki ARAKT
then became very unvilling to help at ¢ll, with anything we asked.

Even transfers of the sicl: to the Central Hospital became difficult.
Araki then only =fter much telking and explaining from our side,
telephoned to the Central Hospital thus:

"Say, one of these enimals needs an operation; what shall we do?
let him die or arran ;e a transfer?"

Zventually in most casss we manag:d to get patients transferred, but
often after a delgy;and a transfer was seldom easily obtained from Areki.
Cn Octover 27th 194k the Camp doctor asked for a transfer of 25 dysentery
patients, all new caces in two days. Arski said: "Not necessary" and

his deecision was final.

Practically all Japs and Korean guards had the habit of entering the
barracks unexpectedly in the hope to find- something. Often they entered
the barracks around 10 p.m. When people were sleeny andmany had gone to
bed. Even then, if the bowing was not correct, many were beaten.

‘June 3rd 19ik: An extensive investigation was wmade as to members of

real "pure-sang" Esst Asiatic faces, in the camps:

Details also had to be given of the different kind of mixtures.

If there vere internces who had more than 50% German blood, they also had

to be plac=zd on the list,

This day bell-signals were started. This campbell signal became a real
nightmare, as any Jap or Korec:. who got into a rage, used them to

assemble his victims,

To-day under orders from Araki a camp police was established: ARAKT
"to controcl impudent persons and prevent them being sent to a penal
settlement". The idea was allright, but Arzki and Kezuyama wanted TAZUYALIA
this camp police to work for them. He never succeeded in getting

his way, except when in the interest of the camp, trading with

Hei-ho's had to be stopped, as explained later on in tais report.
Becreation: Since the Ammy took over any form of recreation was for-
bidden, but since the beginning of May !l once a week we were allowed

to have some music from 8-¢ n.me on Sundays.

May 30+t 194h: All musical instrum~nts were taken in for two weeks

as one ¢f our musicians had softly nracticed a tune vhile he was writing
notes on & Weeli-day. Liuring our weekly music howr we were only allowed

to play Japanes», German, Italian and Hungarian rusic. Although we applied
for permission many times, cingizg, stage shows, lectures and lessons re-
mained striectly forbidden. Sports were completely out of the question,
also owing to our physical condition. Since June 9th once a week a few
hours of practicing music was permitted.

December 10th 194L: On December 10th all books, magazines, writing-

books and paper had to be Lanlied in to be censored. After one moanth the
bibles were returned on January 12%h, -IC.ZVER ALL OTHIR BOOKS (about 3000)
+«ZRE LOCKED U- AID ONLY RLTURNED .T THI END OF TIE WAR! For 9 months no one
Was supposed to have g book. Vhen books were found even in the sick rooms,
the Camp Cormander Areki and his assistanits would raise hell and beat the
offenders. .hen the Japs saw people resding it irrilated them; internees
Wwere supposed to works In Juce and July 1945 the Korean Kychara punished
also the Sector Ccumander if bocks vere found. He forced offenders and their
barrack and Sector Commanders to kanesl for 3 hours, witvh sherp edged pieces
of firewood between tae legs and thighis. Some of the offenders" fainted and
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lgy down on the ground for hours, One of them because he had an un-
censored bible! He said "this is only a light punishment”.
The withholding of books for 9 months was under orders from the
Jap captain Tekagi or the interpreter Hata, who alweys was too busy  TAKAGI
to attend to the censorship, although nsked a dozen times. "Then at HATA
the end of the war Hata came to release a part of the books he remerked:
"Flease do not misunderstand, I have always been so busy.
It was always my intention to quickly check and return
the books to you."
A typieal Jap excuss!
Valuable bocks on history, ert, economics and politics, including all
writing-books used by the internees during these years for studying pur-
poses, were taken awsy and used by the Japs for making writing paper.
/§ IBsd Cross Relief Goods.
@ Mav 23%-a 19i): The first Red Cross Medical Supplies were received.

; June 6th 194)i: On this day, after much delay, we received our first

; Red Cross food parcels from the International Red Cross. The parcels

| were handed over but certainly "with bad grace."

| The Korean Kazuyama anl the Japs stending eround the parcels made

remarks like thiss
“Now this is the Imperial Japanese Lrmy spirit; we dis-
tribute such goods. Now don't think that our nationals will
\/ ever receive anything sent by our Red Cross Organisatlon.’J

The above remakrs clearly illustrate that they do not have the slightest

notion what the International Red Cross Organisation means, and these

Jap ideas should be corrected. Of the cardboerd packing boxes many wWere
7 commandeered by the Japs. !Talklng about Red Cross parcels I mention here
r\ thet a second lot of parcels wes received &t Tjimahi on May 4th and after

delay distributed on May 25th 1945.

g, The Jep made much fuss about the sinking of the Red Cross steamer "Awa lMaru®.
Stories on the sinking were handed us, in which was stated that "they would
settle with conceitzd America on the battlefield.™ 100 internees had to

A write their opinion about the sinking by the American Navy and the "grace"
of the Jap authorities in distributing the goods. LThe way this second lot
was distributed is disgusting. All labels of the cans and packages were

taken off (in other ceamps even the labels of medical svpplies with di-

rections for use). All boxes with raisins, chocolates, sugar, soap stce

were opened and the contents pouwred into large barrels.

The official order all over Java was that also the cans had to be

opened and we were first told to come and fetch contents in buclets.

/e protested and managed So get the cans wnopensd, however within

LE hours all empty cans had to he peturned %o the Jap authorities!

(These empty cans were provebly sold by them as high prices were ob-

tainable). The medical staff of the camp deeclared that much of the

benefit was lost owing to the hurry in which everything had to be con-

i sumed. All Red Cross parcels received contained International Red

Cross iostcards for acknowledgment. These postcards were all confiscated

when the parcels were opened, Finally I declare that foodstuffs and

cigarettes, also articles of clothing were taken from the parcels by

many of the Jap and Korean guards. Soon after the arrival of Red Cross

percels at the Central Tjimshi Office, I saw Fei-ho's and Jgps smoking

| Chesterfield and Camel cigarettes, long before distribution to internees

; had taken place. At the Tjimahi Head-Office the Japanese Military Tolice
" checked the contents of each kind of Red Cross Tarcels.
i That at the Tjimahi Head-Office Red Cross Medical supplies were withheld

N/ till after the capitulation, I have already stated before.]

—

S S S T Ry

May 26th 1S44: All cameras, typewriters, sewing-machines, electric fans,
electrical cooking apparatus, big chairs, desks, beds, telescopes, gas-
rings ete. were confiscated, but of course these articles were never

in our possession in the camp.
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Labour:

Apart from the daily 200 worksrs for the Lewigadja-ferm e had to
supply the following number et various times:

200 workers for the soy-factory at Tjimahi

300 workers for ccnsiruciing sheds at Tjimindi
we often tried to gew this muaber reiaced, but always without results.
The 300 Tjindnli workerz were rorced up to 500 for a few deys on
September 25%h 19Li. TLis great number of workers was far too
much for this camp of 2800 ani arber mueh arguing we managed to
zget this high nuwber reduczed with 200,

The o ation of Araki, the Camp Comander in obtaining ARAKT
this reduction was ail. Araki was always snceriug at intermses who
did not (COULD 10T) work, He would say: "they are just like cattle,
they do nothinz but sicep and eat. It does not matter a bit if they
get 1little mcol’.

The waily groups of workers, when leaving the camp in the
morning were a'ways threateneld with beatings, or threatened "to
be murdered", if any contact with the local population or with
internee<s, from other camps was made.

i_Several times contact with wives or children was discovered

and in these casss the punishmens was terrible. Ordered by
KAZUYAVA all 300 workers had to kueel with bare laees on the KAZTYAMA
gravel, and had to hold up their hands above their heads. This
was kept up for one hour: Iif anrone moved thcy vere beaten and
kKickeds Several ended up unconscious. The motto of the Japs
always was "If one of the group is an offender, then &ll shall be
punished“. In one instauze when on 25/9 two men of barrack No. 11
had been caught in an atiempt to send a letter to their families, all
inhabitants of the barrack, including many old and wesk men, also
had to undergo the abewve kieeling-domn punishment. At the sight of
so much suffering by innc-zent old men thé offender plsaded with the Jap
to beat him as muck as they wanied, if he would only stop this collective
punishment, however with little result.

Apart from the collective punishments the culpvjts were terribly

mishandled, mainly again by Areki, Tekemoto and Shirayama, until ARAKT

they were unconscious and were carried to a hospital bleeding TAKEOTE

heavily. SEIRAYAMA
Kicking against the head, after the vietin fell was a

favourite action of Arski and others. ARATT
SHIRAYAMA mede his wictims stand to attention and then SHIRAYAMA

with kis gloved fisis kuccked them out on the clun. Then he would
empty a bucket of water over the victim's head, and mzke him stand
up agzain to repeat tne fin. The Camp Lirector AR4XI was always pre- ARAKI
sent. ARAKI and SHIRAYANA on July 8%h 1944 punished the internce SHIRAYANA
(Biljert) so cruelly that he was in the hospitel with wounds on
his legs for about 8 months. _

This man according to ARAXT had not propsrly bowed to the JRAKT
Captain; the victir had lef% Lis glasses and could not see properly.

dnother favourite purishient of all Japs and Loreans was to
beat "offenders® with bamboo ageinst the bars calves of the 1egs,
until the skin would burst and blocd pour cube

The spirit of the viciims always remained unbroken. Always
being close as interprster, several times after Plogging narties I
had to changs my shirt owing to blood splasies from the viebins! |

dnother way of ARAXI {0 pester us, was never to tell Ffor ARAKT
what purpose workers were needed. Hs would just "orgsr" 50 men, amd
if after 5 minutes they were not there, he would eater the camp with
a2 bamuoo pole or a whip and "collect® anyone he saw near.

lDurlng Yhis second helf of 1944 the corporal punishments

were tco numerous to tell all. The reasons varied between:

l, Our attitude was bad and w were not humble enough.

2, 'le were arrozant and conceited.

3. Our "etiquette® was wronz or we had no etiguette at all,

4. Ve had run away when a Jap was approaching, Wiich was an

insult to a member of the Imperial Japansse ¥orces.

E)‘
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5. They could read from our faces that our hearts were not
sincere, and that our thoughts were insulting to the
Imperial Japanese Amy.

6. Disobedience was shamped on our faces.

7o More than 4y wen wWere seon btogethers

8o Tae watar taps were uot properly closed (OWing to bad

materials).

9. The lights were put out cne minute late.

10, Cigaratse-butts were found in the gutier.

11. People had smcked during the night.

12, People were found in thec bathrooms after "lights out",
or befcre the merning rill-call,

13+ There had been talking after "lights out",

1. People pleyed bridge in the neighbourho«d of werking groupsi

15. A nightwatchman had put ¢n a blanket against the cold,
and had not bowed in time.

16, They found fault with the way a group of workers reported
at the gate.

and others.

I had to translate many mcralizing speeches. For many of the
above offences ARAILL put men in a bamboo cage day and nighi, sometimess
for 2 weeks. Sometimes a notice board giving the reasou had o be placed there

When words were exchanged tetwsen workers and Indoassians
they got specially mad. On October ist SAIRAY.IA said to 300 workers SHIRAYAN
going out: "If any of you talk to indonesiauns or others, with my
sword I will cut off all your necks",.

. - Apart from all these terrcrizing measures we often had the
Kempei here, taking away suspecis. When Kempei vietims rebturned
to the camp, most of the time they were physical wrecks, who had to
go straight to the hospital. Several of owr friends never returned
and were later recorted to hzve died. The beating of old and weak

- men seemed to have a special attraction for-ARAKI.) RAKT

"Tune 26th 19Mh: I saw ARAKI Leating old men of over 60 with the

bull's pizzle, on the head, on ths back, and against the legs, as
according to him they had not bowed correctly. I saw some of these
0ld men on their knees afterwards, asking God what they had done
to deserve such treatmenﬁﬂ I have seen ARALI, the Camp Cormander, ARASKT
beating patients, nut on Transnort to hospitel, vmder control of our
medical staff, "beccvse they were not lying down on the sireicher, but
sat up talkihg to friends*. He suspected them of faking iliness.
“hen on August 8th 1944 189 seafering mer 2:d (ivilian army

employees were mede prisoners of war and had to lse2es ihe canp,
the Sergeant SCEIAL WA ang £8AKT distrovsted the doctoris statament SOENAKALA
that one man had a severe ebtbtack of calewlus ia the kidaey, They £  ARAKT
forzed the patient to be transported, afser injecticns were given
g0 relieve tne Dain.

(I migut mention here that the order for rezistration of this
group on June 16th also read "inciuding neutrals®.)

ijgg_léth 19k): One of the worss bhz:ztinzs took place -n this date

when on one of the workers, a rerugez from Burope called GROAEN, was
found a small letisr frcm his wife, Whlcl l=2tter he hald ortaiu=d
"illegally" six monihs before emd which he ket for sspilmental

reasons. After a heavy corporel punishment by T&{HDIC =:j ARAKT TAKEMOTO
this internee was tzken to prison at <he Tjimasi He and so  ARAXT
severely beaten by many Jups and Korsans. thet afver 3 Aors taey re-

turned him to the cemp hospital, IRAKLI gave as explauaiion of his poor
condition "thet he hao resisted".

June 27th 19h4: This morning TAKELDTO beat up an interiuce he- TAKEMOTO
cause "his attituds towards the Hei-ho's was not humbls enough'.
He was accused of l:2ving pansed on remerks of ore Eei-ko vellin

Jap commands. During 1% bours this man was bsoier on 2is hare dback
with the bull's pizzie, il hls back Wwes cne blosding mase iike
a raw beef-steak, -RAKI did not interferc. AL last KEZUYAMA gid; ARLKT

in such cases XAZUYAL would hold a long moralizing speech and say: KAZUYAMA
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"You people are always asking for trouble, like a man in a
cucumber gerden fixing his shoe-laces, or like a man in an crcheard
touching his hat."

/T\ :Au&n&i.ZﬁIb.l&hL: To-day was one of the many times the Camp-
leader and the Cemp-~doctor spoke to the Jap doctor 3AKAI, about
‘ the poor food siiuation. ‘e told him that we got from Nippon
, a bare 1100 calories a day, with lack of proteins, vitamins, fats,
| etc. ete. This doctor S4KAL was kept up to date with the focd SIKAT
% situction, and the increasing cases of undernourishment. He never
; did anything to improve the situztion, which was made perfectly clear
i to him. ‘“hen in July/August 1945 200 workers after medical examina-
tion by doctor SLKAL were Cirecied from this camp to TIITTALEKA, to
build a railway dam, under ithe most appalling conditions, this Dr.
SHAL also visited these Tji:jalanka "stables" and apperently found it
not necessary to raise a provest, as any decent doctor should heve
done. Also the Bandoeng Colone: AIAMI visited the temporary ANANMI
Tjitjalanka camp regularly and spparently allowed our workers to live
under such bestiel conditions. The workers there had practically no
water a} all, and that being exposed to the sun the whole day. They
slept on the earth and were subjected to muchk beating. If the war
had net come to an end, many sf us would have died there.ﬁ This
‘/” Tjitjalenka affair should be investigeted and those resjonsible should
be brought to justice.

July 23rd 394L: The Korean guard-Commender SHIRAYANA flogged an

internce severely because he had used a magnifying glass to light a

pipe! Owing to lack of matches it wes a common practice to make use

of the sun-rays. This member of the Imperial Tapanese Forces suspected

that such apparatus might be used for "secret signals"! The maegnifying

glass was confiscated and smashed to the ground, but later on again

"stolen" from the Jap and put back into use. On this same day at 11 Dollle

a nightwatchman on duty in front of one of the barracks was hit on the

head by SHIRAYAlLL, as he neglected bowing correctly. This internce SHIRAYANA
that moment had an attack of asthma.

Religion.

From May 18th 1944 weekly divine services were allowed again, how-

ever no sermons and no singing. A4s this was not sufficient, the

Protestant Clergymen applied for permission to explain the Bible.

KiZUYAA agreed on June 8th 1944, On June 26th the Catholics KAZUYAMA
asked for Holy lMass-wine and host. Thesz were refused by Araki. ARAKT
Most of the time not even a shed was available for Divine Services,

as the camp was crowded. From July 1944 the Sunday was sbolished and

Monday vas declared a holiday, a@s in the Jap Army.

/N [Aucust 13th:

§ ihe Eishop ard the oldest minister requested on Auzust 13th to re-

i esvablish the Hnly Sunday for our workers. The reply by ARAKI and

3 KALOYAMA was: "Japo-sible, you are now under the Nippon Army which  ARAKY
takes rest on Monday." "You de not understand your social position, K4iZUYAMA
you are asking too much."
‘hen we said that according to their original proclametion when

the Apmy took over, our National customs would be respected, KiZUYAMA

said: "Waturally, but you have no dountry anymore.:j

Clothing:
Very often we pointed out to the Jap that after years of interament
e had insufficient clothes; many had been pickzd up from tke street
during razzia's and some had come from jails with practically nothing.
On May 16th end June lst we were asked how meny of us had not
sufficient clothing for the next 6 months. “e were also asked to give
a statement of needed mattresses and blankets, however during 194 and
1945 only very little was received.
(Puring 1942 and 1943 nothing at all)
On July 26th 194k we received: 195 military troussrs
121 military coats
272 military bhats
On 19th August a small lot of eivilian elothes was received,
q\ but that was all for thousands of people in 3} years. | It should
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fh be menthoned here that during July 1944 I picked up several Jap

| conversations sbout the enormous number of clothes end hovsehold

i goods still held in the womenu camps. It was the topic of the day!

| . I am convinced that one of the reasons these origzinal women camps were
\L’ liquidated was just plain robbery! {

Lights.

On June 28th all lamps of 60 watt and higher had to he handed in.

This measure made it pracsiically iunpossible to read al nigat in

the barracks or in gba horpitala,

Later on Korean gucrds comm.adesred mora lamps. 4RAKI did not stop ARAKT
ther doing so. Many Sim:: we asked for new laaps, but never got them,

The reply was: "t“nfw are none, it is not that we can not make them

in Jopan, but war indusiry comes firsv." The rooms remained poorly

lit and the muwldy rceds pitch dork. After the capitulation many

large lamps were handed in.

September 9th 194M: On September 2nd for the first time a

growp of wrkers entered the camp from Camp MYo. 4. Neaturally
friends and relations in txls camp btailted with them, The guard
commander SHIRAY/IA; vhen he s=aw the’, raised hell. He ordered SHIRAYAMA

the kitchen not to swpply any meals uniil he kuew who had

had conversation and what they had talked abeu’. He assembled

about 25 internees and started hitting then with a bamboo pole‘

however after a lot of expleining by me and the Camp-leadéer

SHIRAYANA stopped and listened to resason. SHIRAYAMA

September 15th 19L4: An inquiry was held as to Army men in the

camp. K.ZUY.MA said: ®People should honestly disclose all KLZTUYATA
connection; they have nothing to fear. On the cornirary they

will be treated muclh betier. Reczeivs hetter food and better

pay." Very few came forward. “hen regisirations were ordered

by the Jap autloritiss, it was always my policy to translate

exactly what the Jap said. ‘ven if his words implied other

groups. “hea such other zroups were not specifically menrtioned

the registration of such persons did not take place. So in this

case Navy men and Home-gusrds were not registered here.

f\ ngg_gmpgr 19%h 194k : To--day, and also on many other occasions,
the Japs tried to intrig.s between Dusehh Zurasians and pure Dutchmen.
: They wanted Furasiarzs, “with the biood of Asia in their veins" to
v Spy for them., L&-CY4MA $aid we Datcimen nover cared for the
Furasian's fate. “hen the war was over would We receive them
in Holland? They could not stay here of course, if they were
not pro-Japanese. And they certainly were not! On August 3lst,
our "ueen's Birthday, I saw groups of Eurasians lined up
outside their barracks, softly singing our N-~tional Anthem,

and on this day Takemoto was on duty in the camp. TAKTE0TO

September 28+ih 19): The Xorean ISHIGAVA came on duty for ISHIGAVA

the first time. TFor many months we had been trained by

TAKZDOTO and SHRAVAMA, however this trutal, impertinent, TAKEMOTO

irresponsible rascal still inereased the pressure. SHIRAYAMA
Then ISHIGA.A was on duty, uobody was safe, not even the ISHIGATA

regular office workers who passed his desk 50 times a day.

On October 13th 1944 at 8 p.m. When the office staff was
exiremely busy, working day and night, owing to large
transfers of internces, the Head of the Camp Administration
in passing in a hurry, forgot to bow one time. On this
ISHIGAUA flogged him for one hour, then he called svery- ISHIGATA
body in the office, including some doctors who had been
called there to give some medical details, and beat them
all with a bamboo pole. Muite unexpected and sudden outbursts
A like t-is happened time and again, | ISHIGA.A on Qet. 26th ISHIGATA
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ordered the Camp-leader to hring to him all bad and
unwilling characters ¢f the canp. He wouid teach them
to obey the Nippon orders. 4lso marny otheirs often gove
similar orders., but of course nooody was produced.

October 27th 19hk: The Captain T4KAGT today talked to the TAKAGE
Camp-leader! He said: "the new men in yeur camp Formerly
were all prominent people, they are mostly wmwiliing to obey
any orders and are arrogant, all difficult characters should
be brought to LRAKT " ARAKT
It must be stated here that on May 22nd, June 27th and October
lst a registration had been ordered in all camps to get the
names of all leading persons in Government, business and
industry, Epecially mentioned were: engineering
communications
shioping
harbour & dock works
air transport
gas & electricity
agriculture
& all leading Neth.Indies Commerecial
Institutions.
All these prominent peopls, about 1500, were concentrated in
Camp 5 during October 19:4. These included " jew and free
masons", and were not alloved tc work outside the camp.
They had to wear a red triangle under their number, since January
1st 1945. The reason of this concentration should be found out,
probably the Japs had intentions to transfer them “elsewherfjlj

October 21st 19hh: Kazuyama left and a new sub-commander

HIGASHIB4RA appeared, From the very first day he helped us HIGASHIBARA
against extortion and unfair interference by the guards.

Later on he was a great help in obtaining additional food-stuffs

for the camp, and not only for his own benefit. Like most others
owever, he was not tempered and he has been brutally beating of-
fenders. During his "reign", trade with Hei-ho guards was booming,

as prices for clothing were sky-high, and with proceeds internees bought
2dditional fcod-stuffs. In 19/2 all internees were allowed f1.10,- when en-
tering the camps, so thot this trade was inevitable. This trading with
Hei-ho's was however strictly forbidden; an official Central auction
system was established on October 27th at TJIILEI, to stop this trade,
however, interness got very low prices there, and it took 3 to 4 months
to get the proceeds. As a result, and owing to the shortage of materials
outside the camps, this illzzal trade increased daily, Iniernees and
Hei-ho's were severely beaten for davs, put in the bamboo cage for days,
hovever, trade went on flourishing. Sometimes, as on December 5th

and 19th the Jap closed the camp-shop for a few days. At last the

Japs threatened to stop all additional food purchases by the canteen;
even for the hospital.

In this stage about 25 dealers were asked by the Camp lManagement and

the Camp iolice to stop their transactions. ‘/hen some of them still
continued and thus endangered the camp as a whole, reluctantly they

were brought to HIGASH.BARA. After Deating them on Januvary 1l4th he

put them together in one group and kept them under watech. No further
serious ftrouble occurred.

On December 12th our internal Camp Police had been reorganized and this
small force prevented much. The sub-commander HIGASHIBARA several times
warned us in time vhen there was danger of trade being discovered.

Sentember_15th 1ShA: An inguiry was held as to Army men in the

camp. KAZLUYAMA sajd: "People should honestly disclose all connec-
tion; they have nothing to fear. On the
contrary they will be treated much better.
Receive better food and better pay."

Very few came forward.

Then registrations were ordered by the Jap authorities, it was

always my policy to translate exactly what the Japs seid. Tven
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if his words implied other groups. ‘/hen such other zroups were not
specifically mentioned the registration of such persons did not take place,
So in this case Navy-men and Home-guards were not registered here.

September 19th 1944: To-day, and also on many other occasions, the

Japs tried to intrigue between Duteh Burasians end pure Dutchmen. They

ranted Burasians, with the blood of Asia in their veins to spy for them.
KiZUY AL said we Dutchmen never cared for the Burasian's fate. “'hen the
war was over would we receive them in olland? They could not stay here
of course, if they were not pro-Japanese. And they certainly were note

On August 31st, our Tueen's Birthdey, I saw groubs of Eurasians lined up
outside their barracks, softly singing our National Anthem, and on

this day TAKI0TO was on duty in the camp.

October 1st 19hL¢ /RAKI ~gain assembled our Cemp Yolice and
instructed them to gquickly report tc them everything and to
bring all offenders to him. This was never doue.

October 6th 19hL: At Tjimindi, trading with Indonesians in

clothing by one internee was discovered. The offender was punished on the spo-
On returning to the camp, however, as usual the Guard Commander wanted

to heve his share and continued the punishment. This man was beaten

heavily. The guards would often tie up victims to a tree or a building

with a rope, in a very painful manner. This was also done to-day;

as usual again threatenings to punish the whole camp by stooping the
canteen-purchasings.

October 27th 1ShL: A refrigerator was received by the cemp and placed
in the camp hospital. After a few days, IRITT gnd KAZTYALA ordered
this refrigerator to be placed in their quarters. They only allowed
the medical staff to put medicines there.

NEIS: One thirg that terribly annoyed the Jap was that although

they did their best to withhold all news from us, he somehow felt we
were "in the know" abovt war developments. In all Tjimahi camps,

there were always scme very daring men, who supplied the news. This
news-supply did much to ksep up the morale of the internees. Newspapers
and cuttings were smuggled in; very cleverly hidden, radio sets were
kept secretly. Newspapers were stclen from the Jap's office and bedroomsS.
Later on also the Hei-ho's now getting interested themselwves, from time
to time, sold newspapers.

On April 6th 1944 ARAKT said, "You people should get rid of the idea
that the war may last only another 3 months. You will be prisoners

for at least another 2 or 3 yearsl!" For the Jap this was quite a come-
down efter the contemplated 100 years war.

November 9th 194J: 195 patients were transported to Central Java
"here they would zet better food and beiter housing". According to
what we heard, conditions in Centreal Java were worse than here, and
many ere rejorted to have died.

and preparations made. 4t 8 p.m. in walked 148 children of 11 and 12
years old, taken from their mothers -t Patavia. It was a pitiful sight,
as it was raining, but the spirit of these youngsters was splendid.

4 few days later another transfer came from Batavia, numbering 201,
amongst whom 151 men were over 60 years of ageiJ

/ﬁ [‘ﬁovember 11th 19.)i: To-day a new zroup of 150 internees —as expected

i

Ngxgﬂmgx;lZEQ_lﬁha: All money above f£l.10.- had to be hended in.
Noyember 30th 194k: All Wetherlands Indies banknotes had %o be

exchanged for Jap notes. "hen the Canteen offered f£1,3300.-
belonging to the camp, to be exchanged, it was placed on deposit
by 4KI, Only f£1.10.- was exchanged.

December 2 19kb: A dog had dared to bark when a Jap passed.
The Jap was insulted; the owner i@s beaten and the dog killed.
The k-eping of docs was forbidden, but the Jan knew that a few

B vt
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sets were kept. 4RAKI had them all killed, the last one on
TFebruary lith 1945, after putting fhe owner with his dog

in a bamboo cage for 24 hounrs:

Januzry 2nd 1945: The Japs ordered to make a statement of all

mele Telotions in other prison camps. COnce more they said it was their
intention to bring families togeiher as much as possgible. Ornly pactly,
at Tjimahi we succeeded in getting some chiléren here. Ar intern=e, a
regular worker, was accused by =RAl and the sub-commander of being
disobedient and unwilling to work. He was bsaten and kicked, had to
stend till 10 p.m. and after a second beating was then released.

Some private tools were found on an internce, who wos using them
repairing rabbit-hutches. He was struck in the face many times by ARAKT.

Januapv Lth 1045: Takemoto on asproaching sew one internee in-

a group of five hide his wedding-ring. 411 five were punished.
Takemoto Tent as far as ordering Sector Commanders to produce some
gold rings! They all refused and the next morning they were beaten
with a bamboo pole, on the pretext, that they did not control properly
the roll-ceall.

| Januarv 6th 19.5: New internees from the family-camp had been promised

that from their deposits certain amounts would be placed at the disposal

of their wives, who had stayed behind in Bandoeniz. Nothing came of it,

and when Araki was a proached on the subject he just said: "impossible".

“e had about fl. 100.000,-on denosit in the names of the few hundred
internees and we applied for monthly drawings of f1.40.~ for each inhabitant
of the camp, to which depositors agreed, and which had been alloved in
Batavia. Our proposal was refused. |

Januery 9th 1945: 30 internees were allowed to write down anonymously
their thoughts and impressions on camp-matters. Many complaints were
lodged, however with no results.

Januerv 13th 16L5: General searching of the barracks.

411 had tc go outside and searching parties went into our buildings.
Nothing much was found but many books end writing tocks with notes were
talken away and burned. Iany books were saved by the internees, carrying
back through one door, the books which had been taken out by the Japs
through another! Some medicines were stolen. This was the second
searching; having had one before in January 194} . At that time much more
was taken away; in some cases even photographs of wives and children.

i January 15th . 78 British subjects received £1.5900.- (£1.75,84 each)
through the 4Apostolic Delegate at Tokyo, from Vatican Uity.

f1.5,84 was paid in cash ¢nl the balance wes placed on deposit. The
British shared with /mericans. After a few monthly payments of f1.10.-
per person, drawing was altogether forbidden. After the capitulation

of Japan the balance was paid out. 4 second remittance of £1.10.000.- and
£1.700.~ was received by the British and Americans after the capitulation.
They donated the canteen with f1‘15oo.:;j

Janusrv 16th 19/5: The Dutch in the camp received £1.20500.=. About
f1.9.- was paid oui %o sverybody in the camp, except the British and
Americans, who hed raccived a remittance a few days before. A second re-
mittance of about the same amount was received also after the capitulation.

January 20th 19/5: Contact and remittance of money vie the TIDMAHIT -
hospital and Chinese dealers had been traced. The offenders were pun-
ished, one placed in the bamboo cage, and on Jamuary 28th the cul-
prits who had received and divided 71.12.000.- some 5 months beforey
were delivered to the Japanese lTilitary Iolice.-

ifter ) months they returned to the camp. Their tr-oatment, although
severe had been better than usual. The attitude of Indonesian guards
had also changed for the better. .ar developments were having their
effects.
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A Korean guard (name unknown) beat a whole group at the roll-call out-
side barrach No.ll as one of them hed whistled vhen joining the group.

Janvary 26th 1945: Stricter working-howrs were enforced: 9-12-30

1"30-5 o™
January 29th 194 5: 4 detailed medical memorandum about the food sit-
uation was handed to the Jap authorities. Translated into English
eand Japanese., The Japs were pretty mad and the raosult wes nyils;

Februarv 10th 1945: Frobably under instructions from his superiors

the Sergeant SOTIACA.4 came %5 the cemp and "interviewed" some SO INAGAVA
internsps on ths war situation aid on conditions in the camp.

Naturally nobody kunew much about the war situvation except that Japan

was losing the war. From the interview it was clear that the Japs were

much worried end thinking about coming developments. Soenagawa said how-
ever: "It is impossible that a nation with a spirit like Japan can ever be
beaten. "

Febrvary 21st 1945: At 11 p.m. the interpreter was wekened by 4LRAK ARLK

as two men working in the kitchen had not bowed correctly. These two

men were beaten, ithrown to the -~round, kicked and then returned to

the camp after having had to promise future good behavior,
 Mareh 2rd 1945: Araki called Sector Commenders and asked them:

"“hat do you imow about the war-situstion? How do vou think that bad

and disobedient characters in the camp menage to get news?" All poker-
faced Sector Commanders "hed no idea"; we asked for a regular supply of
newspapers, as all we gol was a few numbers of the "Voice of Nippon" and
the "Nippon Times",

The Japs increased their evening rounds through the camp to tryv and cateh
us at "news supuly". They never found a thing which made them irritable.
This evening at 12 p.m. when Araki malked through a barrack with his heavy
boots, some internces being half asleep who did not know who it was, shouted:
"Don*t make so much noise." Araki was raging wiaen he called the interpreter.
Two men were called and beaten; one of them was put in the bamboo cage for
three days and got pneumonia. Aralki said "I will not be insulted. You
people all have evil characters and can only misbehave."

LUarch 19th 19,%: Some postcards writien in Malay lanzguaze were found

"not clear" or "insulting" to the Imperial Japanese Army by the censor Hata.
He beat several "suspects" and one was placed in the bemboo-cage for a few
dai's.

April hth 1945: After transporting firewood some small pieces were still
found on the road. These should have been removed., A few hundred men

were lined up and were threatensd that *he wole camp would get no food

this dgy. Finally two young men volunteered for a licking, took the blame
and were punished.

Abril 6th 19455 One internee had dared to put a gquestion to a Korean guard
wout the distinctives of Korean and Jepaese guards. He was beaten by
wenoto.  Firstly because he had asked avout militery matters and TAKEMOTC
Secondly because he dared to presume vhere was a difference between

Xereun and Japanese guards. There certainly was a difference; Araki said
one day talking about the Korean sub-cormander: "Thet one is not a Japanese,
he is only just like a Chinese!" 'Mie Korean sub-commander told us once
ebout Araki: "Don't ask that Jap anything, there is nothing that he can
arrange.® These quwtations cleariy show that there was friction between
these two members of the Jap forces; and we often had to pay for such
friction.

April 7th 19h5: 4 group of workers was beaten and kicked by HIGASHIBARA
as they had stopoed working before 12-20 p.m. Some of them had to
undergo treatment at the camp-hospital. HIGASHIBARA definitely was not
a bad character, however he orten fiew into a rage. After this incident
he confessed having been unable to control himself end showed sincere
regrets,

April 16th 1945: A saw-mill was started in the camp as a part

of the soy factory across the road. The saw-mill workers got extra

food and on the whole had no complaints. The Formosan boss of the

soy factory Sai behaved decently to the workers. SAI
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April 2hth 19.5: Again an inquiry was made sbout the protectors
of children in the camp. Cnce more they were gzoing to bring

them together with their fathers. This time nothing hapoened.
Uay 14th 19L5: A new series of registrotions started: Chauffeurs
and motor car repair-men; railway men; electricians; armourers
and all other technicians. Specizlly the new sub-commander

KIYOBaRA ordered these registrations with much threatening; KYOH/RA
if non-registration was found out he beat offenders.

lay 29.5: This camp came under new management. The Jap

Sergeant AOKI and his assistant Kyohara (Korean) tcok ovar ACKT

from Araki and Higashibara. They said: "Ve are different

from the previous management. Ve strictly execute orders and
vant our orders to be strictly executed. The revoris on this

camp are bad. Too much money came in illegally. Too much food-
stuffs were bought illegally and the attitude of the infernees

all formerly prominen®t members of your community is still
arrngant." Generally speaking the Sgt. Aoki behaved correctly.

He strictly carried out the orders he got from higher author-
ities and has ncver beaten savbody. After the capituletion

when disturbances outside threatcned to occur, he was on duty

day and night for our protection. Xyokara on the contrary was
very conceited and executed collective punishments for incdividual
offences. Kyohara had a special weakness for numbers and anyone
for one minute without a number risked severs corporal punishment.
After misbehaving himself for about 1 month Kyohara capitulated
for the heavy guns of bribes and corru tion and restarted the
illegal suoply of additional purcheses which had been stopped

when the new management took over. :
Officially it certainly was the intention fo siarve us further, as on
oy 27% 15: 4 new regulation was enforced allowing only a
daily 10 cents per person to %= bought in the cantzen (later on
increased to 15 cents for workers). This amount was criminally
low as onlyr a cake of sosp cost already f£.1.40! “hen we protested
and pointed out the enormous rise in prices the reply was:

"You people have spent too much in the past. ‘e know this

was all money illegally obtained from somewhsre and this is a
punishment which may last scme times" Moreover there is still

too much illegal trade with Hei-ho's,

In camp No. 4, Tjimahi illegal trade in clothing had again been
discovered and for one day gll Tjimahi camps were allowed no fcod.

The new Cormander Sergeant Aoki managed to get this order A0KT
annulled as far as this camp was concernede.

Mav_31st 1945: All payments on deposits held up since April

1945 were to-day officially stopped. Probably all part of the

scheme to starve us further. Only after the capitulation was the

balance of all Ceposits paid out.

_Juna 8%h 1945: In order to sto» illegel trade in clothing with

Hei-ho's regulations were made for the sforing in the camp of
all pieces of clothing above a fixed meximum. If people did not

comply they would be severely punished. As Kyohara said: "By me and by
people who did not care at all if they murdered some interneew.”

v June Zth 19:5: ‘hen talking to Aoki abou: conditions in the camp

| about food shortage, medical swplies, housing (bed bugs!) etc.
Aoki said: "The Java camps compared to the Fhilippines, Burma,
Sumatra and New Guinea are much better. A Japanese Red Cross Auth-
ority recently visited Java and he was angry about favourable
conditions here." To which Kyohara added: "In the U.S.A. we JapP-
anese are treated badly. Conditions are much worse than yours. |
Also on accowmt of racial discrimination. If we treat you well we
are doing so in the hope thet our nationals will also get a simil®r
good treatment. In T.S.A, prison-camps Japanese who complain abou®
food were shot, here in ' our essays you can complain freely without
risk,"

It is not necessary here to say anything about treatment of Japanese




Doe. No. 5762 Eage 23

in the U,S.4. ‘e know that conditions there were much better.
ile also know that HiIRZI ON JiVa OUR C.Ii3 WIRE NIVER VISITED BY
ANY RED CROSS RZiRTS ITaTIVES.

June 10th 1945: A member of the oifide staff was beaten by

Kyohara as he did a0t bow correctly. This was done "to put an

example". lany times orders about some job to be done were given

by different Japs, which orders seldom agreed. In such cases the
internees alweys naid the price,

June 19th 1945: The Jap “.uar.-rmaster Kanchira beat and KANCHIRA
kicked our "Mess Zergeant® on account of some stocks in our

camp godown. I[i "ms a complete misundersiandinz but Kanchira

was the rough tyye specially in the beginning. .In this case

the vietim suffered a bruised rib.

June 20th 19i5: rrom the Initernational Red Cross we received

our first reading matter; scme books (10) and some pemphlets on engineering.
June 21st 19/ 3: The new management again insisted on correct bowing.
Kyohara said that otherwise he would beat us. Aoki said: "beating
should not be necessary ot all if you only paid proper attention."”

June 20th and Jupe 28tk 1Sh5: TUncensored bocks and eleactrical water
boilers were found and offenders heavily punisked as already

mentioned under the parcgraph "Rscreation'.

Kyohera said: "7hy all this oppocition to orders? I will not tolerate
any. ‘e follow up orders even if death is involved. I shall educate
offenders. My words should penetrate into the h=arts of all ccncerned.

I have many vays to punish you all e.g. by stopping all food for every-
body in the camp for one week. You people think too much individually.
You should all think collectively for the benefit of everybody. You

are like a potato in the field; the field as a whole counts.” Acki said:

.®7e Japanese never think of individual gaine,”’

July 4th 1945 : Again we sirongly protested against lack of cal-

ories in our daily fcod rations. Vhat we got from the Army always

wes now around 1000 calorics per Jday. The Japs knew that to exist
properly a minimum of over 2000 calories was needed. Xazuyama KAZUYAVA
told me onee that 2100 calories wcre necessary. The canp leader

told the Jap Comand=r that people were dying in the hospital

owing to lac: of meat and I told them that rats, snakes, snails and

dozs were caucht and killed tc provide for the sick. JAoki and Kyohara
after consulting the Tjiimani lead Office allowed one or two kilogram
meat per week for the hospitais. Kyokara csught 2nd brought us a

dog and very proudly said: %30 pounds fres of chargs". ! 52 essgys were
asked from us aboub the camp situation. Some very clear talking was now
done and all 52 essays were transleied by our translator inbto Japanese.
The Jap Aoki took it smilingly, he said: (on August 9th 1945) "You people
are like frogs in a well that can not see the poor conditions out- :
side. You people say you are gziting weaksr on account of lack of

food but you sleep too much in the ‘ay time. Ycu people do not
understand vet your position as war-prisoners.”

July 2hth 1945: The group of workers who were daily fetching our
forage from ths Central Food depots had to be changsd. It was found out
that the lender had "illegal" cmntaet with the cutside world; although
he was sentsnced to 3 weeks solitary confinement the ettitude of the
Japs was much milder than usual. Future developments were dawning.
August 1st 1945: e tried again to gt a better mater suply, however
with no results. The Jap said: "Compared to other camps you are vell
off. You'people have nzver been at the front and can not understand
what a real weter shortsge is like." In these days Xyohara was
beginning to help us with clandestines food purchases of which foki

was not to know a thing., Kyohara said: "If you have a dog and he
performs tricks nicely as ordered bty his mester, vou are inclined

to give him something nica. VWith you it is the same, if you all

beheve nicely I can do things for you."

August Atk 1945 HaTd ‘Lo office and assembled 17 internees
who h:zi in t'heir postrards hinted at a quick end of the war; they

were beaten by him cud later on also by Kyohara who said:
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"That you people are conceited and arrocant since b 3
can not help, but I will not toterate it." To the Sector
Cormanders Kyohara said in this conneciions: "7 will no more
allow them to wife again ,r to receive postcards®. The soul

£ the Sector Co manders is rotten. I can read on rour faces
that you do not take my words seriousiy.”
sugust 22nd 19h5: Although we knew secretly by radio all about
the capitulation of Japan, officially we were informed by the
Jap to-day, that the war was over.
loki said: "There is no defeat, but the war is stopped Ly the
Emperor to heve peace isnt. The use of a special kind
of bomb mz2ie noncombaibants suifer oo moch.® Ap areatly the
news of defeat was at that time withkeld from him.

4

! huoust/Septembar 19L5: After the capitulation the Col. Anami

the Captain Takagi and the Camp Commander many times tried

to improve the Lousing conditions by giving more sbhace e

each internce (2fter 500 men had been transferred to Bandoeng

in July).

‘le refused and said: "for three vears Wwe have been lying like
dogs and now in the end Ve are not interesited in the changes
suggested by you'.

The attitude of all Japs and Koreans changed completely aftew
the capitulation. Some sucdenly behaved poiitely trying to save
their skin, some of them acted under orders and suddenly used
solite words irstead of the coarse language they had been using
for years.; If during ihase years of iniernment there had been
some purposely organized cpposition, the Japs would hcve had a
right to act severely, however all this contianuous madnsss atout
petty-offences was entirely senseless and purnosely done to make
our liwes miseradle.

NOVER AGATN IN THEE FUTURE SHOULD 4 PULCHE OF DATGFRCTS ERUTES LIKE
THT JAPANISET EE ALLOVED TO HLVE ANY WEA-QONS 4T THEIR DISPOSAL.

le cen not be thenkful encugh to all armed forces that contributed
in obtaining our release rrom the hands of sucih brutal soldiseryoe

ANAT
TARAGY
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5¢¢u Tr¢ undersigned CVLKHLES JONGENEIL, first licutenent ReNoleio,

Yead of tre Viar.Crincs Secticn of NETFIRLINDS FORCES IKVILLI-
GENCTE. SERVICI (NEFIS) becing first culy sworn on cothr deposes
and stetes thet the smmexecd reroxt is on coriglnel doewment
entitled:

"Sworn sw.rery c¢f exenincticn of Mr. GIRFLRDUS DE L:&NG,
Police Officer stteocted tc NIFIS, deted 15 Mey 1946."
O11/7111/L
whieh dceurient bes been teken frer the cffieclzl Teecres of
tre NEFIS.
SIGHLTURE
BATLVI., Junc 7tk 1946,
E /s/ €. Jcngencel
| SELL)

Subseribed endé sworn to befcore re, K. L. de VIERD, first
1fentensnt ReN.i.h., Figher offielal attochred to the Office
of trec Lttorney-Generel NoBeIe

/S/ K. .L"... "'L, ‘.b(_r:‘a
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Surnery of exendneticn of: lir. Gerhercus DI L NG 3
Occupeticn t  Pclice @ficoy itb. to REFIS
»(0ress : Noe.3 Enmgelsehckerkver, Botevir,

Buly swcrn stetes, I en 56 yeors cof r¢ey ~f Duter neticnslity .
end boern in Ileng, Jeve, ‘
I an et present residing Engclscrckerkweg no. 3 Betevie,

Jave .

In Oectcber 1944 I wes tronsferred with ~ther ¥igh
Dotelr cfflicieols to Beres nes 5 eriipy Tiinehi ornd rersined
trerc until July 1945 vren I wes rencved to bospitel, |

Trectnent =t this ef21p ws very bod indeed ond ve
received wery little food.

Wren prticnts were very ill trey werce rafoved to
Pospitels.

about 1500 or 1600 denths occurzred ot tre Tiinchi i
cerips due te ninlnutrition, stonceh corpleints ond lack
cf nedieines, The 1 cdieines were kept by thre Jepenese
whrc refused to issue thar until =ftcr the Jeprnese i
cepituleticn,

I o not know the nenes of 2ny of tre Jeonrnese ecenp
steff 2t Baros or the otber eonps a2t Tiinahi, but consider
they werc e11' responsible for tre deatks whiek ceccurred,

/s/ De Leng ‘

Interpreter,

I certify trat I culy trensleted tre ebove swuwrry to the
wlthess in Pis own lengusge, pricr te Pis signeture wrieh
epbears above,

Signeturce 1lleiible
Intcrprcter

Sworn before me  /s/ V. Bs Hasen
Cepta :
Tris 1st Cey of liry 1946, :

Deteiled tc exendnc tre abeve by the Coreonder-in-Cricf,
£4iied Lend Forecs, Scuttr bBest issia,
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The undersigned (HARLES JONGENEEL, First Lieutenant R.N.T.A.,
head of the War Crimes Section of NETHRERLANDS FOPCES INTZLLICENCE
SERVICE (NEFIS) being first duly sworn on oath deposes and states
that the annexed report is a full true, complete and accurate
cony of the orlolnal document Pntltled

"General review of the treatment of women internees camp
Tjihapit", signed A.'. Droog-Hartgriulo, dated Batavia
12-9-145%", Vo, 0M/388/E

which document is a. part of the official records of the NEFIS.
SIGNATURE :
BATAVIA, June 7th, 1946

(SEAL)

Signed - Ch. Jongeneel

Subsceribed and sworn to before me XK. i de WRERD, First Lieutenant
E.7.I.A. Higher official attached to the office of the Attorney -

General N.E.I.

Signed - X. a. deeerd
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GENET AL EEVIEY OF T TREAT ENT OF “/OIEN
THTEEMEES CA'P "THIHAPIT",

At the beginning accomodation was sufficient, i.e. about g2
per person. However bacause more and more veople were coming
in at the end of December 1944 space allotted to every person
was reduced to 21 M2, Tt is to be stated that families got
less snace than "alone" l1iving »eople i.e. a mother and taree”
children got less swmace than four peovle who were not as a
family. Tn the "boyscamp" space was still smaller per person.
To keen the living space at 2% M2 we had to onen uo godowns,
which were ovt of vse because of leaking roofs beyond repair,
or smelling drains. Psople vreferred these zodowns above having to
shaté & room with ancther family with noisy children, ete.
D te October 1944 we haé no trouble to speak of with the
Jananese, The native guards did not bother us much. Some of
them thought theyv were the boss now, but most of them were
decent. The first guards were the so-called P.3.0.'s, young
Indonesian hoys of 15-20 vears of age (no Hei-Ho's). They
alwayvs tried to help us when the Japs were out of sight.
September/October 1944 the Bandoang Command was changed over.
T don't know the name of the Jananese Commander. After the
new commander had established himself the Xeirei orders had
to be obeyed. HOSHINO saw to it with many beatings. District HOSHINC |
and Group-commanders were not beaten for mistakes made by
their subordinates, however they should not interfere if they
saw one of theirs being in trouble with the Japanese. Tn our
camp was also a male-working party. One of them, 'r. Leeman
was kicked in the abdomen by a Jananese guaré and died on his
way to the hospital 3rd July 1944, According to Dr. Iischer
is death was entirely caused by the Japanese soldier.
¥rs., Schoe, chief of the sewing-denartment, was beaten up
because of the lights not being shaded enough. With a concus-
sion of the brain she had to stay in the hospital for about
1+ month and will orobably be suffering from headaches for
another year. Another incident hanpenad when the Fam. KASCHA
reported to the Japansse that somewhere in 2 drain a Japanese
flag was tramnled down. Mrs. Niemeyer was hold responsible
beaten up, kicked around and locked up for a week.(lMay 144)
A general and seriovs complaint is the one against the treat-
ment of the November/Decembor 1944 transports. Patients,
| aged people, younz kids and the strong ones were mixed and
| crowded 1ike cattle in the buses and trains. MURUI was run- MURUI
ning along the railway carriages beating here and there and

urging people to go inside the carriages as ouick as possible,
(lekas, lekas!) leaving the stretcher patients for hours in the
rain at the station. One carriaze load had to wait 1# hour for
the bus, standing in an ankle-deep pool of water. This trans-
port happensd during a dysentery epidenic and the trip to
Ambarawa which lasted 3 days did not do mucih good to it, every
bodv was alrsady soakinz wet before they entered the trainlj
The Way 1945 transports wers much more quiteter. g
Feeding in the camp, was insufficient. Avitaminose and oedeem
were common diseases. Via the shop we could buy quite a lot
of brown beans, which according to the doctors saved the camp
from a disaster. .t the beginning of A»ril 1945 the shop was
ciosed by the Japs, stock confiscated. The next 3 weeks was a
real hunger neriod until the shop was open again.
Up to the Vay transports to Batavia, we had enough food coming
in via the shop. All work in the camp was done by us (at the be-
ginning assisted by the wales from the Family-internee Camp,
later by psonle from the 15th Rat. Camn) .
Organization of the kitchens, bakery, hygiene Squad, hospital
ete. was up to us. Workers were naid £1.0,15 a day by the Jans.
| And they decided which narties could be paid and which not.
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Those wnarties which the Jans thounght wnnecessary hut were re-
guired by us, were paid out of the »rivate camo-fund,
On Jananasse orders we wers ordzerced to start a tailorshop
with 200 women who could not bz supnlied. The number was
%enged to 80 women who were d;tglled by.the camp-conmand.
Horking hours were from 9.30 till 12,30 in the morning and
frgm 14,00 till 1700 hours in the afternoon. orking in the
tailorshop was stimulated by the Jans by giving extra rations
and the possibility to buy extra fruit so that after some
weeks many othsr womsn wanted to work thsre and did we have
enough reserve-volunteers to cone with the Jan- orders
which did not gzive work for morz than 120 women nt that time.
Also the knitting devartment was stimvlated by the Japs and
was much in demand. As those women ware allowed to do thelr
work at home we devided the knittinz —ork amongst those who
_needed the extra rations most.
falso the furniture working party got the same advantages,
this party clenred 2ll empty houses and stored the furniture
in codowns, Working hours ©0C tii 1200 hours and 1400-1630
hours, however overwork till 1800 or 1900 hours was not
excentional. The party amounted from 180- 200 women.
After the first party had left the camp, the houses 7hich
became empty had to be cleared of the furniture.
For that purpose an extra furniture paty had to be supplied
during ths months December 1944 and January 1945, That party
consistad of 500 women and 625 boys. Our total vworkingz par-
ty -figure at that time amounted to 2600 women, 1200 chil-
dren below the age of 11, 9CO boys between 11 and 13 years
of age, excluding the above mentioned 500 women and 625
bovs. This was too heavy. In order €O supnly the required
figurs we had to detail mothers with small and sick children
and the fittest of ths ones above the age of 50 wears.,
During these months the state of health in the carp decreased
heavily, Heavy cupboards and cascs, chairs, tables ete. had -
to be removed and many womsn could not stand this work and
fell 411.) MUPUI was transferred to Batavia at the end of MURUI
January and his successor TEIZIUKA completed the forni- TEIZUKA
ture job. TETZUXA arranged for the heavy Jjobs a2 working TEIZUKA
party from the 15th Bat. Camp. *fany timss we had nskzd for :
this assistance however TURUI refused it. MURUT
Oour medical supply as well as hospital accomodation wns rea-
sonable. However seven times during our stay ot Tiihavit we
had to transfzr our hosnital to other buildinzs which ceuscd
serious troubles for ths patients. Tjihapit Camp hos»nital
was the woman intcernes hosnital for Bandosng 2as well as
Tjimahi. The romoval of th2 hosnital had to be donc by us
undsr very primitive circumstances. No assistance in the form
of lorry's ctc., Wos given by the Japs. Somztimss doctors
and nursss hod to carry tho patients over consid=rable dist-
ances,Yis in 21l vomen's camps We havz the complaint of the
saparation of mothers from thoir childrcn above age of 11,
as well ms the s2parations of the aged people,
In our camp neople of 78 and 80 years had to be separated.
Most of them died aftar the transports of course,|
Furthermors the lauck of contact with other camps. Triee a Fear
it was nllovcd to send a posteard to rylatives. After the Nov.
Dec., 1944 transports of the 13,000 women and children only
4000 Temainsd. Between the Dec, and May t- ansoorts ths whole
camp wns tronsferrcd 3 times, Tt is to be considared that
during this rcmovel we 1ost a considarables amount of our
nronerties and furntiurc. Aftor avery removal the women
hnd to clear the smace between the ceiling and the roof
of thoe houszs from all hidden articles, this was done once
more by 2 party of boys from 15-20 years of age- it the
May transports the l1ast party had to clear a1l furniture
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etc., what was left by the precading parties. However this
proved to be impossible, ~nyway the last pnrty left the camp

in a very very tired condltwon, At the removal in April 1945
all mattresses had to be put on one place for inspection
(radio's and clectric cooking utensils). e

After 2 or 3 weeks we zot them hack again. Also ths women were
awﬁmin 2d by the Japs =nd hnéd to pass the examination place bare-
feeted. The refuse was not collseted anymore by the Randoang
civil service after December 1944, 111 the camp refuse had to

be collzcted on a hzap on 2 place n2arby the kitchen with of
courszs the nsezssary conszouencaes. Burnine the refuse was not
allowed. Only after Moy 1945 we were allowed to bring ths re-
fuse outsides the camp "”Gﬁn.
Althowf’h“r1 were tolad T we covld freely draw on our de
_in the Yokohamo Specy Ban! Ing The perd ceombar 104? -
Nay 1045 we were “Tlowed on1v Twice to draw 2 ccrtaln amount.
Yany péople who had monsy in the bank could not get it and had

to rely on the ecamp-fund. Even the wives of ths Genospals and
Colonels who got amounts up to f1. 1000- from thsir husbands
lg_ﬁgggggz_:ﬂﬁ Ater Janin could not use ohi ey

Anothar compla int is the “mtor- -supply. S2veral strzets had only
water dvring the night and the so-called Saninten kitchsn had

a longz time no water at all so that we hand to carry water from
those streets whers the tap was running. This eaused of course
extra heavy labour ané much inconvenienca. Soms water in the hos-
nitﬁl area hnad no wabter also.

Copy of this remort has been handed to Krammt Camp office before
my decparturs from Batavia on Sentembor 14th, 1945,

Botavia, 13-9-1945,

WeSe A.N. Droog=Hartecrinlo.

1
/
|
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The undersigned CHLRLIS JONGENEEL, first lieutensnt R..I...,
head of the Tar Oriaes Section of NEITHIRILIDS FORCLS INTELLI-
GENCE SEEVICE /NEFIS) being first duly sworn on oasth dejoses
and stetes lhat the annexed staterment is an original document
entitled:

"Sworn swmary of examination of Miss. JOH.NN.L, P.LULINL
e

d 10 Lpril 1946. " OM/7211/E.

%Which d~cument has been taken from the official records
of the NEFIS.

SIGN. TURE

BITNIL, Juns 7th 1946.

(SELL)

Subscribed and sworn to before e, Koi. de WEERD, first lieutenznt

R.N.I.4., Higher official attached to the 0ffice of the fLitorney
General N.E.I.

//S/ I’{..L_, de T'_‘E.E:RD
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- SUVMMIRY OF EXLINATION OF
Miss Johenne, Pzuline RISSELLDE, without orofession,
St 2 e on/7211/E

I an 21 yeers of age, of DULCH nationality, born at TiND-
JONG BiLLET, living at No.l HOUTMANIAAN, MEDLN. I zm in transit to
HOLLAND where ny permanent address will be ¢/o G. FUITER, No. 18 Z0ME-
BLUSTSTRALT . Hed RLEM.

I wes interned in JiVa from Jan Lli-Dec. 15 at BiNTCERIROCE
cazp 10. Owing to tk continual lack of adequate food supplies in the
carrn 8t w;NJOnLARJ, (90 prams of rice daily, 3 times per week a 1lititle
vegetables, once a week 100 grams suger, no oil, 5 XKg mest per day for
the whole cany of 5000 persons) there was a lot of QthbllUg between
internces anc HETHO caryguards. L% the end of Luz Ll T gave tio watches
to & certain Mrs. F. BOX in order to exchange these for fcod.

In the beginning of Sepr 4l the whole carpronulation -had to
fornm inte line by order of the campcorrender nared SHITO This com-
:ander wes nicknemed "WOOIE K/REL", his height was 1.55 M. with no
rticular distinctive merks; he was alweys dressed in uniform.

Lfter heving formed into line; we were shown frocks which
“were sold by us. "MOODIE KLREL® asked the names of the former OWners,
but all the interneex kept silent. PMDOIE K/REL" threatened us with
runishment, whereuyon one, and lateron 1 150 women adémitted that they
thenselves had srugzled. These 150 women, arongst whon wes ryself, had
to wait about 2 hours end were then put in three rows. Lrongst these
woren’ were also Miss N. H.RTHOORN, now at BiNDOENG, Mrs. F. BOY
Qddreso unknown. "MOOIE KiREL" called sore 20 nETd 's (who hed Leen
beaten up already) and with "N@‘IL K;?LL" as a spectator we were
thrashed by the HEIHD's with whip us, &llover the body
end specially on the face. Several women, mrmes unknorn to B, uuffer—
ed headwounds and scme becane helf conscious. Bo“h Mrs. F. TIFDEVIN!
tympenuns were demszed at this occasicn.

L

Lfter this punishment vhich lested zbout 15 minutes sorme
100 of the 150 women, smongst whon wes myself, were pushed through
8 gate, on either side of ich two JLiPLNESE were rosted, who were
relleved when they became tired by two other J.PLNESE. One of these
tio JLPLNESE was "MOOTE KLREL",

Every women had to ress both JLPANESE snd one of these
dealt each woman some 5) blows with a leether r;j; jftcr that we had
to bow and ecould go ‘This thrashing wes very peinful, a week
leter T still hed weals on my entire body, while for about three
days my limbs were painful.

The next day the same 150 wormen rere allcd azgain by
"MOOIE K.REL". I was not rresent but in rasging I saw whalt harpened.
The women had to stete what they had smuggled, the "‘cunt und further
deteils; they then had to kneel on the gravel in sueh e way thet
their instep wes resting on the ground. In this difficult and very
reinful ettitude, they had to stay for 1% hour under continuous
supervisicn of "MOOIE K.REL"™, If enybody moved, "MOOIE KAREL" beat
then with a whip on their heszds. -

#fter 1% hour they were sent back. This punishment hes been
extremely painful.
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CERPTIFPC AT R ' / 7,;¢0/7§/

/

The undersigned CH.IL35 JONGINZIL, First Lieutenant R.N.I.A., head of
the Tar Crimes Section of NITEZILAIDS FORCES INTILLIGTNCE STRVICE (NEFIS)
being first duly sworn on oath deposes and states that the annexed repcrt

is a full, truve, complcie and accurate copy cf the original document
entitled:

"General review as regards the treatment of the women in the
Jemen Internment Carps "Xarang Panas" and "Lampersaric®:
from Februery 19,4 - November 194 at "Karang Janas and
after that at Lamparsarie; signed 1.7 .H. Haverkamp datled
Bandoeng 22nd October 1945", No. CIY/296/E.

which document is a part of the official records of the NEFIS.

SIGNLTTRE:

BATAVI:, June T7th, 1S46.

{5=a1.)

Subscribed and sworn to befo
Rabee i s Hs gher official atieac!
G‘enerdl T\I.To Iw

/e/ K. L. de Teerd
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| General review as regards the treatment of the X
Women in the omen Internment Camps ™Karang Panas® and "Lampersarie'. |

b

On a day in February 1944 a draft from Sourabaya arrived at Karang
Panas, consisting of 500 women and children and also iancluding a number
of 0ld men. They Were housed in a building known as the "Jongens Weeshuis
Broeders Tjandi! (Boy's orphenage Brothers Tjandi"). The building was
very dirty and neglected, the Jap had made no preparations at ell, no
kitchen, no sick-ward etc; only the necessary wooden beds were present.

Led by a few men the bigger boys attacked the kitchen and put this

in working order. After 2§ hours the first meal could be served to the
internees.

The sick people were treated as %g&;"as the circumstances allowed.
Medicines, disinfectonts, nursing reguisites, beds etc. were not evailable.
Later on a collsciion was made in the camp for the purpose of buying the
most necessary art1< les for this little sick-ward. The Jap refused system—
atically to x: -;ance. But when after a few months the camp popu-
lation was red :ei at ai alevming rate by the number of deaths the Jep
threatened the piysicians with beating, imprisonment and so on, if they did
not succeed in bringing about a change for the better. But medicines were
still refused them and 2lso edinission of the serious cases in the
"Perlindoengen" section of the Ce.B.7« (Central Jivilian Fospital). After
some time the hearse did not comez to the camp anymore. Insiead there came
a black painted "tjikar" (native cart) drawn by an ox, in which 8 deceased
Were carted away together, packed one night call it in a few planks held
together by matting.

LIn August 194k several cases of children's paralysis occurred., i
According to the Jep the sourcs of the infection was to be sought in the |
chapel, where 280 women and children were housed sach in a space of no%t ‘
more than 40 cm in width. The Jap docsor XUNDOR knew how to fix this |
infection. The 125 cld men, afflicted with buzs, were destined to stop theé
infection. To attein this all women with chiléren less than 14 years old |
had to take up their quarters in ihe vicarage, the otvhser women and mothers|
with full-grown devghiters remained in the chapsl and the old men from the |
vicarage werzs sent over to the n_gamp. conmander SINIJI K
ordered tliese qli_ani_fvpanv il o _he bpedded down_emongst the!
women which weuld craate a perf renedy against the infection. & LLrlOuS}
protest from the sids of tae Tomen rﬂsulubd in tne men being bedded in thew
central section. Thes women immeciately started to streteh blankets acrossi
by vay of partitions but this SINIVI would nob e2llow. The men were just
annlegzg and the women had no reason to be so ”rudlsb Neither the doctor|
KOIDOR nor SITIJT sver realised or would reelizs tuat the hest ané only ]
remedy was to give everybody more space. [t was Jjusi a preconcsivad ‘

intentional vexaticn as haprened so offen in this camp. In March 1944 the

=
L

number of intsrnees in this camp amounted to 2100. Ieople were crammed into
gvery availiablie space. even in an old godown taat was continually damp and

dark. Tverybuoiy uw2s alloftied a space of 40 em. in width, but nothing migh
be put under beds, not eveun sﬁcssﬁ Y

On the first of April 1944 we were addressed by a number of Japanese.
Lfter this big event Lhe women and children were rezarded as "prisoners of
war'. ‘le were under wilitary Aiscipiine aad from now on we Were guarded
by Japanese ani Hailto 8. The oo Eztdulvo wno were on guard before, never
entered the camp i Cne nuvanbage we should have in comparison with
the male prisone that beecause e would be treated in accn“d¢nce with

° ha

our own manuners and custurs. e all t swear asllegiance to INj
which was done by the vayious leadesrs for the whciz campe. to the first
d directed all the activiiies in the camp, but now

of April these leaders ha
\\\ffppon took command:
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a) The garden must be clean; not a single leaf must be found on the
earth, and we were not zllowed to eat outside the buildings anymore. But the
garden party never received any tools and neither was the dirt ever carted

away .

b) The rooms or wards had to be cleansd once a week. But there was
never any vater available, because, the teps were onlv open and ran
between 10 o' k at nigh olclock in ths morning, exsctly during
those hours when nobedy wag allowed %o show himsel® outside of the billets.

c) Parade twice a day; at 7 o'clock a.m. and at 7.30 p.m. (Jap time).
Before 7 o'clock in the morning nobody was allowed to leave the barracks;
at 9 o'clock p.m. lights out and everybody had to be in bed with his number
attached to his cloties. Often the Jap. =« drunlt nearly every evening -
took it into his head to check t'.is during the night and did not hesitate
te penetrate into the mosquito nets.

d) Guard had to be kept from 9 h. pem. till 7 h. a.m. 5 guards for
every barrack by 5 times four women.

e) Sewing had to be done for the Japanese army, to wit, caps, gloves
and shirts, Yorttime from 8 till 11 and from L4 till 7; the daily product-
ion for every worker was fixed by the Jap., but the tesk set was so arduous
that only professional scamstresses could finish it. The latter received
as a reward a cup of coffee with sugary but no comrensation at all for the
work turned out by thenm.

f) The garden and the football-ground had to be dug up, manured and
planted. The worling hours were fixed by the Jap. according to his own
temper that day, so he either let them idle along or set them a heavy task.
4s a rule the worl started at 8 o'elock with an official rest from 11 till
3 o'clock: During this rest all washing, fetchinz meals and so on had
to be done. At 3 o'clock the work restarted, officially till 7 o'clock,
but more often one was still hard at it by 8 o'clock.

of course. Anybodv who was caucht doing other worig out of resting.time

®as promptly honoured with a compeieab thrashing with fists, whip and stick,
and mostly the mhltreatment sverisd with a kick in the bellv{} The children;@
had to be left to their; not until later on it was possible to leave them

in charge of the nums, Zverything had to give way for the Nippon fatigue-
duties. ‘/hen the recults of the work did not satisfy the Jap, he closed the
kitehens Thus it happened more than once that only one meal was served
during 2 whole dag. Nine days at a stretch we received our hreekfast,
consisting of 1 scoop of starch, at 12 o'clock and at 10 o'clock p.m. our
second meal again consisting of a scoop of starch, now with some rice cooked
in i$. The Japanese camp cormander SIITJI fixed the bill of fare. It is
self-evident that the conditions in this camp with such a number of
children, crying from starvatiou, were mos$ miserable. Vezetables were
rarely distributed, the same held no fruit, msat and wod for cooking. It
was an exception wien three meals could be served in one day.

[Everybody had to work at least 6 hours a day on behalf of the Jap. q
!
!

he Japanese also fived the numher of women allowed to work in the
siek-ward. Of course this number wms so small that the nurses were obliged
to work 12 hours a day. Holidays did not exist, for the Nips do not grant
them. No attention wes paid to cur marnsrs and customs. Religious services
were t iowed.

[ﬁh September 19/ the remaining mea and 2ll1 boys older than 9 years
were drafted tc amother camp uarmed Baageoug. The consequencs of this !
measure was that the wmsa had o take over the hezvy kiteher duiies.
Added to that the fire-lniez were alwavs crachked and the diums for cooking
always leaking, water 22¢ %o be rouga® in Grums of 45 liters. The heavy
drums with pep, ccasziniag each 150 liter had 3o bz lifted full frem ths
fire-holds, hecause cthervise these hoies Wwould alvogether crumble to piezes.|
Later on we i2d to chop our own wood, because whole trees were trought ir, |
Who could not be used for cooking in that condition. Also for tris work the
number of workers allotted was unsufficiznt. bnt the Tanenesa ~nvrto3 o !
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YO*’flclally omr rice ration was 100 grems hulled rice, but in reality
we never received more than 85 grang., Further 90 grams flour for two mealsf,

The Japaness thought our dresses still far too deceni. It was not
allowed to meke up your Tace, long dresses, house-coats etc. had to be cut
knagﬁplgh, because 6ne can not Work properiy in long clothes, Transgress1on
of this rule, even out of working-hours, was always a reason for serious
maltreatment. In the garden we vere obliged to work bareheaded and bhare-
footeds Manure we had to malte ourselves. The cesspools vwere emptied by us
in a hole, mixed with kifchen refuse and with our bare feet breaded till
servi ceable. Animal manuie e hed 4o bresk up with our hands. The women
told off for this work got a holiday every other day and after six o'clock
a bit of warm water from the kitchen to waesh themselves. The shortage of
water was the Worst annoyence, especially because after ten o'clock at
night all taps were running, but the Japanese forbade to use them at that
time. The daring had a chance to take a bath on the sly and wash some
clothes, but if caught the usual thrashing with a cudgsl or some such
ingtrument followed promptly.

[At the end of November 1944 Karang Fanas was closed down. We were 5
transferred to kamyoeng "Larpersarie"; a condemned kampong in the old towm |
of Semarang. This camp, originelly intended for not more than 3000 interneeé,
soon contained more than 8C00 women end children. At the outset the camp wad
not so bad, but as more end more internees were brought in, the conditions |
went from bad to worse. Inside the camp girls from 12 till 1} years were
used for digging up. Outside the camp at a distance of about half an hour! S|
walk, opposite to the H.B.S., the field that had had to be dug up, Wwas
lying and every dey 500 women from our camp and 100 boys from - elsewhere
were vorking there. Parade was held at 6.30 a.m., after that line up and ati
T7.30 the working party guarded by natives, departed to the field. At 11.30 f
half an hour's rest to eat a portion of pap, and at 1.30 one hour's rest for |
lunch, consisting of rap, vegetables and coffee. At five oicloek line up
to go home to the camp., OFf course the Japanese tcok care to delay the
rmoment of departure, either by searching some women(dy Japanese men) or by
a speech with blows for different wrongdoers. 3Iven after the capitulation
We were sent outside o work therei} : v

i

é

A special hobby of the Jap was the so-called gedak (bamboo) party,
consisting of women who had to repair the gedek, cut trees and chop wWood.
Thisparty sometimes was, treated to an ounce of sug

LEvary month the new supplies had to be carried from the trucks to the /¢
godom Jy so-called supply-girls. This originally already very heavy work |
(carrying of bales of sugar and bams of rice etc.) was unnecessaril ly made
still hcavier, because the Jap ordsrsd the trucks to stop before the main oaﬁ
of the camp instead of before another gate, that was nearer and just beside
the godown., Now ihe girls had to run about 500 meires with the bags on
their backs. After the capicvlation coolies were found for this work., The
trucks could stop now at the nearer gate and at 4 o'clock the Jap dismissed
the coolies because they had worked enough for that day. At this time the
Japanese was so polite that he even asked the chief of the godown, whether
she agreed with his decision. Formerly we had to work up to midnight.

ghggghinss ggpfmen*q Were common events in the camps. Collective
punishmert w ‘ Once we did not get any fruit (wi i

even for the sick-vard,. sugar, ccffee or tea during a whole month. Several |

women and childrer died that worth. e Kempei often visited the camp to
punish sericus offzaces. Hor instence a cese of smuggling sugar and egzs.
For seven dzyz the offenders were - irst Lesten systzuaticelly aad then Dla"ed
on the krees with a spiit bomboo in the hend of the knee with the Jaos
Jumping on tie enws. Whis wernt on during the whels dzy f::n sunrise Lo |
Eweet witsout eating oy arinking, After that thsy were aced ir whe S

a stretch of ssvan days. ‘euh TOHAR

dvring the WW’13 day aiso
=

|
viciims were cavyied $o the 3Jick ward avery day at the terwination of the i
toriure, o be cureied back the pext morning for the continuation ¢f “iha ;
torture. Ths others wers trcugut to and £ rom their houses on stretchierse [
On the first d=y of t-e vuuishaent the whole canp had to parade in the |
afternoon past “he wvieciime eah as - Ade oo t] M : '
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night patrolled outside the camp
the smuzgling, were not punished

The chief offenders in all these

a) All camp commanders and
b) A1l Kempeil soldiers
¢) The Jap. doctor KONDOR,

Accomplices 2re: a) All gu

See M.P.Hs Haverkenp

T
]
!

Fage 5

and consequently also were responsible for
at alls

outrages are:

scrgeants, fei. YAMALOTO

jerdtroops, b) All Heiho's patrclling outside
&
Randoeng 22 October 19&5.; \i'
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CER®IFICLTE 7

The undersigned CHARLES JONGENEEL, captain RNIA,

Head cf War ,rly’s Section of NETHERLANDS FO?JLS IL‘ITJLLLIG“””m
SERVICE (KNEFI3), brirg first duly sworn on oath deposes and
states that the annexed statement is a full, true, compiclbc
and accurate copy of the originel Duteh dccument, entitlcds

8worn sceteusnt of lirs. J. BEELIZAN nce VAN BAILFGOOYEN,
drawn up by Jonkug,, W,A4,BAUD, first lieutenant RNIA, dated
16th May, 1546, No.OM/9565/N,

which original document is @ part of the cfficial rccords of

the NEFIS.

wsdgnature: Ch, Jongeneel SEAL

Pa%eviag August 29th, 1946.

Subscribed and sworn to beforc me X.i, DE WEERD, LLU®

Hajor Artillery R.N.I,A., cSenior Cfficial attrched to the

O0ffice of the Attorney-General N.E,I.

signature: K. A. De Weerd SEAL
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01/565/N
FRO JUSTITIA,

AFRIDAVIT OF INT RROGATION.

SUL.iARY OF EXAMINATION OF':

NALE : - "J, BIELIAN-v. BALLECOOYEN",
OCCUPATICH it

FUTURE ADDaESS: 183 Riouwstraat, The Hague, HOLLAND.
LGE : 27 years,

Duly sworn states:

I was interned in the Camp MOENTILAN as a civil intcrnee,
On the 28th January 1944 I was told by our female section-
leader }rs. "REITSLA" to appear at the Japanese Camp Office.
Here I saw a Jevanese Inspector of Police, who took me to
the Police Station cutside the camp together with six other
wonen and girls. Their names were: "ANNIE HOOQIfANS", Mrs.
YZEILSTRA", #rs. "FLEEKERY™, Yrs, "KROUT", ¥rs, "KEYKOOP" and
irs. "de LEGE", T el TN U e R R SRR

After we had returned to the cemp under the guidance
of the Javanese police-inspector and had packed our trunks,
the latter took us back to the Japanese Camp-Office. Here we
were handed over to the three Japs, by whem we were trans-~
ported in 3 private cars to IFAGELANG where we arrived at
4 p.m. We were teken to o small camp, called TOEGOERAN,
consisting of 14 houses. We met = group of women and girls
here whc had been taken from cur camp on the 25th January 1944,

On the 3rd February 1944 we were &galn medically
examined by the Japanese doctors, this time the girls
included. Thercon we were informed that we were intended
for a Japanese brothel. In the evening of that day the
brothel wrs tc be opened. After coming home, Irs. "PLEKKZRY
and myself closed all the docrs and windows. At zbout 9 p.m.
there was a knock at the doors and windcws; we were told to
open them and not tec close either doors or windows. We did
so, with the exception of the bedroom, where I locked myself
in. I repested this until Sunday 5th February; on that
cecasion also Japancse soldiers entered the camnp (before only
Japanese officers). Some of these scldiers entered and one
of them drew me along to my room. I resisted until a KEMNPEI-
official entered and told me that we had tc rececive the Japs,
for if we were not willing, our husbands, whose whereabcuts
were known, would be held responsible. After this infermation
he left me along with the scldier. FEven then I offered
further resistence, but as a matter of fact I got the worst
of it; he tore my clothes from my body and twisted my arms
o my back, so that I was pcrerless, vhereafter he compelled
me to have sexusl interccurse with himn. I do not know who
this scldier was, neither do I know the nnme of the KEVPEI-
cfficial.

Things went on like this fcr three weeks. On working-
days the brothel was open for Jap officers, on Sundays in
the afterncon for Jap N.C.0's, whereas Sunday mornings were
reserved fcr Jap soldiers. The brothel was occasicnally
visited by Jap civilians. I always resisted, but in vain.

Towards the end of February or the first days of March
1944 -1 was told to appear =2t the office, where a Jap officecr
was present celled "TAKIGUDJE", who promised to investigate




PDoc. No. 5770 Page 3

into the matter on the grocunds of my complaints regarding
the treatment I h~d experienced. He also promised to do
his utmost to have us sent back tc an internment camp. He
at once improved things for us by closing the brothel for
scldiers, N.C.0's 2nd eiviiians,

L] L L] ° ° o ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° Ll

Sworn befcre me: Jhr. "W,[L. BAUD", (B.L.),
lst.Lt.Inf.Res. in charge of investigation
of War Crimes o/b S8.3. "Nicuw Holland".
ON THIS SIXTEENTH DAY OF I7AY
NINATEEN HUNDRED AND FORTYSIX.

The Official Recordar: The Informant,
WeS. W. A. BAUD, WeSe "J. BEELIAN-van BALLEGOOYEN".

Dctailed to examine the above by the Commander-in-Chief,
Allied Land Forces, South East Asia,
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: 10043/1/wCLs
H.Q. Allied Land Forces, / 7 2?
South Eagt Asin Command,
2 July 194s.

s o o, o e, iy et |t e S

Sub jeet:  BURM.~SIAM Railwey — Coolie Lobour.

We shall shortly be commencing o trial of the Commander, and
certain nembers of the 19th Patient Convoy Unit, usurlly mown as the KUDO
BUTAI,

-~

This Unit bore medical responsibility for oll Coolies emoloyed
in the construction of the BURMA-SIAM reilwey. Conditions were oppolling,
and atrocities of the worst noture freguent,

The death roate is cstimated at figures ranging from 50,000 to
150,000 - probably 80,000 is round nbout the correct fizure.

A large nurber of Jovenese coolies were victims, and I shall be
glad of eny evidence or live witnesses whom you can produce, On the other
hond, a very favourable case hos clrendy been prepared, so that it will
not be necessary for you to collect evidence if you have net olready such in
your possession.

The evidence I have ineludes statemonts from Dutch Medical Officers.

The evidence at present aveilsble is suffiecient to put the
following on trial:

lMajor KUDO Hikosaku, aliss "P.PPI"

Uodet Officer TAKANO Soteo, olias "Dr FU MANCHU"

Pte TSUKUMOTO Chuji, alias "SCUMADOR! alias "TEDM

L/Cpl. ONADERA Shoji, alias "ONATERA" olirs "GREEN PAVTSY
L/Cpl. YASUDA Kinichiro, alins "GEORGE"

Pte. ISHIMURA (alias KISHIMURA?) alics "GOGGLEST

Pte. FUGITL Soburo, alias "SAMA SAMA" nline "SUMMER SUMMER",
Lt. HIZATES

Pte., OSAKI

Cpl. ISSHIKOWA, alisns "MY BLUE HEAVEN"

Pte. DEYAMA

Lt. KITHAGO Haokatsu

There is also & Sergeant knowvn as "PATCHES" but has not yet been
identified.

It is assumed that you will wish to have a member sitting on the
Court.

Colonel, Legal Staff,
ELStJC/CL for D,5.A.G. Allied Lend Forces, S,E.A,
Copy to: 1 iLust, War Crimes Section S.E,A.C.
This H.Q. 10043/1/CLS 28 June '46 refers.
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The undersizned, CHARLES JONGENEEL, Captain ReNeI.A., Head of
the Wor Crimes Section of NETHZRLANDS FORCES IFTELLIGENCE SHRVICE (NEFIS)
being first duly sworn on oath deposes end states that the annexed report

is a full, true, complete and accurate copy of the original document,
entifled ¢

Letter of Deputy Judge Advocate Genersl Allied Lend Forces South

Bast Asin to Roysl Netherlands Liaison Section, deated 2 July 1946,
Yo, 10043/1/wWCLS,

which document is » part of the officisl records of the NEFIS.

Signature @

Sd/ Ch. Jongeneocl

Batavia, July 23rd 1946,
Subscribed and sworn to before me, X. A. de WEERD, LL.,D., first

Lieutcnant R.il,1.A., Senior Official att-ched to the Office of the
Attorney-General, N,E.I.

sa/ K. A, de Wcerd
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' CONFIDENTIAL

AUST FORCES ADVANCED

Pege 2

ALLIED TRAWSIATOR A¥D INTERPEETER SECTION

SOUTH WEST PACI¥IC AREA

DOC X0 90327 CONTENT
1. Xuching Labour Associstion, chronologicel date,
December 43 to May 44 »
2. Brunei 0il Refinery Counstruction Department re-
vort on Javanese Labourers, 23 Dec 44
3. Orders, memoranda and reports relating to

allocrtion of “avanese lebourcrs to TAWAO,
SANDATAY, TENOM, KUCEING snd LAHAD DATU Air-
fields, and to industry

TADA DJOKJAKARTA Liaison Order concerning
recruitment of coolie labour, 10 Jan 45

Eastern Province General Affairs (SOMU) report
on Javenese labourers, 23 Jan 45

Report on Convelescent Camp, BONGAWAN, 27 Jan 45

Items relating to allocaticon and movements of
coolies, Jenuary to March 45

Nominal roll of Javanese coolies at Nissan
Agricultursl Enterprise, SESSELTON, 10 Mar 45

(Refer AFA Bulletin 41)
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CONPIDENTIAL
90327 12 Aug 45 303 /dhw /wh/ctd

AFA TRASTATION M0, 8

Selective translation of bound mimeogranhed end handwritten

file belonging to Labour Administration Section of General
Affeirs Department (SOMJ), conteininz administrative renorts,
orders, etec, relatinzg to hendling of local and imported labourers.
Dated December 43 to 15 May 45, 195 »p.

BEAUFORT — 8/12 Jul 45,

Page Kuching Lebour Association
120
Chronologicel Data
1943
December - ©North Borneo Labour .Association esteblished.
1944
Jonuary - First echelon of 417 imported Javanese labourers
arrived, Billeting quarters for labourers completed,
March — Begen allocation of labourers to JESSELTOY,
April —~ ©Second echelon of imported Javanese labourers arrived.

Page May 275 cerpenters from SENTO* (*1) (T¥ Sic.)
121 arrived.

September — Received 274 conscripted native troops (KYODODAT),
45 carpentcers arrived from SINGAPORE.

age Revort _on arrivel of Javanese lsbourers, made by Brunei 0il Refinery
7 Construction Department Chief to NADA (*2) Military Adninistrative
Inspectorate Depertment Service Section., Dated 23 Dec 44,

1089 Javenese labourers (August, Seotember and October gquotes)
arrived, and the following report on their condition is submitted:

(4 portion of the October quota did not arrive). d}

‘/[ (*1) etcz—) :
N s 2 ~
Yok IR i 4

CONFIDERTIAL
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CONDITION OF JAVANESE LABOURERS (September)
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Page . JADA Op Order A, Ho 3.
14

37 Army Order
5 Jan 45 At JESSELTOW,

1. ZEastern Frovince Chief will tronsfer his custody of the TAWAD
dirfield to 10 Indep Flying Bde (0.

2. Crpt HOSEIJIMA (*1) will trensfer his custody of the SANDAKNN
Airfield to 10 Inde» Flying Bde 00, and will assist in the
survey, construction and mointenaonce of the zbove airfield.
Sendoken Airfield Survey and Construction Unit will henceforth
be declered dissolved.

3. 10 Indep Flying Bde €O will assume charge of the sirfields
7 ntioned in the cbove paragrephs, and will constiruct 2 new
airfield suiteble for all types of ecircraft at a site about
4 sm southeast of TENOM.

Army CG¢ - BABA, Masao (*2)
Page Instruction from Chief of Staff based on NADA Op Order A, o 3,
15

I. The custody of the TAWAO and SANDAKAN Airfields will be trans—
ferred directly to Expeditionery Unit CO of 130 Airfield Bn and
130 Lirfield CO, respectively.

. @« In conjunction with the transfer of the custody of TAWAO Air—
field, Eastera Province Chief will supply 50 healthy labourers
to the Fxpeditionery Unit CO of the Airfield Bn for the mein-
tenonce of the airfield,

3., In conjunction with the transfer of custody of SANDAKAN Airfield,
HOSEIJINA Unit GO will moke preperations to transfer 200 con-
struction and mcintenance labourers.

Eastern Province Chief will provide the balance of lcobourers for
the above gnoto to the HOSHISIMA Unit., Technicians and civilian
employecs who were detashed to the airfield survey and con-
struction unit will be detached to the OTSUXA (*3) Force as an
operationcl rond survey ond construction unit. NCOs ~nd men will
be returned to their resvective parent orgsnizations. However,
2nd Lt SUZUKI (*4) rnd Szt IMADA vill remeir on duty with the

¥o 1 Brench Office of PW Internment Cemp.

Page 4., For the construction of the new airfield ot TENOM, Westera
15 Province Chief will provide about 500 labourer= from TENOM snd
MELALAP Areas %o the officer in chorge of survey and construction.
The ohove labourers will be relieved accordine to the prozgress

made
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mede in the survey end construction of BINGKOR Airfield.
Intendance for, and custody of these lsbourers will be the

responsibility of the officer in chorge of survey and
construction,

5 Jan 45 Chief of Staff
MAWAKI, Yoshinobu (*4)

(*1) ete:-
. 2B (2) B35 FE EP
®) Xk O T

~5—
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Page Western Province Plan, No 6.
12
Momorandum on the provision of labourers for the construction of
new TENOM Airfield,
Trom: Western Province Chief 11 Jan 45
To ¢ XENINGW District Governor
Instructions were received in NADA Op Order &, No 3, for

the provision of 500 labourers. After consultation, the following

decisions were mode:

1., Humber of locally recruited labourers will be 300 (of whom 150 may
be women ernd childron)., Furthermore, if this guota camnot be
filled, the Army will provide 200 Javenese labourers.

2. 1In regard to provision of this labour, it should be borne in mind
that it must in no wey interfore with the scheduled agricultural
enterprises now in operation,

3, As an inducement to the labourers, salt, ete, will be arovided by
the Army.

Poge 4. Details concerning orgenization of quotas and reliecfs will be
13 decided in confcrence by the members residing in TENOM District
end the officer in charge of survey and construction of the
airfield. The conferees must give due consideration to the
improvement of production and to the feelings of the inhabitents.

5. The lebourers from TEJOM District who have besn sent to KENINGLU
end BINGKOR Airfields will be returned to the above district as
from 15 Januery. (Instruction from Chief of Staff).

Poge _Western Province Plan, No 7
I3

Report on allocation of imported Javanese labourers.
From: Western Province Chief 11 Jen 45
To &t Chief of Staff

Ref NADA Staff General Affairs (SOMU) Telegram No 422, the
following report retrospective to 1 Dec 44 is mede!
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Employer Total Hospital- Funmber Ratio
i number ized working of
| -workers
YAMATO (*1) : %
Plantation | 93 27 66 71
Jesselton f
Construction | 634 71 431 68
Unit !
i B
5

(*1)

~ i

-ﬂ6—.
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Employer E Total Hospital—f Fumber Ratio |
| number ized ;  working of
e workers
KANSAI (*1) | : %
| Electrical o 25 : 2 | 19 76
Supply : 3 ¥
Internation- f ' i
' al (KOXUSAI) . 100 42 i 58 58
Transport ' : %
Jesselton i : 3
.  Freight i 181 § 49
!__Depot : z
. Formosa 34 i 1 15 a4
i__Colonial Co ;
i Formosa : 45 [ 37 B 67.9
}__Fibre Co ! : ]
Page Kuching Civil Lebour Admianlstration, No 83.
48 (Originel menuseript in Molnay),
Memorandum on third labour group to be provided for KUCHING Airfield.
From: KUCHING Province Chief 25 Jen 45
To =+ DATU AMAR ) Personnel in charge of labourers in
PANGERAN ZEMUSU* ) KUCHING Province
You are hereby notified that the provision of the third labour
group in accordance with Army's request and the mobilization of
labsurers under Kuching Civil Labour Administration No 74, will be
carried out as follows:
2 Period of mobilizetion:
§ Feb -~ 21 Mar 45 (45 deys).
2. DHNumber »f men to be recruited:
330 or more (local inhabitants).
Page
64 Allocation of labourers
The allocation under NADA Op Order A, Ho 75 -to the various air-
fields, begun on 20 Octcober and cormpleted by end of November, was
as follows:
s SLVDAXAN Airfield. (Number of lsbourers allocoted ~ 1,200),
a. dgricultural villages in SANDAKAN Area (mobilized from
( Chinese farmers producing foodstuffs) 610
*1)

e
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b, Xo 3 Extracting Fectory (7% Sic.) (factory labourers)
(90 men ran ewny after the bombing of 30 October) 104
c. Borneo Industry (farmers producing foodstuffs)
(60 men ren away after the bombing of 30 Oetober) 100
d.. SANDAEKAY Town (personnel employed in shope) 42
e. MAMIAN* Villege ond Boy areas (farmers produeing
foodstuffs ond fishermen) 113
f. XNo 1 Lumber mill (Lumber jacks) 80
z. No 2 Lumber mill (factory labourers) 22
h. Mobile labourers enzeged in operationsl roed construction 27
Total - 1,078
Page 0f the abovej the average number aveilsble for work totels 600 men.
70
2. TLWAQ Airfield. (Number of labourers allocated - 1,400).
Mobilized from farmers producing foodstuffs - 911
Men available for work - 463

3, LAHAD DATU Afrfield. (furber of labourers allocated - 500)

Mobilized from farmers producing foodstuffs ~ 330,
Men available for work -~ 270.

Effects nf oir raids on labourers

On the first few occasions, the night bombings did not cause any
uarest. However, the twenty od. stafings and bombings, on the morning
of 24 October, nf the fastory arecas, herbour and shipping at SAWDAKAN,
had a very demoralizing effect, especially upon the factory lebourers
and ships' crews, 4As a result, all these ran away up-country,
necessitating the closing of the faetory.

The recruitinz of labourers for the present allocation to the
verious airfields proved very difficult, because it followed the
abovenentioned bombinzs, which have made the lobourers reluctant to
accept Army work,

Seven of the foctory lebourers and others who had been recruited
after mony difficulties, were killed by the 30 airplanes which attacked
the airfield on 30 October, A4As a result,200 or more labourers ran away
on the same day,

-8
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|
|

Page uADA DJORJAKARTA Lianison (Labour) Order No 1.
63

|
|
; Matters pertaining to the recruiting of labourers.
From! DJOKJARARTA Lisison Office, JADA 9801 Force

(¥ 37 Army.) 10 Jen 45
To: Labour Administration Squad Chief, General Affairs Department (SOMU) ,

1
i
i
z
/I
\L The totel number of labourers received for the year (to end of
December 1944) was 18,567, whichexceeded the number (17,000)
stipulated in the contract. Including the 20th echelon which enbark—
ed on 29 Decerber, the number of lebourers embarked will total 13,728.
The estimated number of labourers expected here for the Jenuary quota
of 1,000 is 800, of whom 600 are expected to embark. (There are 443
labourers already assembled here end the remainder are scheduled %o
be available by the 20th). If the above are included, the total
Page numb>r of labourers embarked up to the end of January will be 14,328,
64 which will still be 2,672 less thean the anticipated 1944 quota of
17,000, Hesotiations are in prosress with the OSAMU (*1) Force
(tv 16 Army) to make up the above deficiency during February and
Mareh,[ Le I informed you in my previous reports, the numbder of
personfel has increased each month and in Januery will reach the
stupendous total of 81,000, However, due to the inadequate supoly
of labourers up to the present, resources are becoming more and more
depleted, and at present the local office of OSAMU Force is having
extrene difficulty in filling the guota of the OKA (#2) Force (IF
Y Area.Army;l:]In view of the fact that the recruiting of labourers
\J to orovide the guotas allocated to the various arcas will be extremely.
difficult, and as there is no surplus, I have no authority, without
specific instructions from OKA Force, to make up the deficieney in the
personnel allocated to your unit by ziving you oreference over other
units, However, if it is essential to you that the deficiency on
the 1944 quota be made up, I reguest that you submit a formal
requisition addressed to CKA Force through NADA requesting the
deficiency to be made -0od durinz February and March.

s ‘.ﬂ‘?

Paze Eagtern Provinde General affairs (SHOMU), No 17.
TX

Repor't on condition of Javanese labourers as at end of Decenber.

‘ Fromi Eastern Province Chief 23 Jan 45
Tot WNADA Group (SHUDAK) Chief of Staff,

Following report is submitted in accordance with NADA General

| Affairs (SOMU) Telegram o 33
€1) etes

LS

1) 35 :]: 2 |3
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Page January Report of Bonzawan Convalescent Camp.,
54
From¢ Lobour Association Headquarters 2 Feb 45
To ¢ Labour idministration Section Chief.
The followinz report is submitted:
Page EXANINATION OF BOWGAWAY CONVALESCEWT CAMP (27 Jan 45)
65
Heme of | Number Number , Number Number  Present
actory or force admitted | discharzed: of deaths gcaped . number
[WADA 12205 T 83 - 64 30
Force ; i
Lobour Association 111 i B 40 35 =
FUCHONG (*1) Company 249 34 T TR T
|
International 5 f
Transport (KOKUSAI) ! 5 3 2 1 1 |
‘ ; 1
NISSAN (*2) ; | ;
Agricultural Industry | 14 6 ; 8 i
; : | i
KANSAI (*3) . ; i :
Blectrical Supply 5 1 i 4 | 4
Total 552 65 | 260 34z 4" s
It | ) f
Percentage 1 <10 A7 L OB s
: | EI
' ¥
\&ange Brunci Construction General Affairs (Lebour) No 23.
153

Memorandum on trensfer of custody of Javanese labourers.

From: Brunei 0il Refinery Constructiorn Department Chief

To ¢+ NADA Army Chief of Staff,

",

transferred as follows:

8.4 MIRI Province | 89
b. IEKENO (*4) Unit 445

31 Jan 45

534 Javanese labourers under custody of this force have been

(*1) etei— 3
/F\ e (1) T8 @ (
\% > Y3 :

3
(2) 4

) )
BE)

~
7

13—



.

DOCUMENT 8710 ‘ Page 18
AFA TRANSLATION O 8 . 12 Aug 45 ‘ 303 /dhw
Peoge Kﬁchihé Gi#il Adminisﬁration (Labour) No 94,W _'

149

Report on allocation and present number of labourers
(February),

From: 0IC Kuching Lebour Administration 23 Mar 45
To 3 0IC North Borneo Labour Adﬁinistration.

Following report is submitted %o vou on above matters for th
month of Februory:

Date on allocation of labourers:

1. Labour replacements received during Feobruary Y17
2. Lobourers allocated to KUCHING Adrfield  (¥ot recorded)

Unde§ Kuching Civil Labour Administration No 83 - 330 -
Under Kuchinz Civil Labour Administration Wo 84 -~ 300

Page Nortb'Borned Labour Ho 04, No 110,

114 !
From¢ Horth Borneo Labour Association 24 Mar 45

Director, KINCSHITA, Senichi  (*¥1)

To ¢ HADA 9801 Force (T¥ 37 Army.) General Affairs Department
(SOMU) Chief.
‘Matters pertaining to the transfer to other mamies of imported
.Javanese labourers now awaiting skipmeant in SINGPOIE,

Request detvailed information on the terms of previous instruction
received for transfer to other armies of 3,000 Javanese labourers now
awaiting shipment in SINGAPORE. Telegrsm inquiry was received from
Civilien Ermloyee XKURABAYASHI (*2) on this matter,

Poge Yames of Javanese ceolies workine for Hissan Agricultural
142 Enterprise, NIYAKU, JESSELTON . Ao S G
No -~ Yeme . Javanese o
1 Sec Ldr PAIMAN 256
2 Sec Ldr RADIMAN 102
3 Sec Ldr NGAJIO 110
4  Sec Ldr SOEGINO 145

(*1) ete:-

W R F4- @ AR

<144
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30

Labourer
Labourer
Labourer
Labourer

. Labourer .
Labourer,
. Labourer

Labourer
Labourer
Labourer

Labourer,

Labourer
Labourer

. Labourer
_ Labourer

Labourer

Labourer
Labourer
Labourer

Labourer
Labourer

Weme

VONOSIMITO

TORDJO
PADI
BOKRCMO.

EROMOKADSO. .-

KOIMIN
MONTODRONOQ
SARIMAN
KROMODINOYO
KARIOTONO
KASMAH
KROMOVIOHNO
TRONTANI
KARIOSUWITO

ROSOLJO
KARMO ,
SOETODROLO
AMATDINOMO
ATEMORJO

Lebourer PORDIO

Labourer
Labourer

_Labourer

Labourer
Labourer
Labourer

Labourer

Labourer

Labourer

_Labourer
Labourer

Labourer
Labourer

Labourer

SADALI
KELIP
KOESMAK
MORZDJO
TTIRAW
SOETIMIN B

KROMOJO,
AMATBAKREE
MANSAREE
SAETININ A
MOESTARAM
VARNO
SUITORJO
MINTORJO

12 Aug 45

Javanese No

AR L

236

103
e

s -
B -

125

152

159
63
... 118

-

139
44

170

247

48

157
169
174

237

238

116

131
146

o ABGE

124

227

242

244

123
o~
161
246
245

Page 19
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44 Theee 20 men have been
162 transferred to Army :
Headquarters (10 Mar 45)

These 12 men are sick

at JESSELTON

These eight men are
sick at Bangawan
Plantation Hospital

'Hissan Agricultural Eﬁtefprise Ltd
NIYAKU, JESSELTOYN -

35

10 Mar 45,
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Toiay, Friday 26th April 1946, there =ppeared befrre myself:

)

Pieter Gijebertus Anne Bosscheart, Assistant Commissioner of Folice,

O
H

Member the i'etherlends War Crimes Investigation Team, att

Eenderson Camp, Siicapore a werson who on enquiry declared himself to be:

Names Doelahmaro Aze @ about L2 year.
- . - - - - - - - e ') - - - - - - - - - - L] - .

Civilian Occupation: Head watchman Rubber Estate,
previously Serzeant in the RVIA, at present
foremen at Henderson Camp.

Future addrees: Kampong Tjisoerce, Tjilatjap

@ & @ .« . . . " & & & . . . . w» - e . - . . . .

5. Cen you give any information about acts of violence committed
against yourself or others, which you have witnessed?

In the month of May 1243,-the exact day and date I no longer
recollect — whilst at work with the coolies on the rubber estate
Tjiseroe, situated alongside the main road to Tjilatjep, I was
colled by the Japanese monsger Yoshuki, who told us that we would
be transported to Poerwskarta by motor truck, 4long with about 20
coolies I was immedistely put on the truck, without being given the
opportunity to fetch ~ suitcese or anything of the sort from home,
At Foerwckerte we were housed in a house with a roof of dried palm
le~ves, - exactly where I do not know - where we spent three anights
and were gusrded by the Kelbodan (Tr, Wote: Jasanese trained
Indonesian auxiliary police force). We were subsequently talken by
train to Botaviaj in the neighbourhood of Petjodjo we were placed in
a ecemp, guerded again by the Keibodan and Japenese. There were
alrerdy meny Javenese there; when after four days we left for Priok,
there were more than 1700, who were put aboard a ship at Priok.

The voyage lnsted three days and four nights, '

R I N R T T e e
e « . « There we received food three times o day, but only rice
gruel mixed with dried yam (sweet-potato). For vegetobles, yam
leaves and kangkoerg (Tr. note:! & nriive vegetable similar to
wotercress) were supplied; e never got meat or fish or fruit.
We received epprorimately 250, c.c. of rice gruel; if rice wes
supplied, we obteined epproximately a small handful,
There were meny sick; the mnlaria patients got 1O medicines;
the berideri pntiente ot mn ertrs food: 8mAll white mille were
given for dysentery. Of the 1700 persons with vhom I had started

/

off
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off, only less than 600 remain. I had been ordered by Sotjo,
camo leader of Djurong when the war ended, %o make a list of
all Javanese present, in view of the fact that, according to
him, they would be returning to Java. How many of the missing
sove oiled I cannot sey, because many coolies have also run away,

VERIFICATIOYW BY THE WITHESS

R

I, the undersigned _Doelahnaro ebovementioned, hereby declare
that I was led in and heard on oath by the interrogator, who
informed me that the oath taken by me wes still binding upon me,
and having heard ny above sworn statement read to me in ny
native languege and shown to me, I declare that it is a true

and accurate statement.

Oath administered by: Henderson Camp, 26th April 1946
sd/ Mohd, Sadjadi The witness abovenamed;

sd/_Doelahnaro

Tihe cbove statements have been signed in my vpresence and this
official record has been truly drawn up and subsequently sizned
by myself, the infterrogator.

On _26th April 1246 at Henderson Camp,
Singapore

The abovensmed interrogator:

sd/ P.G.A, Bosschaart

Certified a true copy:

Head of the Hetherlands War CrimeS Investigntion Team at Singaporet

Siznrture: Illegible,




4.)’

-

The undersigned, CHARLES JONGIET -4, , Head of the
War Crimes Seetion of NETHERIA C% SERVICE

IS) being first duly s orn on onth deposes snd stotes that
the annexed Dutch documents, entitled:

4ffidavit of DOELAHNARC, ex—Sgt. R.1',I.4., dated 26 April
1246, concerning illtreatment of "romusha"(foreed coolies)
by the Jdavanese authorities in the coolie-camps in Melaye
and neighborhood,

T R

have been taken from the cfficizl records of the NEFIS,
SIGEATURE ¢
/e/ ©Ch. Jongeneel

BATAVIA, 23 July 1948,

o ~

ReNoless, Senior Officiel attached to the Office of the Attorney -
General,¥,E,.I,

Subscribed and sworn to before re, X.,A,deWEERD,LL.D,, first Lieutenant

/s/ K. i, de Weerd
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Today, Wednesdny 22nd May 1946, there appeared before myself:

—\

Joseph Godfried Benders, Captain for Spec izl Services, Head of the
FVetiherlonds Wor Crimes Investigation Team at Singavore,
at: The Javanese Camp Soeungei Besi, hualu Lumpur

a person who on enquiry declared himgelf to be:

Names EASA BIN - SAWNTAMI 25 years old

Addresst Javencse Comp Soengei Besi, Kuala Lumpur.
Future address: Mergowatk , Tjilatjep Regency.

5, Cen you give any imformation about acts of violence cor mmitted against
yourself or others, which you have witnessed?

It woulé be about three vears ago that I was ordered by the chief of
ny hamlet to go and work for the Jdaprnese for a year overseas. I hed
no objection to this. There were nine of us from my hamlet, and ve
were placed on a trausport to Batavia, Two days later we were already

aboard and left for Sekedjang (Riouw) under Jdapanese escort. Eere

we had to 1 trees. e woried here under a Japrunese contractor,
whose neme wes Osake. This man was a brute, ZIDvery dey he beat meny
people for some alleged triviallt; Often he gave beatings entirely

without reason., When we were ordered to perform a task that was
physically impoesible for the simple reason that it was beyond our
strength,; he would thrash at random, Whenever we reported being sick,
the only result was a good spanking., Usually he beat with a piece of
wood as thick as an srm. I myself have personally undergone this, when
I was ordered to verform a task beyond my strength and vhich I was

thus unable to carry out. I was beaten with a piece of wood on my

back repeatedly and until I bled (the witness shows me, the interrogator,
three scars on his back, each of approximately 8 cms, in length and 1
cry wide)s Although I felt i1l after this, I did not dare to stop
working, through fear of being further maltreated. One special case

of mpltreatment of which I myself and many others were eye witnesses,
is the following:

One of our comrades nemed Kertasan, vhose present address is unkmown %o
ne, had bought o shirts Osake wrongly assumed that Kartasan had stolen
the shirt. By way of punishment, he was bound vith his hands behind
his back, hung up on a tree in such a way that his feet just touched
the ground. The defenceless coolie was then sprinkled on the head

with petroleun and his hair was then set alight, He yelled with pain.

His
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His head was completely swollen and blood came out of it. after
Rartasan had been unbovn and cleaned up by his friends, Osak

&t >d him with full force meny times on his face with an open

d, vhersafter he was teken to the hospital. EHe stayed there
for a month. AaAfter he i ?d been beaten by Osake he was poured full

with water by him, until his stomach swelled up.

Food in the camp was very bad end thoroughly insufficient. Three times
e Gay we received a small handful of rice and meize (corn) and a
little vegetable, and every now and then a very small piece of fish.

In the case of serious illness, we received medicel treatment from
a vananese doctor oad then medicine was also supplied; but the
number of sick was exceedingly great., The sick were principally
suffering from malaria {there were no mosquito-nets), dysentery and
beri-beri, JAccording to my estinate, f’wu'in'a the year that I was

in the camp, more than 509 persons out of a total of 750 have died.

DOCUENT 5701 VERIFICATION BY THE WITNESS

I, the undersigned _KASA bin SANTAMI mentioned-above, hereby declare
that I was led in and heard on cath by the interrogator, who informed me
thet tihe oath taken by me was still binding upon me, and having heard
my cbove svworn statement recd to me in my native language and shown to
me, I declare that it is a true and accurate statement.

Oath cdministered by: ‘Javanese Camp, Kuala Lumpur
Sdf Penz Tagin 23rd May 1946

The witness abovenamed!

Sd/__ EKasa
The above stotements have been signed in my presence and this
official record has been truly drawn up and subsequently signed by
nyself, the interrogator.

On 23rd Moy 1946 at Xuala Lumour Javanese Camp

The abovenamed interrogator:

Sd/ _Capt. JG. Benders.

Certified a true copy:

lead of the hetherla'"

Lor Crimes

(a8

Investigation Team at Sincecpore:
Sd/ &G. Benders.
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CERTERT I OATE

The undersigned,CHARLES JON Captain R.N,.I.,A., Head of the
War Crimes Section o: LETH RﬁndDS FORCES INTELLIGENCE SERVICE
(ﬁﬂFlb) being first duly sworn on oath deposes and states that the
annexed documents, entitled

o 3 \

Affidavit of KASA Dbin Santami,coolie,dated 22 May 1946.
concerning illtreatzent of "romusha'(forced ccolies) by the
Japanese authorities in the coolie-camps in lialaya and neighbor-
hood,

have been taken from the official records of the VEFIS.

Sd/ Ch. Jongeneel

BATAVIA, 23 July 1946

Subscribed and sworn to before me,K.A.de WEERD,IL,D.first Lieutenant
R.i.1sA., Senior Official attached to the Office of the Attorney -

Ge neral, T
Teerd



DOCUMENT 5702 Page 1

AEEE DA S 308 *

Today, Monday 15th April 1946, there anpeared before myself

Evert van Egsen , 18t Class Inspector of Police in the FNetherlands
ast Indies and member of the War Crimes Investigation Team at Singapore,

Holding o sitting: in the ¥ee Soon Comp at Siugapore, a werson who

on enguiry ueclared himself to be:

Yame: ANRAWI bin Wiriastja. Ages about 35 years

efesit Rt b C e SR i St el R
Civilian Occupation: Jockey.
Address:? The Nee Soon Camp Singapore.
Future Addresst Subdistriet XKalibening.
District Harangkobar Band janegara.

R - . - . . - . . . - . > o = . - . . . e

5. Can you give any informetion about acts of violence committed
against yourself or others, which you have witnessed?

My ‘home is in Band janegara, district Karangkobar, subdistrict Kalibening,

waere I was a jockey. In April 1943 I was called to annear at the

Subdistrict Office, from where I was taoken to the Kawedenaor and from

there to the Regeat's Office at Badjanegara.

At the Regent's Office I was detained with about _ 1CO other Javanese

for a little while, and taken to Tandjong Priok by the Japencse by train,

where ve remained for about three deys, and then left for Singopore on

a Jdapanese ship with about _100¢C Jnvan(se coolies. At Singapore we were

separated. About 50C of us were taken to FPoeloe Seki®#jang.

At Poeloe Sekidjang we were set to work as coolies to unload ships.

We had nomely to unload rice, sugar, and tobacco. e worked doy and night.

Many coolies fell ill, suffering from dysentery, beriberi, malaria, etc.

By wny of medicine 211 we got wes only one sort of pill; for dysentery

the Japanese gave us lor-it. Many coolies, about 200 to 300 died here;

there were 10 to 15 deaths per dav. Corpses were burnt by the Japnnese,

until a Hadji who had died was burnt, but whose corpse would not burn,

after which he was just buried. Thereafter no more burning of corpses

took place.

A coolie whose name I do not recollect because we were only nomed by

number, lay for sometime in a barrack for the sick, where he suffered

from hunger; he therefore set out to steal _sweet votatces and wes
ceught in the sct by the Jopanese, The Janrnese nemed Kimoto San

and Tadjibana , both soldiers wearins embroidered insignin consisting 1

of three yellow stars, then bound this victim with his hends on his

back, his feet were nlso bound, ~nd lvinz on the grounc ith legs raised

owing to his rope being tied to altree, his body was wrapped in a mat

ond he was thereafter sprinkled with a bottle of petroleun and

set alight. Lis back and seat and other parts of his body were burnt.

The rope burnt throuzh and after the fire vas put out, the victim was

token to hospital, where he died three days later from the resulting

injuries.

~

Later
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Later{ in the month of July 1944, I was taken along with other coolies
to Kempong Baroe, Tonjone Parar, Singsoore, where, too, we had to
work &t unloading and repairing ships.

There severnl times I was beaten with a big thick piece of rope on

my right eye, so that I contracted wounds ~nd my eye was injured.

To this very day I cannot see well with this eye, and I still bear

a scar (I, the interrogator, confirm that there is a scar on the

right eyelid and adjoining the eve). This was done by the Jenanese
gsoldier, Abisan, wearing the distinctive insicnia of three

embroidered yellow stars.

The reeson wes that a big bar of iron could not be lifted by three
of my coolies, and I, as fo.eman, was held accountable.

VERIFICATION BY THE “ITNESS

I, the undersigned _SANRAWI bin Wiriastjo , mentioned—above, hercby
declarc that I wes led in and leard on onth by the interrogator,

who informed me that the oath taken by me was still binding upon me,
and having lieard my above sworn statement read to me in my native
langurge and shown to me, I declare that it is a true and accurate
statement.

Sincapore, 156th April 1946

The vitness above—nanmed:

Sd/ with the rieht thumb impression
of Sanrawi

The above statements have been signed in my presence and this
official record hos been truly dravn up and subscquently signed by
myself, the interrogator.

On  1bth April 1946 at Sinzapore

The above-named interrogator:

Sd/ _E. van Essen

| Certified a true copy:
| Sd/ illegible




DOCUMENT 5702
CERTIFICATE

The undersigned,CHARLES JONGENERL,Capiain R.i.I.A., Head of the
War Crimes Section of NETHERLAIDS FORCES INTELLIGE!.CE SERVICE
(EFIS) being first duiy sworn on oath deposes and states that the
annexed Dutch docuncnts, entitled :

Affidavit of SAWRAWI bin Wiriastja, jockey, deted 15 April 1946.
concerning illtreatment of "romusha' (fcrced coolies) by the
Japanese authorities in the ccolie-camns in Malaya and neighbor-
hood,
have been taken from the off:cial records of the WEFIS,
SIGFATURE ¢
7S/ Ch. Jongeneel
BATAVIA, 23 July 19486.
Subscribed and svorn to before me,K.L.ds WIFRD IL.D.. first Lieutcnant
R, .I.4., Senior Official attached to the Office of the Attorney

General, K. B, 1,

/8] K. A. de Weerd
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AFTIBDAYE DT

Today, Thursdey, 23r( ilay 1946, thcre eppeared tefore myself:

Joseph Godfried Benders, Cept. Special Services, Head of the Netherlands Yer
Crimes Investigation Team at Singanore,

at: The Javanese Camp, Soengei Besi, Kuvela Lumpur, a person who, on
enquiry, declares himsclf to be:

Name:  PARMAIl BIN DJOTAROEYO about 25 years old

Civil Occupation: Farmer.

Address: The Javanese Camg, Soengei Besi, Xuala Lumpu

Future address: Xerangweroe (Kretek), Bantoel Rogeney.,

\ . . . - . ’ - - . -

S Can you give any information concerning acts of violence committed
against yourself or others, which you have witnessed?

JYepanese, In this connection he made us 21l sorts of promises about high
weges, sufficient clothing, feood and good treatment. OFf all these

promises nothing much has resulted. In davae we only received f. 10,-in cash,
ant furthermore I received f. 1.50 per day because I was foremans and
occasionally we also reccived a set of clothes, Wages wers certainly in-
sufficient, as everything was very deer. From my hamlet I left via
Djocjakarte and Batevia for Tand joene Pinang. In the neighbourhood of thie
place, we were set to work at Sckidjang. As foremen I supervised the
unloading of ships. We received far too little food; three tirmes a day a
little rice, a little vezetable soup and a small fish. The rest of the

care given us weas also inadeouate., There was o jepanese doctor, but
medicines vere insufficient. We stayed there cbout a yveer. In the beginning
thirty coolies worxed under me, of whom cleven have died. The majority died
of dysentery and beri~beri, for which we received insufficicnt medicines.

The coolies did not nced to work if admission to the hospitzl was necessary;
but since patients there only had a right to helf wages, even the seriously
ill vere not very enwious to be admitted. OFf the group to which I belonged,
and. which consisted of 490 men, about 140 died during the year that 1 was
there, Our camp commandent was ealled Mia, We had no complaints avout his
treatment., There was a great deal of beating here by other Japanese.

One of them was called Hakamnura. In view of the fact that this happened
outside my scction, I am uncble tc zive any Getails esbout this, Nalamura was
short, fat and middleeged -, he wore no £lasses, After our stay in.
Sekidjang, we left for Hadjae via Singapore., The journecy lasted four days
ond four nichts, and took place by train, We werc transported in goods-vans.
Thirty-five of us plus our baggege werg erammed into one van. There was no
possibility of sleeping. Ve almost suffocated from the heat, Then we

wore made to march about 40 km, That night we were however given the chance
to sleep, and nothin- specinl neppened, Here we were housed in the Comp
Xoemboe, and set to work on building the road. We worked thore for twelve
hours a day very hard. There werc beatings here, but they were not excessive.
I have forgotten the rames of the Japencse who were respoasible. I was then
selected to become & Eei-ho (Tr. ¥ote: Indonesien Japanese trained suriliary
militia) and went back to Had jee, where for five months I was set to ail

2 " B = 2
About 25 years aso ry village chief ordered me to go and work for the

kinds
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kinds_of,ﬁasks. To this very day I have not as yet had the least training
for a Hei-ho. From Hedjae we se

there to Kuala Goeboe, The i

were ordered to unload proflsiop

s set to work as head foreman, and

ay
>t out on a journey for Kuala Lumpur nd from
wo
s, We certainly Iad to work oxceedingly

hard here, Although we were giv sufficient rice here, therc wes
practically no other dish, Tnls in coqwunrtlon with tne excqgtionally
heavy work caused meny to fall ill. This work lasted » 15 months and,

of my fifty coolies, two died during thht period. I suspesct from malaria.
Conditions here were such that the men did not dare to appear sick, since
then they would only reccive the barest minimum of food. One therefore
tried at all costs to carry on, which in ny view tore fatal results for the
two who died.

VIRIFTICATION BY THE WITWESS

I, the undersigned __ Parman Bin Djotaroeno , mentioned-above, herdby declare
that I was led in and hearst on oath by the interrogator, who informed me that
the oath taken by me was still binding upon me, and having heard my above
sworn statement read to me ia my native louguage and shown to me, I declare
that it is a true and accurate statement.

Kvala Luvmpur 23 May 1946

The witness abovenamed:

The above statements have been signed in my o ard this officia
record has been truly drawn up and subsequentiy sisned by myself, the

interrogator.

The abovenamed interrozeator:

S3/ _Cewbt. J. G. Benders

Certified 2 true copy:

Head of the Fetherlands War Crimes
Invcst13at10n Team at Sincepore.
Sd/ J. G. Benders
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CERB LET 00T E

The undersismed,CHIRIES JONGED s O t dn ReW,.X, A, Head of the
War Crimes Section of NETHERLATDS EC ES INTELLIGENCE SERVICE
(NEFIS) beins first duly sworn on oath deposes and states that the

annexed Dutch documents, entitled @

"\
Bl

Afficavit of PARMAY bin Djotaroeio, J:rsexndated 23 Moy 1945,

‘concerninz illtreatment of "romushat(forced ccolies) by the
Japornese authorities in the coolie-carms in Malaya and neizhbor-

hood,

have ‘been token from the official records of the NEFIS.,

Sdaf Oh. Jonzencel

3

BATAVIA, 23 July 19486,

Subecribed and swern to before me,K.A.de WEERD,LL.D.first Lieutenant

B.NeIolde,Senior Official attacied to the Office of the Attorney —
General,V.B,I,

sa/ X. A, de Weerd

|
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AFFIDAYVIT /73D/i

Today, Mondey, 15th April 1946, there appeared before myself:

Pieter Gijsbertus Anna Bosschaart, . Commissioner of Police,
Member of the detherlands War Crimes Investigation Team, Sinzepore,
ate Normenton Camp, Singapore,
a person who, on enguiry, declares himself to be:
Wame:? SELAVAT bin Joe~noes about 25 years old
Civilian Occupation:  Foremen.
Address: Normanton Camp, Singapore,
Future Address: Kmp. Demaken, Koedoes.

- . . . . F &

5. Can you give any information concerning acts of violence committed
against yourself or others, which you have witnessed?

About a vear and a half aco, (Hovember 1944), I was admitted as a
patient in tie camp hospital at Poelan Soekidjang; here also lay Kariomin
and Ba $idin, both, like myself, sufferinz from beri-beri, and the itch.
One day, I cannot say more exactly when, at about 9 A.M, Ba Sidin was
wrapped uvp in a mat by the Japsnese doctor »f the hospital, around which
he tied a rope, after e had first tied Ba Sidin's hards together. I was
at a distonce of about 10 meters - the tyins up and subsequent punishment
took place in front of Barrack 9, Ba Sidin lived in Barrask 8, but there
was more room in front of Barrack 9, because all patients had been ordered
by the Japanese to be present at the punishment, After Ba Sidin had been
bound in the mat,whereby only his legs below his knees were visible, the
doctor, whosc name I do not knmow, made a fire of dried zrass and put Ba
Sidin with lews apart above it, The mat took fire; Ba Sidin jumped aside.
When the fire had burnt itself out. the doctor bound Ba Sidin's feet
with o rope and ~ "9 % over the branch of a tree, and pulled Ba Sidin's
feet off the ground; the latter hnd been previously ordered to stoop
until his hands reached the ground, ond while he was leanin: over like
that the doctor pulled the rope. What remained of the dburnt mat had been
removed by the doctor from Ba Sidin's body. Supporting himself or his
hanGs and with his le«s in the air, Ba Sidin hung like that until about
4 o'clock in the afternoon, when the doctor unfastened the rone that
he had tied to the tree. After having further thrown a bucket of sea
water over Ba Sidin's body, the doctor then let him so. Ba Sidin was
treated for three darys in the camp hospital with o yellowish ointment;
the skin was completely peeled off the right alf of his back. After
three days, accordin: to the Japenese doctor, the ointment had been used
up, and the wounds of Ba Sidin were no longer treated., Ee could no lonzer
sleep and lay erying from the pain, Four days later he died in the
hospital,
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VERIFICATION BY THE "ITFESS

I, the undersisned Selamat , mentioned above, hereby

declare that I was led in oand bheard on oath by the interrogator, who
informed me that the oath talen by me was still binding upon me, and
havinz heard my above sworn statement read to me in my native lansuage

and shown to me, I declare that it is a true and accurate statement.

Confirmation of Qath!

sa/ Sardjadi Mohd. Tormanton Comp  15th April 1946

The witness abovenamed:

Sd/ _Sclamad

. . . - . . - - .

The above statements have been sizned in my presence and this official
record has been truly drawn up and subsequently si-ned by myself, the
interrogsator.

On _15th April 1945 at _Normanton Camp, Sinzapore.
The above named interrozator:

Sd/ _PGA Bosschaert

Certified & true copy:

Merber of the ietherlands War Crimes
Investization Team, Sinzapore
Bosschanrt



¢ DOCUMEET 5712
CERTIFTECATE

THE undersigned,CHARLES JONGENEEL,Cgptain ReN.Il.A., Head of the War
Crines Section of ;rw HERLAWDS FORCES IWTELLIGENCE SERVICE (NErIS)
bein: first duly sworn on oath deposes and stotes that the annexed
Duteh documents; entitled:

Affidevit of SELAMAT:-Din Joenoes,mendoer,dated 15 April 1946,
concernin:; illtreatment of "romushe! (forced coolies) by the

Jopanese euthorities in the coolie—ca amps in Malaya ~nd neishbor—
T
200 d.,

have been token from the official records of the NEFIS.
SIGFATURE

[s] Ch. Jonzeneel

BATAVIA, 23 July 1946.
Subscribed and sworn to before me,K.li.de WEERD,LL.D., first Lieutenant
R.N.I.A,, Senior Officinl attached to the Oiflce of the Attorney -

General, H.E.I.

[s] K. i. de Weerd
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1735
AFFIDATIT

Today, Fridey 26th April 1946, there anpeared before myself: Frederily
Willem Hopeter, Attorncy-at-Law, Assistont Public Prosecutor, member of
the Netherlands War Crines Investigation Team at Singspore, holding a
sittingt In the Nee Soon Hospitel Comp at Sinzavore, & person who on
enquiry declares himself to be:

Vome! ACHMAD BIN KETAJOEDA born in 1921

Civilian Occupationt Workman State Railweys at Petoegoeran, Jeva.

sddress:  Yee Soon Hospital Camp.

Future addresst Java, Petocsoeran Village, Sublistrict
Pagoejangon, Brebes, :

5, Can you give any information about acts of violence committed azainst
yourself or others which you have witnessed?

I was employed as a worlman by the State Railwavs in the village of

Peatoegoeran, Subdistriet Pagoejanzen, District Boemiajoe, Brebes Regency,

Pekalongan, vhen the Japanese arrived in Java, I worked another half

year under them in the State Railweys, when the younz men of my villags were

summoned by the Assistant Wedono to work for the Japenese outside Java,

Whoever did not turn up would be punished.

We werc teken to Batavia, and from there by a ship on which ebout 1530

coolies were londed to Sinczapore,

I was token to Kampons Beroec, a cemp consisting of about 2080 coolies,

We had to worlz at the port, loadinz and unleoading ships, I“was foreman.

The work was very heavy, by day from 7 A.M. to 5:30 P.M., and the nizht

shift fron 7 PM. to 6 4.M.

We worked under the supervision of Heiho (Tr. ¥ote: Indonesien aurilicry
traincd by Jepanesc ) soldicre and Japonese. During work there was a ~reat

deal of beatinz with the fist, a piece of wood, etc., for the slightest

triviality. Conditions in Xerpons Baroe were very bad, We received far too

little food: three times a day a smell teacupful of rice with yam

(sweot potato) ond some vegetable soup, in the evening a small oiece of

fish, There were many discases, nainly beriberi, dysentery and malaria,

I myself had beriberi for 3 months and dysentery durins 6 months, Whilst I

lay in the sick-shed, there were sbout 500 sick, There were practically no

medicines, only some quinine for malarie and black ‘licrit! pills for

dysentery, Four to five people died every day in our camp; I even re—

member twelve people dying on one day.

On an averase there were a little more then 1000 conlies at work out of

the 2000 who were in the camp. The rest were siclk, The Commandent of ths

camp was a Japenese, named Taitjos I think he was an officer. Furthermore

there was one Japanese, one Chinese end one British Indian doctor, who were

2ll quite reasonable,
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¥nen I had dysentery and was practically dyins, I was taken to the Tan Tok
Sins Hospitel; I was ¢iven no nmedicine, only kept on a diet, After a
month I was taken to a hospital at Poeloe Sikidjens, where I remained

for three mrnths, There I was given "Morit!, Subsequently I worlzed

again for a month in KXarmpons Baroe, and was then taken to Poeloe

Bokoemto, where there was a petroleunm depoti we were again oblized to load
ships, The work was heavy and there was a great deal of beating.

After I had been working therc for a month, the docks werc bombed by the
Anericans, The Japanese crept into a shelter trench; when we also wanted
to enter it, we were forbidden to do so by a Japanese, I no longer recollcct
who, The result was that amongst the 100 conlies, who were present

at that moment, there were many killed and wounded, The woundeld were

taken to the Tan Tolt Sing Hoespital, F¥From emonzst my coolies three were
killed,

VERIFICATION BY THE WITNESS

I, the undersismed JAchmad bin Ketajoeda ebovementioned, hercby declare
thaet I was led in and heard on oath by the interrogator, who infcrmed me
that the oath teken by medwas still bindinz upon me, and having heard

my above sworn statement read to me in my native lansuage and shown %o
me, 1 declare that it is a true and accurate statement.

26th April 1946

The witness abovcrnamed:!

sd/ Ackmed
. - . - . . - . - - - . - .
The above stapcments have been sicned in my presence and this official
record has been truly drawn up and subsequently sizned by myself, the
interrogator.

On 26th April 1946 at Sincapore

The abovenemed interrogator:

Certifiecd a True Copy: sd/ F. W, Hopster
Head of the Xetherlands War Crimes
Investization Tean,

Sd/ eot. Jo G. Benders.
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,‘* The undersigned,CHARIZS J0i #ENEEL,Captain R,F.I.A., Head of the War
Crimes Section of NETIERLANDS FORCES INTELLIGENCE SERV:OE (NFFIS)

being first duvly sworn on sath deposcs and stetes that the annexed
Dutch documents, entitled i

Affidavit of ACHVAD bin Ketajoeda,railwey coolie, dated 26 April 1946.

concerning illtreatment of "romusha (forced coolies) by the
Japancee outhorities in the coolie-camps in Molaya and neizhbor—
SR

hood,

have been talen from the officisl records of the NEFIS,

-

SICNATURE @

/8] Ch. Jongeneel

BATAVIA, 23 July 1946.
Subseribed and sworn to before me,Keiede WEERD,LL,D, first Lieutcnant
R.i.luie, Senior Official aittached to the Office of the Attoraey -
Genersl, N.E.I.

/s/ K, A, de Wserd
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Today, Friday 19th April 1946, there appeared before myself, Anthonie
Corstizen Kraayenbrink, Attorney-at-Law, Civil Servant, Netherlands
Indies, Member of the Netherlands War Crimes Investigation Team,
Singspore, a person who, on enauiry, déclares himself to be:

Name: GOEDEL 30 years old

Civilien Occupation: Seller of Fried Meat on Sticks.

Address: Henderson Road Camp, Singanore.

Future Address: Poerworedjo.

~1

. & . - . . . - . . - . . . . - . . . S [ - - . . - - .

5. Can you give any information regerding acts of violence committed

against yourself or others, which ycu witnessed:

I am a Javenese from the hamlet of Rapinh near Solo, About 18 months cgo

I was told to appear before our village headman who told me that I hed to go
and work for the Japanese for 7 wecks at Klaten, Instead of that I was

put on the train with cbout 1000 men and taken to Batavia, where I remained
for 15 doys at Xlender, Therec we vere imprisoned in a camp where we were
guarded by Jepenese and were not allowed to go out., There were a few, I no
longer recollect their names, who tried to run away, but they were nearly
beaten to death by the Japancse.

After our stay at Klender we were driven to Tandjoeng Priok and driven aboard
o ship, Then we sniled direct to Singapcre, where I was taken to the camp in
Henderson Road, at which I have remained since, and still am. For food we
g0t there o little rice mixed with maize and a kind of sweet potato. There
were very many sick, cbove 2ll with dysentery, beriberi and tropical ulcers;
there was also o great deel of malaria, There was no guinine or any other
medicines; the sick were given o watery medicine, that never had any effect.
There were no bandnge appliences. This camp was o tronsit coamp where 2ll
Javonese come, who were tronsported from here to other destinations. The sick
vere consequently left behind here., Very mony people died here; every day
certainly 15 to 20 people died. I do not know how many died in toto, but
certainly estimote the number at about 2000. The dend were left lying for
about two doys, and were then teken avay on a motor truck; I do not know
where. There were frequent beatings here by the Japenese, if they hed eny
comments cbout the work, About eizht months ago I was accused of stealing a
blenket, with which I had nothing whotever to do. The Japanese solder
Irakobo bound a rope round my neck and left me suspended like that for z night.
The following morning ot seven o'clock the Japonese soldiers Kimoto and
Irokobo begen to meltreat me. These Japanese also forced each of 260
Javanese to give me o few blows with o leather strop. Without resnite I was
throshed by them with their leather shoes, which meltreatment lasted until
eleven o'clock, Thereafter my orme ond my lezs were bound, and my head was
put into a basin of water, whereby I was half drovned. After half an hour
they stooped thie, and tied me securely %o the wall of one of the barracks,
vhere I stood bound for o week. I was then full of wounds; I had three
bleeding vounds on my back, mede by Irckobo with a native knife. My left
foot displaoyed @ big bloody wound made by Irekoba with a piece of iron.

(¥.B, witness shows me, the interrogctor, the distinetly visible scars of
/ these
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these wounds, as well as scors on the fore-arms resulting from the- wounds
received through his bonds).

I wes covered with blood cll over my body, and stood bound like that for a
whole week, without being cleaned or my wounds being tended.

All this time I only got & litile rice porridge to eat tvice a day. When
after a week I wos unbound, oll my lirbs and my body was badly swollen., I
wes then no longer in a conditicn to meke any movement whaisoever, and had
to be ecrriec to my sleeping plwuce by others. Only after o month was I in

o position to move about o little agoin, ond slowly made a complete recovery.
I howve retained no lasting injury as the result of this maltreatment.

VERIFICATION BY THE WITNESS

I, the undersigned Goedel , abovementioned, hereby declare that I was
led in ond heard on oath by the interrogator, who informed me that the oath

taken by me wes still binding upon me, and having heard my obove sworn

statement read to me in my native longurge and shown to me, I declare that
it is o truws and accurate statement.

Sincapore, 19th April 1946

Oath cdministered Dby

b

8d/ -Mohd. Sardiadi The itness above named:

In view of the fact that the witness cannot vrite, insteod he bhas set the
impression of his right thumb.

s - - - S -
The ebove statements have been signed in my proserce and this official
record has been truly drawn up an d subsequently signed by myself, the

interrogator.

On _19th April 1946 at Sinzapore

The sobovenamed interrogaotor:

Sd/ A. C. Kraayenbrink

Certified a true copy:

Head of the lletherlends Wer Crimes
Investigation Tecm, Singapore.
sd/ J. G. Benders
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CERTIFICATE

The undersigned,CHARLES JONGEWEEL,Captain R.N.I.A.,Jead of the War Crimes
Section of NETHLRI.DS FORCLS INTLLLIGENCE SERVICE (NEFIS) being first
duly sworn on oath demcses and states that the annexed documents,
enkitled :

Affidevit of CUEDEL, pedlar,dated 19 April 1946.
concerning illtrestment of "romusha!(fnrced coolies) by the
Jepenese anthar ities in the coolie—-camps in Melays and neighbor—
hood,
have been taken from the official records of the NEFIS.
SIGINATURE ¢
Sd/ Ch. Jongeneel
BATAVIA, 23 July 1946.
Subscribed =2nd sworn to before me, K.A.de WEERD,LL.D.first Lieutenant
R.W.I.A,, Senior Official attached to the Office of the Attorney -~ General,

HnEa Io

Sd/ X. A. de Weerd

#
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rodoy, Friday 19th April 1946, there appeared before mysclf: (
inthonie Corstiarn Freoyerbrink, Attorney—at-Law, Civil Servent

i vg cids Irndics, member of the Fetherlands Wer Crimes Investigation
Teanm, Fenderscn Road Comp, Singapore, a person.who, on enquiry, declsres
himsclf to bes

Hames BOBJONG, ~lias TAWAHIR, 35 yeers old
Civilion Occuvation: Market wastsr . at Pamelang.
sddrose: Hendersmofi Rood Cemp, Singapore,

Fubure Jddressy Padanz,

S Cnn you give any informotion obout acts of violence committed
against yourself or others, witnessed by yourself?

Round about tho seccnd holf of 1944 I left Pckalongan. I did not went

to work for the Jaopancse; dbut the Assistant-Burgomaster at Pekalonsgeon
said that I would have to work for cbout 6 months, and that I would

be imprisoncd if I continued to refuse. Thereupon about 300 of us

were teken to Tardjong Priok, whers we stayed for obout 14 doys, end then
werc put aboard e ship and tcken to Singopore. 4Lfter spending 14 doys

&t Singopore, we went to FPoelauw Damar, 4t Poclau Deomar the food was very
bad, There were meny sick suffering, especiclly, from dysentery and
beri-bori; but no carec wos teken becoruse there were no medicines. Of the
250 men with whom we orrived ot Poelou Demer, 75 returned to Siunsopore
zfter the copitulction of Jopan. The remainder either died or escaped

in those doyse The work was exceedinsly heavy., I myself was forcman

and hisve hod meny beatings whon my men were too werk to work, In-:
particular the Japnnese soldier Asimoto beat a lot with his fist, ond
with o bamboo sticlk, I rcmember that & certain Radjoeki was buried alive

on orcers from this Asimeto. This took place as follows:! in 1945
about two months buforp the Ramodan, (Tr, Note: Ninth month of
Mohammedan yesr with gicd fastinz in all daylight hours), o cortein
Rad jooki, who cot too MRLy beatings ond too little food, ran oway.
About this -time 14 pisys wercastolen from the camp, 4 Chinese was sus-

pected of this theft, broucght into the crmp ond maltreated by Asimoto
until he was half dead; still he did not confess. After Rodjoekl had
becn awey for nbout 14 days, he was causht ot some distance from the

arp in a wood whore he was 1ishtinz a fire to cook food. He was taken
prisoner by the Japrnese eand brouzht to the Japonese office. There
lLsimoto accused him of stealinz the pigs. Radjoeli denied hoving had
anytiing to do with this. Thereupon he was tied with his hands oa his
back to a rubber tree and thrashed by Asimoto with the handle of a '
Ipatjol! (Tr, Notet native spade). Radjoecki remained bound for 3 doys
cnd nishts during which time he was maltrcated at rezular intervals,
411 this time he received neither food nor drink. The malireatment was
always adninistored by Asimoto himeclf., The third day towards 7 o!clock

the evenins Radjoeki wos unbound. I found myseclf® in the vicinity ond

saw
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saw thnt the tendons of his elbows and knees hed been cut th wrouzh s0
that Radjocki could no lonzer move his limbs, I saw that he wes
bleedinz profusely. When I hod returned to my barrack, foreman

Docrachmrn with 5 men wos called to the officc. They were Mohd. Irlanm,
Scchnad, Docen, Wasoem and Ichwen. The seme evening round about ten
o' clock, tlese men came home and told me what had happened. When ﬁ1 37 3

hod appeared ot the office, Asimoto ordered them to bury Redjoeki, g
Since Radjoeki wns s 111 alive they protostod, whereupon Asimcto

become furious ~nd threatened them that they would all be duried if
they did not obey, Thereupon they took Radjoeki to the burying-place
about I km. awsoy from thc cerm, (he was thcn still olive) and buried
him there. : ‘

VERIFICATION BY THE ¥ ITNESS

I, the undersicned BPQiOnQ, elics Tawshir, nentioned-above, hereby
declore that I waes lcd 1ff and heard on oath by the interrogator, who
inforned me that the ocath taken by me was stlll bindinz upon ne, an
having heard my above sworn statement read to me in my native langunge
and shown to me, I declare that it is 2 true and nccurate statement,

Qath administered by:

.

/S/_Mohd, Serdjadi Sincopore, 19th April 1946

The witnoss abovenameds

/S/_Bocjongz

- L] .o - . - . . . . Ll . A4 4
The above =ua tcnzg s hove beon sisned in'my presence and this official

record has been truly drovm up and subsequently signed by myself,
thie infterrogator.
Or__19th Aoril 1946 at __ Sinzapore

The above named interrozator:

/S]__i, C. Kroaycnbrink ,

Certified & truc copy?
Heed of the Netherlends Wor Crimes
Investization Teaom, Singapore

/sf 3. G. Benders
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The vndersigned,CHARLES JONGENEEL,Captain R.¥.I.A.,Head of the
War Crimcs Section of NETHERLAKNDS FORCES IIT-LLIGELCE SERVICE

VEFIS) beine first duly sworn on oath deposes and states that the
annexed Dutch documents, entitled ¢

4 o - — : = Ay s o e A=~ 3
Affidavit of BOEJONG 2lias TA AHIR,merket— :astsr ,dated 19 April
946.
concernin. illtreatment of "romushe(forced coolies) by the

Jepenese authorities in the coolie-cemps in laleya and neishbor—
hood,

l._l

have beern token from the official records of the NEFIS.

SIGTATURE ¢

/8] Ch. Jongeneel

BATAVIA, 23 July 1946,
Subscribed end sworn to before me,X.A.de WEERD, LL.D.first Lieutenant

R.H.I.A., Senior Official atteched to the Office of the Attorney-
General, sEele

Js] E. A. de Weerd




i

DOCTMERT 5707 Page I

AFPIDAVET /7;{'{/4

Todey, 20th May 1946, there appears before mysclf:

Joseph Godfried Bendors, Capt., Special Services, Hoad of the Netherlands
War Crimes Investisation Team, Singzaporc at: The Javanesc Camp, Soengei
-

Besi, Kuala Lumpur, a person, who, on enquiry, declares himself to be:
Name: REBO 32 years old

Civilien Occupation: Foremsn on a sugar estate.

Addresst The Javanese Cemp, Soengei Besi, Kuala Lumpur.

Future address: Solo.

- . ° - . - . . . . . . .

. Can you gzive eny informotion concerning acts of violence committed
against yourself or others, which you have witnessed?

About two years ezo my village chief came to tell me that I hod to work for
the Japanesc; if I did not do this voluntarily I would be expeclled from

my villace, I was assured that I neced not work outside Jave, I dad not

dare to ignore the village chicf's order,

We were collected from our houses, and after 24 hours werc taken to

Batavia by train. In Solo we received £,10,— and were then able to buy

a coat or ghirt for f.1,25. Raden Mahoen of Solo paid us.

We remeined in Batavia for 11 days and had to do all kinds of work therc,

We stayed at Xemajoran, From Batavia we were transported to Singepore by en
unknown ship and by unknown Jdepanese, We were 24 hours in Sinzapore an

then went to Tandjoeng Pineng., I vworked as a coolie at felling tress.

Here a Japonesc soldier Yamada acted as head. He never did anything to us.
Under him worked the Japenese Soedo. He was very bad, He acted as superin-
tendent,. We regularly received too little food; rice three timcs a day with
"Kankoenz" (Tr. Note; Ilind of native vegetable resemblinz watercress) as
vegetable, and o little dried fish. So when we tricd to supplement this

by buyinz in the hamlet and Soedo found it out, we were thrashed with a
rattan or even with the fist, Every day he beat many ncople for all sorts

of reasons, One dey a Javanese, since deceased, had stolen a few pcanuts,

I have forzotten the name of the Javanese. We were then assembled with

about 300 coolies end foremen, and thrashed by Soedo, the Japanese Sako,

and o few Hei-hos (Tr. Note: Indonesian Japanese trained auxiliary militia).
The name of the thief. had to be hade known. The latter was cauzht and

agein beaten up with the rattan cane. He was tied to a tree in a sitting
position with his hands on his back for seven days and seven nights, by day
in the burning sun. He g£ot nothing to eat, but was#4given somethinzg to drink,
After seven days he was untied; he could no longer waelk and was led to the :
sick-barrack by his friends, There he remained for about ten days and died,
I mysclf was present at his burial, I know for certain that he died as a
result of the maltreatm nt, becausec he was perfectly healthy before that,

I deem Soeds to be the murderer., All this was also witnessod by the

/

Javanese Wakijem, who is living in this same camp.
if
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If we worked, we receifed f. l.-per day. We were paid once a month.

When we were sick we received sufficient medical treatment and medicines.
As alrecdy mentioned, the food was far from sufficient. Our meal _
consisted merely of one small cup of rice, There were sbout 750 men in oux
camp, of whom perhaps 400 dicd in nine montias. There were many sick,
suffering especially from dysentery, malariz, beri-beri. Only after

there had been meny deaths,did we get mosquito nets. We remained for
almost nine months in our camp, situated between Tg, Pinang and Sekidjang,
and then removed to Meriboe (Zelang), from where I escaped to the hamlet

in which I have stayed until the capituvlation.

VERIFICATION BY THE WITNESS

I, the undersigned _ RERO y, mentioned above, hereby declare that I
was led in end heerd on oath by the interrogator, who informed me that the
oath token by me was still bindirg upon me, and having heard my above

sworn statement read to.me in my native lansuage and shown to me, I

declare that it is a true and accurate statement,

Oath adninistered by: ; Kuala Lumpur, 22nd May 1946

The witness abovenamed:

Sd/ __ Rebo

The sbove statements have been sizned in my presence and this official
record las been truly drawm up and subsequently signed by myself, the
interrogator.

On 22nd Maw 1946 at Xuale Lumpur, Javancse Camp

The abovenamed interrogator:

Sd/_ Cept., J. G. Benders

Certificd a true copy:
Heed of the Yetherlands War Crimes
Investigation Teen, Sinzapore

sd/ J. G. Benders
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The undersignec,CHARLES JONGENEEL,Captain R.N.I.A.,, Head of the
War Crimes Section of NETHERLANDS FORCES INTELLIGEWCE SERVICE
(FEFIS) beine first dvly sworn on oath deposes and states that the
annexed Dutch docurents, entitled @

Affidavit of REBO, mandoer, dated 22 May 1948,

concerning illtreatment of "romusha"(forced coclies) by the

Japanese authorities in the coolie-cemps in Malaya and neighbor-

hood,
have been takcn from the officiel records of the NEFIS.

SIGFATURE
Sd/ Ch. Jongeneccl

BATAVIA, 23 July 1946,

Subscribed and sworn to before me,K.A,de WEERD,IL,D.first Lieutenant
R.N.I.A,, Sconior Official attached to the Office of the Attorney —
General, N,E. I,

i

Sda/ ¥. A. de Weerd
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AFFIDAVI®T

Todey, Monday, 29th April 1946, there appearcd before myself:
Xlass lMantel, Attorney-at-Law, Civil Ser¥ant of the Home Goverament,
Member of the Uetherlands War Crimes Investigation Team, Sincapcre,

ats Wilkelrina Cemp, Singepore,
& person who, on enquiry, declares himself to be:
Hanes TAHIR born in 1921
Civilian Occupation: Faraer .
Address: Wilhelmina Camp, Barrack Mo, 2,
Futvre address: Djatimoeda Village (Rembanz).
. . . . v . PR . X S - - s

=

5. GCan you zive any inforration concerning acts of violence committed
. against yourself or others, which you have witnessecd?

In May 1944 I was pressed to work for the Jopanese outside Java, ond was
sent to Singapore, I finally arrived at P, Batanz, round about Moy 1945,
When I had been there for about two months, a Chinaman,; whose name I do

not know, could not 1ift a piece of wood, He was not strong enouzh,

About 4 P,M, in the afternoon, Tokyo time, near the barrack, he was
therefore beaten by the Japanese Yama with a wooden cudzel of epproximately
1 meter lonz and tle thickness of an arm, until blood appeared and one of
his 'thigh-bones broke, Tre Chinaman could no longzer walk, Thercaefter he
was buried on orders from Yema by Fei-hos (Tr. lote: Indonesian Jopanese
trained avxiliary militis) with Lis head above the ground for about helf an
hour, Tken he was released and cravled on his hands and one leg back to the
barrack., The otler les dregged behind him, The other Chinese were not
allowed to help him; Yama threatened to kill anyone who wanted to help him.
In the barrack this Chinaran 0t nothing to eat, neither woas medicine siven tc
hime I nyself saw that in the morning e zot nothingz, After about
twelve days we left for Tandjonz Pager. The injured Chinaman was corried
on board by ris comrades, Halfwoy he was thrown by Hei-hos into the

sea on orders from Yoma, I don't know whether he was dead or still alive,
The foreman in cherge of the Chinese was called Atie., These Chinese

came from Singepore, (”andjong Pagar). -

- - . . . . . - e . - . . .
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A VERIFICATION BY TEE WITNESS
I, the undersi-ned _ Taghir mentioned above, hereby declare
the

22t I was led in and heard on oath by the interrogator, who informed
ne that the oath token by me was still bindine vpon me, and having
heard my sbove sworn stotement reed to me in my native lancuace and
siowvn to me, I declere that it is o true ond accurate statement,

| Onth odministered by Wilhelmina Comp 29th April 1946
| Sd/ _ Jakceb A

e witness abovenamed:

Impression of rizht thumb

. . . - . . » . .

The zbove statements -ave been sizned in my presence and this
official record has becn truly draewvn up -and subsequently sicned by
myself, the intcrrocator.

On lsg$ May 19486 at Wilhelmina Czmo Sinzopore

The abovenamed interrosator:

Sé/ _X. Mantel

Certified a true cop
| Head of the letherlands War Crimes
Investization Team, Sin.apore.

¥ Sienature Illecible
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CERSIFELAT D

The undersi.ned,CHARLES JONGLNEEL, 8aptain BeN.I.a., Head of the
War Crires Section of WETHERLANDS FORCES IWTFLLIGENCE SERVICE
(fEFIS) beins first duly svorn on oath deposes and states that the

annexed Dutch documents, entitled 3

Affidevit of TAHIR, formex, dated 29 April 1946.

) by the

illtreatment cf Tpormshe! (forced coolies
and neishibor—

concerning
Jopenese euthorities in the coolie~camms in Maloye

hood.
have been taken from the official records of tioe
SIGUATURE:

sdf Ch, Jongeneel

BATAVIA, 23 July 1946,
IL.D., first Licutenant

Subseribed and sworn to before me ,K.A.de WEERD,
P N.I.A., Senior Official attached to the Office of the Attorney -

Gencral, H.E.l.
sd/ X. A. de Weerd
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AFFIDLVIT

On Thursday, this twenty-second day of August 1946 a-pcared before me/,732/
F. H. von MEZITZINFILDT,

Ass. Judge Advocate, attached to the Temporary Court l'artial at M.KASSAR,
in charge of the investigation in the case of: war criminals,

the person of: "DACHLAN®,

sunmmoned to bear witness of the truth in the case of the suspect men-
tioned, who, afier having been remonstrated with about the obligation

to tell the truth ard nothing but the truth and the importance of the
oath to be taken by him, answered as follows to the questions put to him:

“hat is vour full name, age, _
profession, residence? "DACHLAT", 20 years of age. Tailor at Malang.

Have you any legal reasons to
refuse to bear witness in
the case of this suspect? No.

Tell me your experiences
during the Japanese
oceupation. In 1943 I went to SOZRABAYA to try and
find work. I obtained employment with
the Japanese as a cappsnter at a salary
of £.0.80 per day. From this monev I
had to pay all my expenses. 8 days later
I wvas arrested during my work and to-
gether with 400 men embarked on a large
ship. A week later we disembarked at
I4KASSAR. TFour of our men died during
the journey. ''e received only one meal
a day end one cup of drinking water.
In IUXASSAR I was made ships-cerpenter
and was paid f.1.25 per day. I had to
pay all my expenses; medical treatment
only was free of charge. I had to work
from 7 aeme till 5 p.m. I have never
had a dey off. I was beaten with a
rattan stick once, in such a way that
my whole right hand was swollen, I could
not work for 2 months and I received no
Dayment during that time. I know that
14 of our men died of beriberi and
starvotion. 4s I could not live on
ful1.25 a day, I had to work on in the
evening to earn more monesy, I frequently
lodged complaints with the Japanese head
of the ship-yard, concerning the low
salary, but without results hovever.
Twice I have written home via the post-
office and received a reply once.

Do you lmow other particulars
that might be of importance
to Justice? Noe
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After the asbove questions and answers are read to witness
clearly and slowly, translated in the Japanese language by the sworn
interpreter, witness declares to adhere to his statement and not to
wish that anything should be added to it or changed in it, as proof
whereof he signs his statement.

For the interpretation: The Witness:
(Wese)
(Illegible) W,So "DACHLAN"

Madz in my presence,
the ass. Judge 4dvocate,

('\VaSa) "FaHo von I\EIJB\TFELDT“.

Thereon witness took the oath according to his creed to have told the
Ttruth and nothing but the truth,

the ass. Judge Advocate,
(\V;su) "F:Hn von ITLSIJE\TFEIJDT" .
For the confirmation on oath,
(WesSa)
(I1lezible)
For true copy,

the 1st clerlk,
(Woeso) Leile ge KAT,

Translated by Section V.
18-9-146



ATITAVIC

This sixteenth dow of svecust 1946 anreared bafore me
ass. Judge zdvocete, attachsd to the Temmorarsy Court
in charge of the investigevion in the cise of:

War Criminals,

the person ovf: VAMAT FATIT,

summoned to becr witinese oFf the truth in the cese of the suspect mentinned,
who, after hovine been remonstrated with about the otlisation to tell tas
truth ané nothins butv bthe vrich and the importence of the cath to be taken
by him,answerec as follows to the gquestions wmut to him:

el

What is your fMmll name, age, nrufession, resicence?

~

MAMAT TaIM, 57 yeers of age, hewd-suvsrviscr (manfoer) ot SELRLTG.

Zave you any legal reascns to rsfuse to besr witness in the case of
this susvect?

Hor.
Tell me your exveriencss during the Jaoanese occuwetion?

In 194% I was summensd. to souear befors the oss. wedana (ass.villace-ckief).
Japs present there told me to go and work for them in Jeletes for three
moaths. I ¢hould receive a high salery, proser food and clothes. “hen we
devarted., there were 100 of uvs, and I wes their lezder. £11 of them were
gimple village veovle. Only 6C of them survived: the others died as a
result of hunger, disease and bombardmsats. Trom Solo we were transferred

to WOI'CKROMO, where we had to perform coolie-work. The coclies received

50 cents ner day, my wages were 75 cents althouzh they had promised me f. l.-
This lested two months. In the course of that neriod there were 2000 coolies
collected at WOVOKROMO. With 1500 coolies I was sent to Ra¥i (MOTa), I was
supervisor of 50 men. "Ye mede the trip in e wooden Japenese boat, im which
these 1500 men were crammed. Twice & day we Treceived a meel of rice with
tainted fish (ikan serchi. Im the mornins we had coffee. There was no
supply of drinxinv—water. Sometimes drirk-ing water was stolen from the
Japs, but on detection the thief was nunished with a sound beating. After
ten days we reached MLXAUSAR, where we had one day of rest; a hath was
permitted to us and we could wash our clothes. Horcover we could érink

as much as we liked. Ther=on we continued cur journey to RAZA. Durineg the
Jjourney nobody died.

Arrived at RAZA we hed to set to work at onee: wnlled >
which took us one week. Wo worked till 10 at ni-hbt; cometimss ]
threw petrol-diums into tbe water, with which thes coclies had to swim
ashore, whether they wowre 2ble to do so or not. e received no money and
food was suvplied only once a day. Yhen this task wes finished, we had to
construct an airficld. The wages for the coolies wore f£f. 0. 50 a day,

T received £. 0. 75. For food an amount of f£.3.— had to be raid per

head per month and f. 5. — had to be deposited to be sent to Java. Moreover
f. 5.— wes set aside war hoad peor month. This bloeckad account was never
paic out. Gvery day we hed to work from 7 a. m. till 5 ». m., with a res?
from 33 £311l 1. %o had only ome holiday per month, and 1 holiday oz the
occasicn of the "Lebaran" (first desy afier the month of fastins). Wazges
during the holidays were not doductod. Sick persons were pronerly troated;
thore was a hosoital for the secrious yaticnts with a Japancse doetor. Food
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consisted of 3 x 120 grams of rice daidy, mixed with meivze (corm), occasionally

with vegetables, scldom with salted fish. "hen ever enything went wrone with
the work, the mendoers (supervisors' had to line up, wherecn we were rebuked
and finally punished with & bad thrashing with a viecce of wood, especially by
beating on our heads. HMNore than 500 coolics died in on» year at MOZLA,
meinly as a result of shortaze of food. It wes irmpossible for us to buy any
additional fool or to try to find it, beocauso we were locked ws in camps.
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Twice I compleined about the foold to & Jap droescd im uniform, wvith & stor
on his left broest. Roth times the or 11y result wes tht I received 2 heavy
thrashing. "o wore not permitted to write lettors, mor did we receive smy.
Collcetive vunishments wero ra culaxly iaflietod.

In Tetruery 195 I wae ordored to taks = trucks to MAZASSAR with 11¢ men

in a MATASSaR-prahu. Ther- woare no Ters on bosrd the ship. e wore
bombed. by Allied plones: ae o result the shivn sank and 20 of us wore killed.
Fortunately this nzn)kmﬁc near the coast 2234 we wrro able to boach the ship.
I weat ©o TATAMPOLT tal the 40 wounded mon to tho hosvital. Tweorvone
of us rceeived f lC and mor20ver one pelir of pents, whorron we wore taken
ToMATASEAR on fool:; tha wovnldad mea wore loadod on a truck. After 9 days
we reachel our destination, cend— tired; we obteined ome works holiday
without weymcnt. A.trrv~rc“ I had to worlz at MALIIO for £.1.75 wer day,

the eoocliocs for £. 0. 7S. Food was insufficicnt, hut fortunately t“is
period wag not lonz. 4fter tie cepitulation I was sent back to MATASSAR

on foot

Do you know other particulars that mizht bo of impertence to Justice?

tor

After tic above questions and snswers sre read to witnoss .clearly aad
slewly, translated in thc delay lansuace by thr gworn interpretor, witacss
declarcs to afbere to his stetoment snd not to wish thet enythines should
be adéed to it or chensod in it, ss vroof whoreof he eilgns his statomont.

For the interpretation: The Witnces:

(w. s.) "AZAD TAWID

the ess. Judge Advocete,
(w. s.) F. H. von MIIJE TTIDD.

Thersen witnese took thc osth eccording to his erced to have told the
truth end nothin~ but the tvath.

the ass. Judge Acvocate,
(w. 8.). 7. E. voa MSLJ=TTIDM,

For truc copy,
the 1st clork,

’

s m. A T ds mam,

For the ronflrmab101 on oath,

(.

Translated by Section 7.
4. M. v. V. 18/9 46
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Today, Mondey, 22nd April 1946, there appoared before mysclf, P.G.d,
Bosscheart, Assistant Commissioner of Police, Member of the YNetherlands
War Crimca Inveatisation Teosm, BINCEDOTC, o ool o v o o @ 2e o
o -person who, on cnguiry, declarcs himself to bet
Wame: PAIMAY glias Man. arcngz.
Civilian Oeccupation: OCoolio, The District Public “orks, .mbarawa;
now in crerzc of tihc police ~vards, Henderson Camp.
Address: Honderson Camp, Barrack I.
Future iddress: K, Zelipawon, .mborewve, cfo Sastrotjeni (father) ‘
{
SR - - - 2 " 3 : 3 . : {
5. Can you zive any information concerning acts of violence committed
against yourself or otlors, vhick you have witncesed? \

A.little lcss than four years aco 1 loft Java. I had agreed to work for
the Jdapenecse at Scmerang; but after havines spent a weok therc: without
work beins done, we were scnt to Klender near Batavia, from where after
twent~four deys I left by train for Priok and was put aboard a ship that
wes to oa to Sumetra., After being ot sea for threc days, we arrived, as
it cppearcd later, in the vicinity of Sincepore, where we werc onchored
for smother four days. Therce were meny sick on boeard; their allmente
were principally fever, malaria and dyscntery. During the veyage aad
lying at anchor, 30 pcrsons died, who tojether with the sick numberinc
in toto 25, were taken to Sinzaporc by encother ship, I was on this
traasport; I, too, had drvscntery. The dead were loaded onto a lorry
and traasported by the Jajenese, where to, I do not kmow, Alons with the
other sick, of whom 16 in the mesnwhile n2d died on the wharf, I wes
taken by lorry te o hosnital in the town,

. - . L. . - . . - - -
Durins the two and = half years bofor: the capituletion that I was in
this camp meny pcople died, — accordin . to e rouxh costinate, at lcast a
thousand, Thc ccrpses were mot buried immecdiately, but vere carried by
friends and acquaintances outside the comp into an open fiecld in front
of Barraclk 18, wiere wropped in a mat they were laid in the open =ir.
An imam wes ncver mrescnt. The corpses then lay therc for a few days,
sometimes shorter, sometimes loncer, deocndin- upon whether a lorry was
availeble to ecarry then ewey.
I have never becn able to find out whore the corpses were teken to.

.
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VERIFICATION BY THE YWITLESS

I, the undersimed Poimen elias Mancarenz, meantioned ebove, hereby
declarc thet I was led in and lLeard on oath by the interro-ator, vho
inforacd me that the cath taken by me wes still bindin: wpon me,

end caring hoeerd ny ebove sworn statoment read to me in my native
lan-uace and shown to me, I declare thet it is a true ané accurate
statenent.

Confirmation of oath Sincapore, 22nd April 1946
Sd/ Mohd. Sadjedi The witness abovensamed:

Sd/ _Painan

The above statcrments have been si-ned in my oresence and this official
record has beén truly dravn up and subscquontly sismed by myeself, the
interrozator.

On 22nd April 1946 at _Henderson Camp, Sinzapore

Thic abovenamed interrozator:

Sa/ _P.G.h. Bosscheart

Certified a true copy:
Head of the lietherleands War Crimes
Invostication Team at Sin apors

Sd/ _J. G, Benders

A .
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The undersicned,CHARLES JOWGEVEEL, M.I.A,, Head of the
War Crimes Section of NEIHIRL LTS WLLIGENCE SERVICE
(¥EFIS) boin: first duly swern on czaith diposcs and etates that the
annexed Dutch documents, cntiniod

Affidavit of PAIMAW nlias MEUCARENG,dated 22 April 1946,

concerniny illtreca
Japancse authoriti
hood,

tment of Yromushe" {forced coolies) by the
es in the coolie-camps in lalaya and ncizhbor-

|
have been teken from the official records of the NEFIS.
SIGITATURE
Sd/ Ch. Joanzcneel
BATAVIA, 23 July 1946,
Subscribed an

Relial 8¢, Sen
Gencral, N.E.

d sworn to before me,K.A.de WEERD,LL.
ior Official attached to the OIflce of the Attoraey -
I

Sd/ K. &. de Weerd

D., first Licutenaat
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TNTERROGATION OF WITHESS

Today, Thursday, 25th July 1948, there eppenred before myself: F, H, voa
Moi jenfeldt, Attorneyuat—Law, (Assistant) Judge Advoeate otieched to

the Tempcrary Court Martial at Hakassar, chorged with {he investigation
of wor crininals:

The person of: ABDUL MADJID,

L] . * . o . @ . - - - .

What is your full nane, age, occupation, address?
Abdul Maedjid, 23 yeors, B.P.M, emplcyee,
Panskalen Soesoe (S.0.%,)

WVhat hepponed to you durinz the Japanesc occupation?

In 1943, I was seized with 8 cthers in order to become a Hei-ho soldiecr
(Tr, Wotes Japanese trained Iadcaosian caxiliary militia)., At that

time they promiscéd me period of service for 2 years and wazes at £.58 per
nonth., However, I only zot f.20. I went via Sinzapore and Java to
Halmaheiran., Tood wes Yairly good then. But especinlly at Sinczapere,
{wherc we worked aa coolios), we were beaten a.grenct denl. At Halmaheire
we also worked as coclics., On one oeceasion there, I was buried in the
ground up to my ermpits for 24 hours, beceuse I had stolen food, (we g0t
vy Aittle) oo Lo, L A e & W 5o g

Affer Singapore we.were no longer eilowed to write hone, TFrom Holmzheirsa
we went to Mokassar, where again we worked as coolies. At ny request, I
was sent to Singkans, where after the capitulation I workec for

Cept. Wesselinz, I saw Sat. Maj. Nekagawa behoad people,

. e B <« .

. 0 . . . . . .
After the above questions and rnswers were resd to the witness clearly
and slowly, having been interpreted by the sworn interpreter for the
Maleyan leas 38, he declered that ho adhered to them and did not desire
anything to be added or alterced therein, as proof whercof he hes sizned
his siaiement,

> The witnecas:
Sd/ Iilezivle ‘ Sd/ Avdul Medjid

Mede in my presonces
/ R O
The (Assistani) Judze rdvocale,
o I s 2 5. -
Sd/ F. H, von Meijenrelds

Thercafter the witness swore in accordance with his religious convictions
that he had told the whole truth and nothing but tho truth,

Oath administored byt The (Assistant) Judee Advocsto
54/ Illegiblo Sa/ ¥, H. won Meijenfeldt
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INTERROGATION OF YITHESS

Todoy, Fricay, 2ud Lueust 1946, therc appearcd before mysclf ¥, H, von
Meyonfeldt, ..ttorney—at-Law, (lssistant) Judec—advocate attoched to the
Temporary Conrt Nartial at Makassar, cherged with the investigation of
Wer Crimirals, the perscn of! Madali.

. b2 - . . . . . .

Wrat is vour full name, age, oceuneti-n, snd addrcss?
Madali, 20 ;re, farmer, Nr. Cornclis,

Vaat wore your cxoeriences during'the Jopanese nceunationt 4
4bout twe and a half yoers ago, I was fetchod from honme by the police and
talen to the office of the Asst. Wedena (Tr, Tote:  Javenesc native officer
in charge of a Sub-district). From there I wont to Beadoeng. There 1
Giscovered that I Lad become o Hei-ho(Tr. Fote: Jopéncse trained Indonesian
suriliory) soldier. The Japanese said we must become that, I staved in
Bandoeng for a month. From there I went to Singagore, vhere I rcceived
trrining for throee weeks. From there wo travelled via Saigon to Manila,
whiere zgain we reecived nilitary training and had to dig treaches., I
romained in Monile for thircc months, #nd from there I went to Menads.

Hore I was used as a conlic. At the time of the capitulation I was at

Poso, to whore I had run away, Sonmctimes the food was too little, some-
tines ennvgh; medicel treatment was also insufficient, 'I was meltrecated

in Meunodo because I ran away from the barrack to look for fond, I was
boaten with a scndel, My wages were not naid regularly. Sonetimes I
reeeived somcthinz, The Japanesc said that they werc sending money to Java.
e wore not allowed to write any letters and also received none. Fron oy
hamlet nine diocd. '

- - - - . - o ) . * .

After the above gquesticons end onswers wore reac to the witness clearly and
slowly (t-rovgh interprctation by the sworn interpreter for the Maloyan
langunge), he declared that he acheres to thenm, and does nnt desire that
anydaing should be added or altered therein, as proof whercof he has sizned
his statcment:

The interpretor: The Witnoss:

Sdaf Illegible sd/ Hadali
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Page 2
Made in my presence:

The (Assistant) Judee—idvocate
Sd/ von Meyenfeldt

Thereafter the witness swore in sceordance vith s religious convictions
that he has told the whole truth and nothine dbut the truth.

Confirmation of oatht
Sd/ Illezible

Certificd a true copy:
The 1lst Clerk
Sd/ A. ¥W. de Kat

Tre (Assistant) vudge Advocate:

Sa/ von Meyenfoldt
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T e T

Tre undcersisned CHARLES JOLGELNEEL, Cantain R.¥,I..., Hend

cf War Crirmes Scetion of NETHERLAWDS FORCES INTHLLIGENCE SERVICE
(FEFIS), beins first duly sworn on cath, dennses and states that the
annexed statement is a full, true, complete and accurate copy of the
original drcument, entitled:

Sworn statement of MADALT,

Dated, Makassar, Jiusust 2, 1946,
which document is a part of the officisl records of NEFIS,

Batavia, August 20, 1946,

S5ignature:

Sé/ Ch. Jongeneel

Subscribed and sworn to before ne, K.A, DE WEERD, LL.D., Major R.N.I.A.,
Senior Official attached to the Office of the Attorney-Gencral W.E.I.

Tecrd

Sicnaturc edf XK. 4. de
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after beinz duly sworn on oath aeccording to his religious convictions, 3

witness KOFER ma’es the followin: statement.

My name is KOPER, I was born at the village of KARANGSARI, I am about 20

years of age, my nationality is Javanesc, I am at present living at &

DIATINEGARA, ¥
About three years ago I was summoned by my village chief (that wes ﬁ«'

the village of XARANGSARI, district of KARAWGMONTJOL, regency of
FO:RBOLINGGO, Mid le-Jave), becouse an order had been issued by the
depancse militery euthorities that I hed to become a romusha (coolie) to
work outside the island of JAVA,

Besides mysclf there were also other farmers who were forced to ,
become a romushe at the time. e vere orcered to zo to FOERBOLINGGO
(aporoximately seven kilometers); there we went on a train to KLESDER
(near Batavia): three days later wve ' ere transported to TANDJONG PRIOK;
we went on a ship there and sailed straight to SIHNGAPORE, from where
we were transported to KUALL LUMPUR, and when we had been there a
fortnight we were transported straizht to SIAM by train. The train
Journey lasted five days; in SIAM we vwerc transported to a certain working
place celled TJIMPON, where we had to work on the railroad line.

The food in SIAM was no good at all and not sufficient; sometimes
we reccived no food at s1ll for three consecutive deys,

We received very pcor medical treatment; therec was sufficient
nmedicine, but we did not receive it: there were sufficient doctors and
male nurses, but they did not attend uws. Therefore it is not surprising
at all that epproximately thirty percent (30%) of the total number of
romusia at TSIMPON died.

Working hours were from 7.30 to 16,30; frec doays there were none. g
The romushe, were oftcn beaten when they did not immedistely execute the :
orders given them by the Nivpon authoritics. ¢

This statcrent is the full truth, in evidence of which I put my
sizgnature.
was signed : KOPER

Before the signing of this statement, I Kyri Hadji Moehammad Moechtar bin
dadji ibdulmoethalib, assistant Fead-Pricst of the district of
DJATINECGARA, living at Djetinegera, have read out this statement to XOPER,
whereupon KOPER states that it was according to the truth,

[

Then
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Then XOPER was duly sworn by me en eath in the way as prescribed by the

Islam faith.
was signed: K.H. Meehamped Moechtar.

Sibscribed and sworn o befers me Eetide WeeED, IE.D., first lieatensnt
R.N.I.A., senisr official attached to the Attorney~General N.E.I., en this
fourth day ef July, 1946.

was signed; K.A. TE WEERD.
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CERTIFTIOADSR

The undersigned, CHARIES JONGEMEEL, Cavtain R...I.A., head of the
War Crimes Section of WETHERLAIDS FORCES INTELLIGENCE SERVICE (WEFIS)
being first duly sworn on oath dcposes and states that the snnexed
original Malay document (with English translation), entitled:

Sworn statement of KOPER, romushe No, 3942, dated 4th July 1946,

has been taken from the off-cizl records of the HEPIS.

Signaturet [s/ Ch. Jongeneel
Batavia, July 9th 1946.

Subseribed ond sworn to before me, K.,A. de Weerd, first Lieutenant
R.U,I.A,, Higier Officisl attached to the Office of the ittorney—
General N, E,.I.

[e] K. A, de Weerd
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9 Army Tilm & Photographic ¥ N 932
Section, HQ. Sacsea.
Army Film and Photo Section, SEAC,

JAP LABOUR CAMP AT SELETAH
SINGAPORE ISLAND Sgt. S, SHRIMPTON

19 Sep 45 Lt. Walters, Cine.
SELETAE

This Jap Lebour Cemp was discovered accidentally by a
British Nevel party, Jep officials had avoided mention of it.

In the camp were 1700 coolies, mostly brouzht from Java
by the Jeaps for enforced labour,

The British Navel party arrived to find Jap medical
orderlies attempting to put a better complexion on the situation
by moving the many sick and dying into a so—eslled hogpital — &
group of huts where there were no beds, just straw on the floor.

The Jop orderlies wore anti~infection masks, lime was
being used on the zround, and Gisinfectant gprayed on the dying.

Until the British took over the crmp, there were no medical
supplies and no attempt had been made by the Jaops to render
mediecal 2id to their priseners,

Most of the sick coolies were suffering from either
beri-beri or dyscntery,

Immediate medicel attention for them was insisted on by
the British authorities wien the comp was discovered,

Seleteh is situsnted in the north of Singapore Island,

DR B,
SE 4884 Pest walking an emaciated coolie is carried on a cherpey.

SE 4885 Jrp medical orderlies spray disinfectant on o coolie suffering
from beri-beri,

SE 4886 . coolie lies dying.
SE 4888 This sick coolie is at the point of death,

SE 4861)

SE 4862) These pletures were token at the Tjideng Camp Botavia
SE 4863) by British Army Film Unit Cameramen,

SZ 4864) ¥W,.s, illegible

Lt.Ldm, 9 AFPS,




* DOCUMENT 5715
CERTIFICATE

The undersigned Charles Jonreneel Ceptain R.N.I.4A., Head of
the Wer Crimes Section of hetherlenaa Porces Intellizence Service
(Vefis) being first duly sworn on oath deposes and states that the
annexed four photographs (Nos, 4883, 4885, 4864, 4886) of coolic-camps

in Melaye have been taken by the Army Film and Photographic Section of
SEAC in the month of September 1945, from which Photographic Section
those photographs were received by Wefis,

Signature

Sd/ Ch. Jongzeneel

Subscribed and sworn to before me, K.,i. de Weerd, LL,D., first Lieutenant
R, N.I,A., Senior Offieial ettached to the Office of the Attorney-General
N.E,I,

Batavia Angust 6th 1946

Signature

K., A, de Weerd
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NETILRTANDS FORCSS  INT TEYLIGENCE SERVICE
(N F75)

Statement by: //;7/Q/£

Charles JOMGEMEEL, Capt., REWIA, head of War Crimes Seetion, NCFIS.
Duly gworn staetes :
Tas bOI‘n a-b R\"tt(:..:_f&m on ?{.Dece;nber 1912'

am of Nrther“ﬂuis v2tionality.
My permanent home is Batevia, where I am residing at present.

A I o O

In my capacity as head of War Crimes Section NFFIS, I received a
shor t while ago official lists from the Tapanese Ccurt Martial
Java, concerning sentences promeunced by this ftribunal.

-

The following remarks car be made:

l. The "List of names of persons, exccuted by eapital punish-
ment® does not contain :

a).many death scntences pronounced by loecal Kenmpel Tai.

b) .names of vietims of the so-called "KIO" operation.

¢) .names of planters executed in Fast Java.

d) .exeeutions cer:iicd out in camms in the reriod April-June 1942.

¢).sentences against 38 persons teken avay from Kesilir in
April 1943.
Nevertheless the list reports d
persons, viz 3 113 EBuropezans, 7
and other orientals.

cath sentences against 439
96 Indonesiens end 30 Chinese

2. The “List of names of persons ruvnished by the Court Mertial®
reports 1175 persons, viz. 5!5 Europcans, 517 Tndonecsians, and

113 Chinese and ofher oricntals, sentenccs varying between one (1)
vyear and lifcelong impriscnment. In this list names may be

fourd of railvay versomnel amd- vcll knotvr planters, vhich fact
poscibly indicates the above-mentioncd 'KHO' operation, though
conclusive proof it not available.

3. Five (5) "Lists of mersonc who died before being sentencedr

report 304 personc, viz. 92 Eurcpeesns, 117 Indonccians and 35
Chinese and other orientals. Rendom tests revealed that

Persons, who according to sworn statements were tortured to

QCdtn. are listed as having died fyom illness, causec of death
"heart failurer.

Several persons, who according to reports died from wounds
during their 1ntrrrnaatlon coull not be traced on thesec lists;
the same applies to rumerous persuvns who died during the
Preliminary inquest from lack ~f food and medical attention.

SIGILTIRE Je/ G. Jonzeneel

Subseribed and svorn before me, K..L. de WEIRD, LID, First
Lieutenant, RIL, on this eighth day of July 19L5.

SIGNLTTRE /[s/ K. h. de Weerd

ar: Charles JCNGENEEL, Capt. RNIL, head of War Crimes Section, NEFIS.
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The undersigned CIUARLTS JONGENZTL, first lieutenant, R.N.I.A.,
head of the ‘ar Crime Section of the NETHERLANDS IOR mS INTEL-
LIGENCE SZRVICE (NEFIS) being first duly sworn on cath deposes
and states that the annexed report is a full, true, complete and
accurate copy of the original document entitled: 7

"Report bv H,B, Doissevain, Dr. "r., dd. Semarang
March 9th 1946 concerning his own experiences and
. contact with the Japanese authorities, especially the
Kempeitai, during the Japonese occunation of Java
(1042-1945) No. OM/422/1."
which document is a part of the offieial record of the NEFIS.
Signatuvre:

Batavia, 7th June 1946.

/s/ ©Ch., Jongeneel
(SEAL)
Subseribed and sworn to before me X.A. de WEEED, first licutenant

R.N.I.A. Higher official attachesd to the office of the Attorney -
General N.E.TI.

/s/ K. A. de WEERD
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No: 0'/a42/. REPORT

by

H.B.BOISSEVATN dr: mr:
Comnrans, 5, ' atosgedé,

concerning his own experiences and contact with the Japanese
authoritizs, espzcially the Kom-pei-tai, during the Japanese
occupation of Java (1942-1945)., :

(at the request of the British Intelligence Service,
occupation forces, Semarang).

INTRODUCTION,

It is by no means an agreeable task having to write down re-
mambrances regarding the most ~oprrowful experiences of one's 1ife,
which one would prefer to put into oblivion as soon as possible.

On Sunday, 'farch 1lst, 1942 was the Jananssz invasion of Java,
A11 military forces, includ .ng the city guard, the militariszad
civil police and the airraid precautions warning-service had ad-
ready quitted Semarang, when on Tucsday, 'farch 3rd, the Governor of
Central Java, ''r. Winkler, put the assistans-rcsident R, Pas and me
in charge of the whole civil administration of this city.-

On Mareh 8th the capitulation took place.

On March 12th the first Japaneses occun~tion forces entered
Semerang; they behaved correctly. (For this first section I managed
the food partially; besides, a1l deliveries were paid for).

In the second part of 'arch the authorities came to take over
the civil administration, iizaded by Lieut., Col. Taga. Their be-
haviour was also still tolerable, though we, civil andministrators,
were immediately dr-graded to a low form of advisership.

Soon afterwards the Kempei-troovos arrived, headed by a ser-
geant-ma jor, who came to me at the townhall to requisition in a
very rough way - sometimes with his sword drawn - many things,
such as motor cars, beds with mosquito-nets, petrol, tyres, food-
stuffs, ete. le made it clear to me that the Kem-pci-tai was the
authority in actual possession of the highest power.

At the end of "arch the infantry regiment led by Col, Imai came
and occupied Semarang and environs. Ilie immediately requisitioned
about 400 beds from the emergency hospitals nnd occunicd with his
troops the high school and Djatingaleh barracks.
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These troops ware considered, in general, to behave properly.
A less acceptable thing was that the ecity guard was interned in
the prison "Djoernatan", an old condemned nrison, appropriated for
native criminals.

From Col. Imai porsonally - who spoke a 1ittle French - I ob-
taincd permission for the adamittance of two clergyman (Van Leeuwen
and De Jong) into Djocrnatan prison on Easter !fonday, and also for
a Roman Catholie nricst, to address the city guards. Afterwards,
many efforts having been o no avail, I obtainead permission from
this colonel to have a camp arranged for the city guard at Djatin-
galeh., The ladic~ Onepvangers and Teor Heege (both in Tjandl camp
at pressnt) and my wife, Mrs. Boissevain, hclpad arranging this
camp - vhich meant a great improvement for the city guard - by
collecting mttresszs, bed-curtains, kitchen utensils, etc.

The city guard, however, was very soon removad to Soerabajajs
but on April 22nd all off’cials from Semarang and places in the
vicinity were confined to this Dintingalch camp., The food was bad
and insufficient and the treatment by the guards sometimes very
rough.

Together with the governor Winkler and the asst.resident
Rietzschel I enjoyed 2 special treatment by being confined outside
the camp in a sersgeant's house., From herec we were able to sruggle
twice a day eggs nnd bananas into the camp, as much as our
%¥nicherboekar-noclkets could store without making oursclves
consnicuous.

On May 4th I wns employed azain by the civil authorities. I
had to act as their adviser concerning the registration of all
Turopcan inhabitants of Semararg and was put in charge of its
preparation. Appointed head of the Buropeans (so-called "yi jkmees-
ter") T was forcad to ramove and cecupy a big house at No. 87,
Rod jong (next to Aniem of fice) - working at a salary of one hundred
guilders a month - where T had to arrange my office as well. Thoug
with the presentiment of having been put in charge of a bad and
expensive job, I felt obliged to acceot it, especially in view of
the oonortunity entaile?® with 1T to serve and advocate the inte-
rests of the remaining Buropean community, as wsll as still possibl
under these circunstances., &3 to the question whether, to some '
degree, T succeeded in accomplishing this task, I defer willingly
o the opinion of th: hundreds- not oniy common peopla = who used
to frequent ny office during that time (May 4th, 1942 - October
1st, 1943).




Document No. 5746 Faa:

Y CONTACT WITH THE KEI'PRTTAT,

My at the outsct tolerable relations with the civil authori-
tiecs were soon undermined by the Kempeitai. My advices regarding
the registration, aiming at and often obtaining exerption from
payment - the taxes were F 150,- a year for a man and F 80,- for a

woran, 17 yzars old and above -or delay, or nayment in instalments,

were inercasingly neglceeted and finally not wanted any more.

I was accused of having 2dvised wrongly and on purpose, in
order to assist Turopcans in shirking these taxesy I had to wait
for hours and dnvs before office doors in order to speak to
Japanese authorities (the original ones were already several times
replaced by other ones). Kempeimen were again and again visiting
my. office, of coursc, or they called me to their office to get all
kinds of ' information.

So I wrote soms reports about Frecmasonry (I am freemason
since 1928), The Rotary (just before the war had been chairman of
the Semarang Rotary Club), and several revorts about the European
community of Scerarang., In the last mentioned recports I advocated
its awful destiny, pleaded for improvercnt by procuring employ-
ment, To Mr, Onishi, sub-head of the Kempeitai early in 1943,
who asked me to frankly exprcss my opinion, I handed a report in
which I protzsted against the dsgradation of the Europesan popula-
tion to parias of society! For even the smallest people were
thrown out of their offices and places with thc central and loeal
zoverntent., All this pleading was in vain! (Persons who have
read these rcports are e.g. 'r. foreau (Boeloe), 'rs. J. Lartog,
Batavia, Caroluszicksnhuis, 'r. Duker, Singavore).

Concerning the way in which the Japanese leading men, and
that was chicfly the Kempeitai, 2lways and everywherc tried to
destroy the European community, I could bring forward numerous
instances; the following thrce will suffice:

a) At the cnd of 1943 the so-called protection camps for women
were arranged., A\s intcrmediary between the civil adrministra-
tion (Gunsci-bu) and the wormen and children to be interncd,

2 committcc was installed, the members for which I had to
propose within some hours; so it could not be representative
(chairran of this comrittee was 'r, Assclbergs who died in
1045), e did our utmost to get the Tjandi hills appropriated
as womcnearp, But although the Jamanecse civil authorities
were willing to colaborate in this way - Mr. Sato went so far
ns to investigate and to lirit the complex of houses and pre-
misecs at Nw., Tjandi with re to serve as a canp - the executior
of the-c good intentions was hindercd by the Kempeitai.
Lampersaric and Sompok, the low-situated quarter of the eity
inclvding the "kampongs" behind the mainroad, were designated
for this purpose,
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b) When in July and Avgust 1942 the Buropean men who wer:s unenm-
ployed, wers to be rcmoved, there was such exaggerated prais:
about a colonisation plan Kesilir. A1l persons to be scnt
away were gathered on the prerises of the Kempeitai,
"ilhelminaplein, and every one was allowed to hand in,
through my intermediary, a request for exemption from being
sent away to Kesilir, if he could pr<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>